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Dave Yost - Auditor of State
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CITY OF WAPAKONETA
AUGLAIZE COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Federal Grantor Federal Pass Through
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Entity Identifying Total Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation)
+LJKZD\ 30DQQLQJ DQG &RQVWUXFWLRQ :HVW $XJODL]H 6WUHHW 3URMHFW
+LJKZD\ 30DQQLQJ DQG &RQVWUXFWLRQ $XJODL]JH 6WUHHW 6DIH 5RXWHV WR 6FKRRO
7RWDO +LJKZD\ 30DQQLQJ DQG &RQVWUXFWLRQ

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE
'LUHFW 3URJUDP
%XOOHWSURRI 9HVW 3DUWQHUVKLS 3URJUDP 13

7TRWDO ([SHQGLWXUHV RI )HGHUDO $ZDUGV

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



CITY OF WAPAKONETA
AUGLAIZE COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

NOTE A — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

7KH DFFRPSDQ\LQJ 6FKHGXOH RI ([SH@WIONX UWHK/HRE FRHIEIXUIDHD LQFOXGHYV
:DSDNRQHWDYV WKH &DWGTPFWTHWD X Q@CKH IHCECRHWDEVIRYHW QPHQW IRU
HQGHG 'HFHPEHU 7KH LQIBERBDOXRK IRQ SWKIS\DUHG LQ DFFRUGL
UHTXLUHPHQWY Rl 7LW®O®IBHBDEO &R GXO R MUnFOMVADnidtydtive Requirements,

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 8QLIRUP *XLGDQFH %HFDXVH WKH
SUHVHQWY RQO\ D VH@KRAWRSH SRWWRRY RRWKH WHRQ\GHG®/ WR DQG GRHV (
WKH ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRIQV IFK@ QRUWV DYKQHWR SR R WKH &LW\

NOTE B — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

([SHQGLWXUHYVY UHSRUWHG R8&RWKH 6 FKG G\WKO-H ADWHK EEXWFLKY HE B @ BR WQXW H@
DUH UHFRJQL]J]HG IROORZLQJ DV DSSOLFDEOH HLWKHU WKHC&BRVW SULQ
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments FRGLILHG LQ &)5 3DUW RU W
SULQFLSOHVY FRQWDLQR®AH RILWHGIH U BO6 5HJX O DidriR @admirBdirative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, ZKHUHLQ FHUWDLQ W\SH
HI[SHQGLWXUHYVY PD\ RU PD\ QRW EH DOORZDEOH RU PD\ EH OLPLWHG DV W
QRW WR XVH WKH SHUFHQW W& HU B WQIL B VVDIODRAHF WOQFRHU WKH 8QLIRUP

NOTE C — MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

&HUWDLQ )HGHUDO S U RJIUND\PW R ARRQMIH. BMKXMH QRQ JHGHUDO IXQGV PDWF
JHGHUDOO\ IXQBWG BHHREWLW\ KDV P HMTXWYHPHEOMMHGHHBHE6GERHY QRW LQFC
WKH H[SHQGLWXUH Rl QRQ JHGHUDO PDWFKLQJ IXQGV



Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

&LW\ Rl :DSDNRQHWD
$XJODL]H &RXQW\
32 %R]

3DUOHWWH &RXUW
':DSDNRQHWD 2KLR

7R WKH OHPEHUV RI &RXQFLO

:H KDYH DXGLWHG LQ DFFRUG BQMH Y LWIQ DXBQ\LQFRPHBIMVHG LQ WKH 8QL
&RPSWUROOHU *HQHUDO G&dvamieht 8@llting ISt@ndalsD WIHMH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHC
JRYHUQPHQWDO DFWLYLWLHVHWKHDEXVEQMRY WAQK DFQGE WW.NKH DJJUHJIDW
LQIRUPDWLRQ RI WKH &LW\ RI &BRXQMRQHWWOH #AW\DLOM RI DQG IRU WK
'"HFHPEHU DQG WKH UHODWHGOQRWHW HMPR QWKW 1ZKIDFX FROOHFWL
&LW\TV EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDRXWPHGMER UMD G KBYHRIQ GOMAHG $XIXVW
QRWHG WKH &LW\ DGRSWHG *RYGAWDEGEQRWD\NO BRBREQWEQR®H 6WDWHPHC
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions DQG DOVR *$6% 6 W D WPdisidrQTwandition

for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date + DQ DPHQGPHQW RI *$6% 6WDWHP

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

$V SDUW RI RXU ILQDQFLDO VWDWMRH @NW\X & LVQ WHUBRQVERGIWHEO RYH L
LQWHUQDO FRQWURG DWRG IGW WSHIRAFIHGHK UM W KIMS FUR SN PUWE QIEGY WR WK
QHFHVVDU\ WR VXSSRUW RXU RSLG®IORVVREXWKERWQWRFNRBD MMDHOQMP QHF
WKH HITHFWLYHQHVV RI WKH &LW\fV LQWHUQDO FRQWURO $FFRUGLQJO\

$ deficiency in internal control H[LVWV ZKHQ WKH GHRDIQ®RIRD REBWDWO GRHV QR
PDQDJHPHQW RU HPSOR\HHV ZKHQIJRHG RYREQLRKHLWRBUHYHQW RU (
FRUUHFW PLVVW DWiteriglH@akness BV D GHILFLHQF\ RU FRPELQDWLRQ RI
GHILFLHQFLHY UHVXOWLQJ LQ D WHWRID® FAR VERR U LELOQ VQ\RWKBO WHYE® QW
FRUUHFW D PDWHULDW KA VYW DWHIR O Q FRdyWficdvdeiehByH QWD GHILFLHQF\
RU D FRPELQDWLRQ RI GHILFLH®RMKYW LY LOGHWVNUQBDYH BRQWKIIRQ D PDWH
LPSRUWDQW HQRXJK W RWEKHRWLHVF B Y WIHH@GWA IRPKEJRYHU QD QFH

2XU FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO ZDV IRU WKH OLPLWHG SX

VHFWLRQ DQG ZDV QRW GHVLJIQHMIO WR QVEHIRWVLGH IR OIOH Q DVWHY/U WKDW P

ZHDNQHVVHV RU VLJQLILFDQW GHKIQEGHQMWLIHVNHG 7TRRMWHURDI® ZHDNQHVVF

GHILFLHQFLHV PD\ H[LVW *LYHQ W KIH&/HIQ@LR L \¥ QW GRIQIM LA BLLHEV QRWL Q W

ZH FRQVLGHU PDWHULDO ZHDNQHVUWH\ Q :GIHGLEL HGAQ MR IN VFHU QDO FRQW

DFFRPSDQ\LQJ VFKHGXOH RI ILQOLWVUM WMKBWQIH GHRIQ¥LBEB\ :H FRQVLGH
WR EH D VLIJQLILFDQW GHILFLHQF\

et ("e— fo<'efZ Zfdefactur—datrvréa A>-S«' vwvrt
S‘etd {uyetzwexxyy ‘" zrrevvueae{tyv z fsad {uyetzwexxz
www.ohioauditor.gov



&LW\ Rl :DSDNRQHWD
$XJODL]H &RXQW\

,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRUYJV 5HSRUW RQ ,QWHUQDO &RQWURO 2YHU

)LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ DQG RQ &RPSOLDQFH DQG 2WKHU ODWWHUYV

5HTXLUHG E\ *RYHUQPHQW $XGLWLQJ 6WDQGDUGYV
3DJH

Compliance and Other Matters

$V SDUW RI UHDVRQDEO\ DV VX UL FZODWKM D WHKRHH @ WW HIWILHLOU PIHV VW D W H
ZH WHVWHG LWV FRPSOLDQFH ZOWERVFHIHIROQ VWBULRRN\LVERQWWRDFWYV DQG
QRQFRPSOLDQFH ZLWK ZKLFK FRROG DA LKWFHW WOK HD Q 8 WHDUWPH QDIWLRQ R IL
DPRXQWV +RZHYHU RSLQLQJ R® $BRBDVUDRFW ZDWKRWRWQ REMHFWLYH
DFFRUGLQJO\ ZH GR QRW H[SUHWNWVPQWRSRQLRQU WHWHWY GLVFORVHG

QRQFRPSOLDQFH RU RWKHU P D W @®brethiet Aughtny Staridadds RAKV PKQIGH G HV FU L E H(
LQ WKH DFFRPSDQ\LQJ VFEKWHGW®I? RI ILQGLQJV

Entity’s Response to Findings

7KH &LW\JV UHVSRQVH WR WKH IRDRGILW JLVGHQWFULEBGLQQRWKH DFFRPSD
ILQGLQJV :H GLG QRW DXGLW WRHRYIOGN JIVOU HIHS RIQYHHYYEQR RSLQLRQ RC

Purpose of this Report

7KLY UHSRUW RQO\ GHVFULEHVFRRM VR R SIHORI RRRARIS DQWERIRKH WAHVWLQJI DQC

DQG GRHV QRW RSLQH RQ WKH HIIHFRMDOY AFRAWW RO WKHRQLARPS QNG H
LQWHJUDO SDUW RI DQ D XGaewiméH AudrithPStaBdaxd® GHU FRQVLGHULQJ WKH &

LQWHUQDO FRQWURO DQG FRPERRPXE®HF D$AFRRY GV QURW WKIWDEOH IRU DQ

Dave Yost
$XGLWRU RI 6WDWH
&ROXPEXV 2KLR

$XIXVW


srbabbitt
Yost Signature


Dave Yost - Auditor of State'™ °*"""""

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

&LW\ RI :DSDNRQHWD

$XJODL]H &RXQW\
32 %R

SDUOHWWH &RXUW
:DSDNRQHWD 2KLR

7R WKH OHPEHUV RI &RXQFLO

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

21ILFH RI 0D QD TdRpHaRdd SDpRi@nedtt X W KDWY RR %0 G
GLUHFWO\ DQG PDWHU&DWO\RD LIBIFONRQHWDQV SRRMBDP | HBW UW K H
'"HFHPEHU

\HDU
Sumidady of Auditor's Results LQ WKH DFFRPSDQ\LQJ VFKHGXOH |
LGHQWLILHWIWMRULLMGHWYWDO SURJUDP

‘H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH &LW\ RIWDSBRRGIMDIIAH WKWK&WKH DSSOLFDEC
GHVFULEHG LQ WKH 8 6

Management’s Responsibility

7KH &LW\TV 0DQ WHWSRIW UB/OH IRU FRPOOMWPWXIHVK UHGKXODWLRQV DQG
FRQGLWLRQV RI LWV SSHGIHARLCE®D B ADREWY IHGHUDO SURJUDP

Auditor’'s Responsibility

2XU UHVSRQVLELOLWH &L W\RWVR ERE@B (R@ QWD VRW WHKEH&IJIDMO\BSURIUDP EDVH
DXGLW RI

WKH DSSOLFDEOH FRPSOLDQFH UHTXLUHPHQWY UHIHUUHG W
DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGY JHQHUDOOWBNFRIIS $/RHEU D ROV KHE M QR H GQEOMD FL D O
LQFOXGHG LQ WKH &RPSWUROOHU Gbverahiebt @uditing/tahtlaBi® LW R G WA B WDHE\GTL W
UHTXLUHPHQWYV Kbdé biW&détal Re@gélations 3 D U W Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 8QLIRUP *XLGDQFH
WKH 8QLIRUP

7TKHVH VWDQUC
*XLGDQFH UHTXLUHRWXRFR WIRH SDXO®LVW QWR SHHDVRQDEO\ DV
QRQFRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKH DSSG6PHIBOWH UHRIMIUQMEBWR BIREFFERMGY GLUHFW O
PDWHULDOO\ DIIHFW U RIDMRPU RIHREHIUDHIG

$Q BPOPLWQLIQIFCRX®G D WHVW |
HYLGHQFH DERXW WKH &LW\TV FRPSIORDQWN DIQGKSWKRR/BHPUBI VXFK RWKE
ZH FRQVLGHUHG QHFHVVDU\ LQ WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHYV

‘H EHOLHYH RXU DXGLW SURYLGRXW ARRPIBS\VORQ@OEFGIHRED QLR QRRIQ WKH & LW\
+RZHYHU RXU DXGLW GRHV QRW SURYLGH D OHJDO GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RI

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKH &LW\

R1 D5 DINGR@ HVDDV HFURLPSAD LBHKBY SHF WV ZL WK
UHTXLUHPHQWYV UHIHUUHG WR DERDW HWUKDW CARXIOGF @&/L UWFWRDMRQYG | HG H U
\HDU HQGHG 'HFHPEHU

of "e— fo<'efZ Zfa@facssur—&Rtryvra A>-S«<' vwvrt
S‘etd {uyatzwexxyy ‘" zrraevvueae{tyv z fs8d8 {uyetzwexxz
www.ohioauditor.gov



&LW\ Rl :DSDNRQHWD

$XJODL]H &RXQW\

,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRUYVY 5HSRUW RQ &RPSOLDQFH ZLWK
SHTXLUHPHQWY $SSOLFDEOH WR WKH ODMRU )HGHUDO 3URJUDP DQG RQ
, QWHUQDO &RQWURO RYHU &RPSOLDQFH 5HTXLUHG E\ WKH 8QLIRUP *XLC

3DJH

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

7KH &LW\{V PDQDJHPHQW LV UHQS RIYE ERMH. QRUWD IHMVODE®ILWEWLYH LQWH
FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKH DSSOLFDEOHHIRPS®IGD YRHDERTXLUH® HSDD QQLQJ
RXU FRPSOLDQFH DXGLW ZH FRQVLGHUHG WKH &LW\TV LQWHUQDO FRC
UHTXLUHPHQWY WKDW FRXOG GLDHFIMMR UD IHGS iR D VG! SIIRJOD P | TWRWG HW H U
SURFHGXUHV DSSURSULDWH IRU RSLQLQJ RQ HDFK PDMRU IHGHUDO SURJ
LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU FRP S\KH @BH IRQ D EXREGBQRHF HEXVWVR RW WR W
WR RSLQH RQ WKH HIIHFWLYHQH\RP 80 LQQAHH Q DOFRRGWQRMD RAHKDYH QR
HIITHFWLYHQHVV RIUWRD ERWWYRMWHWHU FRPSOLDQFH

$ deficiency in internal control over compliance H[LVWV ZKHQ WKH GHVLJQ RU RSHUDWLRQ
FRPSOLDQFH GRHV QRW DOORZ PDQDJHPHQW RU HPSOR\HHV ZKHQ SHU
SUHYHQW RU WR WLPHO\ GHWHFW DQG FRUUHFW QRQFRPSOLDQFH ZLW
UHT XL U H Pribtgidl wedikness in internal control over compliance LV D GHILFLHQF\ RU FRPELQL
GHILFLHQFLHV DRWURW HRYPLOFRRW® DY WH HUXIFKYV SIR WHIEVFROQWWE OMKDW PD
QRQFRPSOLDQFH ZLWK D IHGHUBODXEUR PHRV FRPS® QRWFHEH SUHYHQWHG

DQG FRUUH FyrifiGant déficiency in internal control over compliance LV D GHILFLHQF\ RU

FRPELQDWLRQ RI GHILFLHQFLHYVY LQ LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU FRPSH
FRPSOLDQFH UHTXLUHPHQW WKDWJLNQO BN B NVHYVAW HOQWIKOWHL @DW HR QW U R
\HW LPSRUWDQW HQRXJK WR PHULW DWWHQWLRQ E\ WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLW

2XU FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RO [RYW HURRPRS GRMAWH ZDV IRU WKH OLPLWHG SXU
SDUDJUDSK RI WKLV V3HFYRVRQ DRV ZRXIOO\ LGHQWLI\ DOO GHILFLHQFLF
FRPSOLDQFH WKDW PLJKW EH PDMIKQULDFRD QWDEBHWVYHQFRHY :H GLG Q
GHILFLHQFLHYV LQ LQWHUQD OWHKIMW ZROFRYMUGHRIP W/RLED FMREHYHDO ZHD
PDWHULDO ZHDNQHVVHV PD\ H[LVW WKDW KDYH QRW EHHQ LGHQWLILHG

7KLV UHSRUW RQO\ GHVFRXEHWWHHQDARER@NVURO RYHU FRPSOLDQFH Wi
WHVWLQJ EDVHG RQ 8QLIRUP *XLGDGEBRJONTMWMKLNVPHBSRUWSE¥FRQRW VXLW
SXUSRVH

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

:H KDYH DOVR DNX®DNHGDOKWVWDWRPHQYFRHRMWWBKOHDFWLYLWLHY WKH EXVL!
HDFK PDMRU IXQG DQG WKH DJJUHJDWIHR Q HPIDWRHQILMW\ QI LOBOWR QHWD
DQG IRU WKH \HDU HQGHG 'HFHPEHU DQG WKH UHODWHG QRWHV
FROOHFWLYHO\ FRPSULNV®DW K HD&L WWNWDPRDENVXQ PR GVMXK-BGGUHSRUW WKHL
$XIXVW 2XU RSLQLRQ DON R IHWS MOIELRH/EGHE KRWHWRPHQWDO $FFRXC
%RDUG *$6% 6 WD W HAckoQritihglaRd Financial Reporting for Pensions DQG DOVR *$6%

6 WD W H P H Q WenkiBn Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date + D Q
DPHQGPHQW RI *$6% 6WDWHPHQW IRXU DXGLWRWR XFWNKEH RQ WKH &LW\T
VWDWHPHQWY DV D ZKROH 7TKHHDRFRPSBQ\G QW XVUHKWHR®XAHGHUDO DZD
DGGLWLRQDO DQDO\VLV UHTXIGDHEF HE\DW KHL 8 QQ RRAU B *XH T X LIULQHEEQ SDJAV R |
VWDWHPHQWYV



&LW\ Rl :DSDNRQHWD

$XJODL]H &RXQW\

,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRUYVY 5HSRUW RQ &RPSOLDQFH ZLWK
S5HTXLUHPHQWY $SSOLFDEOH WR WKH ODMRU )HGHUDO 3URJUDP DQG RQ

,QWHUQDO &RQWURO RYHU &RPSOLDQFH 5HTXLUHG E\ WKH 8QLIRUP *XLC
3DJH

7KH VFKHGXOH LV PDQDJHPHQWYTV UHVSRQVLELOLW\ DQG ZDV GHULYHG |
DFFRXQWLQJ DQG RWKHU UHFRUG VUMDW R BIHPBI\QVF KIMQHEEQ WIRD SUNMMVEDW HP HQ V
WKLV VFKHGXOH WR WKH DXGLWLQJ SURFHGXUHV ZH DSSOLHG WR WKH

FHUWDLQ DGGLWLRQDO SURFHGXUHV LQFOXGLQJ FRPSDULQJ DQG UHFRQC
DFFRXQWLQJ DQG RWKHU UHFRUGVWVFXNIQ® Q¥R DU N SIDWHH AHKGIWEDRU WR W
VWDWHPHQWY WKHPVHOWHRQ DQ G RRFFKIIGX DIB\GLQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DXG
DFFHSWHG LQ WKH 8QLWHG 6WDWHV RI $PHULFD ,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKI
UHVSHFWV LQ UHODWLRQ WR WKH EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWYV WDNFE

Dave Yost
$XGLWRU RI 6WDWH
&ROXPEXV 2KLR

$XIXVW


srbabbitt
Yost Signature
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CITY OF WAPAKONETA

AUGLAIZE COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

2 CFR §200.515
DECEMBER 31, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(A)D)()

Type of Financial Statement Opinion

8QPRGLILHG

(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material weaknesses in internal 1R
control reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(Q)(ii) Were there any significant deficiencies in <HV
internal control reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material <HV
noncompliance at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(A)(Q)(iv) Were there any material weaknesses in internal 1R
control reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any significant deficiencies in 1R
internal control reported for major federal
programs?
(A(Q)(V) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion 8QPRGLILHG
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under 2 CFR 1R
§ 200.516(a)?
(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): +LJKZD\ 30DQQLQJ DQ
&ERQVWUXFWLRQ &)'$
(d)(2)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs 7\SH $ !
7\SH % DOO RWKHUV
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee under 2 CFR §200.520? 1R




&LW\ Rl :DSDNRQHWD
$XJODL]H &RXQW\
6FKHGXOH RI )LQGLQJV
3DJH

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

FINDING NUMBER 2015-001
Significant Deficiency / Noncompliance Ci  tation — Allocation of Wages to Funds

City of Wapakoneta Codified Or dinance, Section 242.03(a) & (b) VWDWHV WKH JHQHUDO GXWI
'LUHFWRU DUH DV IROORZV

7KH 'LUHFWRU RI 3XEOLF 6WHWHKIDQOHPDQGJBDDHMBE\ VXSHUYLVH DOO SX
XQGHUWDNLQJV RI WKHRWKWMUZH[VHSWRYLGHG E\ ODZ

7KH 'LUHFWRU VKDOO VXSHUYLYHSWKWH RP §WRNHPHOQ W DIQGXHY DOOH
VTXDUHV ZKDUYHV GRFNV ODHMGLQUVYGFPDWUNAHMD GRPWY DTXHGXFW
SODV\JURXQGYV VHZHUV GUDLOWKLGLRAKIKHYHAKOYWUWNPY DQG ZDWHE
OLJKWLQJ VSULQNOLQJ DQG HIHD WKH FRR QSNWEDXFWIRMFRY SXEOLF LI
SXEOLF ZRUNV H[FHSW DV RWKHUZLVH SURYLGHG E\ ODZ

7KH 'LUHFWRU VKDOO PDQDJHODXKWEQSD KHIDMWH J SRZHU JDUED
XQGHUWDNLQJV RI WNWH EDWKVWVOD E® BDODURXQGY PDUNHW KRXVHV FHP
VHZDJH GLVSRVDO SODQWYV DQG IDUPV DQG VKDOO PDNH DQG SUHV
DQG HVWLPDWHYV +H RU VKHQMWDOXF WXRQPUY QGBHKWKXH FRDUJH RI WKH
SXEOLF EXLOGLQJV DQG RWKHQRSW RMNHUZ IRM HWEBR &LB/MHNG |IRU LQ
2UGLQDQFHYV +H RU VKH VKDOGRKDOOI® \WKWH HPD PDIWHWHQOW SURYLGHG
FROQOQHFWLRQ ZLWK WKH SXEOLF VHUYLFH RI WKH &LW\

7KH 'LUHFWRU VKDOO NHHS RAHH®RILEG R I KX IFR F\HRMWHKISA&E E\ KLP RU K
VKDOO EH FRPSHWHQW HYLGHQFH LQ DOO FRXUWYV

8QGHU WKH OD\RUWKIELUHABWWRQ VKDOO EH WKH H[HFXWLYH KHDG
'HSDUWPHQWY +H RU VKH WKYD MR &DYHWDBY BREQHFWHG ZLWK DQ
DSSRLQWPHQW UHJXODWLRQ D QG DIRW FAHQRINQRM|RHSVKMWHSURYLGHG
ODZ +H RU VKH VKDOO NHHS SURFIFRGGQRY KDMFR BFKRUVEKILHG E\ KLP
KHU VKDOO EH FRPSHWHQW HYLGHQFH LQ DOO FRXUWV 6XFK 'LUHF
RI WKH &LW\ ZLWKKHHIB QB OHFPMHYR W1 VXFKRWHSDKHVRUBOMWLRQ RU UHS
EXLOGLQJV RU LPSURYHPHQWY DQGRRQHFKH BXUFKBVHZRWBOO VXSS
IRU VXFK '"HSDUWPHQWYV

City of Wapakoneta Position Description ~ for Clerkl SRVLWLRQ WKDW UHSRUWY WR WKH 211
WKDW WKH HVVHQWLDO IXQFWHRQWXRNLWMKH QBVUWVLERQVQELRWWLHY DUH I

S5HFHLYHV LQFRPH WD[ SD\PHQWYVY UHFHLYHV SD\PHQWYV IURP XWLOL
PDLO SURFHVVHV SD\PHQWYV

SUHSDUHV LQYYRIFHNWFIVQGUHBFMESWINQFRIHRRXQVYV OPIOVGHHO O DMIHRXY EL!
HWF SRVWV UHFHLSWYV DQG LQYRLFHY SUHSDUHV MRXUQDOYV

+DQGOHV LQTXLULHV IURP JHQHVDUDBXEDYLE LWHOI\D UIBWEJ WBILVWHUYV
RUGHUV IRU QHZ FXVWRPHUYV DQG WUDQVIHUV UHFHLYHV GHSRVLWYV

3HUIRUPV GXWLHV RI VHFUHW NU\SR @ SIDQ HDW BIXIAK® \EED\RW GHUV  SUH
LQYRLFHV IRU SD\PHQW LRDH. QWD Y W IDQBRWRIQ EHWZHHQ YHQGRUV D



&LW\ Rl :DSDNRQHWD
$XJODL]H &RXQW\
6FKHGXOH RI )LQGLQJV

3DJH
FINDING NUMBER 2015-001
(Continued)

,Q WKH 6DIHW\ 6HUYLFH 'L ODHOR¥FRPWHABJIJBIRRAZHUWKH IXQGY DV IROORZV
(OHFWULF :DWHU 6HZHU DQG 5HIXVH :DJHV IRU WZR RI WKH &Ot
WR WKH IXQGV DV IROORZV (OGHHZ\HWLFD QG :DWSHU XV H $ WKLUG &OHU
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Operating under the Council/Mayor form of government, the citizens of Waptkelectight members
of council (including the president, three council memia¢targe, and four ward council members), a
mayor, auditor, treasurer, and law director. “It is the mission of Wapakoitgtgo@ernment to provide
for and promote the general healtlafety, and welfare of all residents of the City by deliveringices

in a professional, impartial, and cadtective manner and planning for the lerasnge development and
improvement of the City with an awareness of all the City’s collective needs”.

The City’s service responsibilities are administered by a number of differesiods and accounting
entities, including police, fire, emergency medical, street maintenpades and recreation, engineering
(including planning and zoning), electricater, sewer, storm sewer, and refuse (including recycling),
and various support staff, as well as a waste minimization committee anmédhsoimmission. These
divisions form the primary administrative unit of the City, responsible to QGityn€il and théviayor.

All funds, except agency funds, are required to be budgeted and appropriaeetkgal level of control
has been established by City Council at the fund, department, and object levduindsal City Council

is required to adoptnaoriginal budget no later thaApril 1 of the reporting year. This annual budget
serves as the foundation for the City of Wapakoneta's financial planning and control.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The City, incorporated in 1848, has been situated as a hub for commercergeugiithiits history in

1780 as the capital of the Shawnee Native American Nation led by such recognized leademnsshlecu
Blue Jacket, and Blackhoof. Through rail service, the City became a fwrghipping grain throughout

the country. At presenthe City of Wapakoneta is highly aggressive in drawing commerce to the area
and maintaining many small and nsg:ed industries, retail establishments, and antique dealers.

Industrial tool and die companies and machine shops have been a part of Wapakoneta history. In
addition, several general contractors are located in the area, as well as foodmygtasts, and several

firms specializing in furniture and decorating. With recycling being d tpgority nationwide,
Wapakoneta has two industrieddmted to recycling. There are nine industrial/commercial park sites in
Wapakoneta aloneThe City is committed to the continual rise and revitalization of existing reseu

while always on the lookout for new ways to improve the economy and community.

The City has a sizable Community Development Block Grantfpliw and currenyy hasfive loans
which pay the City the original principal loaned and interedgerestearned from these loagsves the
City a wonderful opportunity for reinvestmentthre City as well as an investment in keepthg citizens

of Wapakonetavorking. The City has made many loans over the yearsaaritiese loans are repaid, the
size of the fund grows.

The City of Wapakoneta received one of Ohio’s firdbb Ready Sitésgrants in January 2007 to
develop a 47-acre manufacturing site at the intersection of Interstdfe and US. 33. This siteis
designated as the West Central Ohio Industrial Ceritee infrastructure projects included extension of
sanitary sewer an@9kv electric lines to the site and construction of a railroad spur from $x C
Mainline Rail onto the site. This site iscertified under the Ohio Department of Developement’'s
certification standards. In 2012, the City completedthe entireinfrastructwe which expands the
usefulnes®f all the sites This includes industrial width roadways for the industrial park maikitrgly
shovel ready anbdeing markete@round the world. e West Central Ohio Industrial Cenkersbecome
one of Ohio’s firstand largestcertified green fieldmanufacturing si® It will put Wapakoneta in the
lead of economic development and promotion of our community.
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The City hosts many and varied retail and professional businesses, which are otardimgtgiuality
anddemonstrate aommitment to the community. The “downtown” area isipased of many specialty
shops;antiques, toys, flowers, books, furniture, and crafts to name a few. With the rencsabur
downtown, many offices and apartments round out thditred-streets.

The City addresses local issues, enhances economic development, provides optichianticgrates
potential for its citizens in an effort to keep our future on a path for growth.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Unappropiatedseneral Fund moniescarry forward at the end of the year. It has been the tradition for
the City to try to use excess monies for reconstruction of streets and thasguotltapital assets such as
fire trucks, ambulances, and police cruisers. With the recent increases in insurance rates,yssd)
natural gas prices, and utility rates, City Council is carefully trying to baltecignances to cover these
increases and not forego needed assets and wage increases.

While tradeoffs are sometimes necessdrig the goal of City Council to limit spending to areas which
are essential and will not compromise the services of the City.

City Council has always transferred monies from the General Fund to thedtle®éwer Improvement
capital projects fund. In 2015, the available fundsvere used for projects including repaving and
maintenance of streetsurbs and sidewalks.The City has always been able to maximize its available
resources angrants and towork with other communities, th@ounty,or theschools and get things done
to enhance the community.

There are no statutory requirements or policies on which City Councitéytto determine the amount
of fund balance they want to carry forward from year to year. It has been the traditis @ity to try
to appropriate everything necessary to operate an efficient and effective governthgmo\ade all
necessary services from administration to fire, police, emergency medical, and incosataxents.

These goals and traditions for budggtand spending are carried forward to every fund the City has and
every department the City operates. While some things cannot be predicted, oGiigil Gand
management all work closely together to determine what each department’s chadlethge=edsra

each year and what each department will need looking forward.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIE S

It is the City’s policy to ensure that current year revenues are sufficient tcduarmht year expenditures
without the use of nerecurring revenues. Apprdgtions are set based upon available revenues with
the City Council determining the level of funding for each department within the City

The City Auditor manages the investments of the City’s funds by adhering havéstment Policy that

has been appwved by the City Council. Any financial institution that holds City funds must adhere to the
requirements of the policy. This policy details the objectivesrales for the safekeeping of the City
funds.

The goal of the capital asset inventory systewh golicy is to provide control and accountability over the
City's capital assets and to assist departments in gathering and maintaining iniomestiled for the
preparation of the annual financial statements. The City recognizes theanuegodf preseing the
community’s capital assets and to ensure that future needs are met.



MAJOR INITIATIVES
Again in 2015 the City continued to improve its facilities and infrastructure to serve its citizens

The south interceptor sewer Phase Bow complete.Phase 2nvolvedsewerline installationdrom the
wastewater treatmemtiant following the riverto the lift stationlocated at Harrison and Watdrees.
We are fortunatéhat both of these projects were completed under budget.

A Community DevelopménBlock Grant was aarded to the Cityfor new sidewalks anchandicap
ramps This project is part of an overall larger projedtnew storm sewes, curts andgutters, and
pavingand shall commence in 2016Chis projectwill also utilize evolving loan resurces and local
funds.

The City was awarded a $160,0@xafe Routes to Scho@rant to install sidewalks, ADA curb ramps,
and safety measures for safe travel to schBblse Four has been awarded for 2017.

The City received a Nature Works Grant, ie imount of $12,397, which was used to convert a storage
facility at Harmon Parkinto arestroonfacility with a storage area on the north end. This provided public
restrooms to one of our city park facilities.

The City was awarded a Small Cities grant $treet reconstructioon West Auglaize Streetfrom
Blackhoof Streeto Pearl Seet. West Auglaize Street is a major thoroughfare through our community.
The total awardvas $1,840,000. The project includasgrads to the infrastructurejew curls and
guttess, sidewalks, treeandnewasphalt surface

The Gty perforns an asphalt overlagrogramannually to improve and maintain the quality of our
streets. Thigpast yeartwentythree catch basinsvere replaced anthree streets repave®authland
Street Cherry Laneand Wagner Street.

The annual reclarté program was performed in 201Reclamite is an asphalt rejuvenator which
promotes and extends the life of the existing asphalt surfasestreets were sealed; the cost of this
project was $29,500Nhis is an investment in extending the surface life of our streets.

The City also paired up with our local Apollivint Vocational School to build th®ptimist Park
restroom. Under guidance from one of Apollo’s instructors the students were involvedramiing,
roofing, andassisting wh electrical and plumbing workThis wasa learning experience for the dants
and assisted theit§ in stretching @y funds to improve our parks.

The Auglaizetraffic lights have been upgraded to an on demanddrdétection system whichllows
traffic to move in a much safer, efficient manner.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOd9dawvar
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in &irtial Reporting to the City of Wapakoneta for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the year ended December 381, P0i$ was the
twentyfifth consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to ledawvard
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readabédfiarehtly organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generallyedcaepbunting
principles and applicable legal requirements.






Xii



City of Wapakoneta
Organizational Chart

Citizens of Wapakoneta

Treasurer

Service-Safety

Dire

ctor

Council

Income Tax Administrator/
Office Manager

‘ Utility Office ‘ ‘ Income Tax
AP/
Payroll

| Public |_ Police |
Works
‘ Electric }> Fire/EMS ‘

Water
Treatment

Engineering |

Xiii

Recreation
Board

Recreation

[aial:



CITY OF WAPAKONETA
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

Mayor

Director of Public Service and Safety
Income TaxAdministratorOffice Manager
Police Chief

Fire ChiefEMS Diredor

Recreation Director

Public Works Superintendent

Electric Superintendent

Water Superintendent

Wastewater Superintendent
Engineering Superintendent

Auditor

Treasurer

Law Director
President of Council
Member of Council
Member of Council
Member of Council
Member of Council
Member of Council
Member of Council
Member of Council
Council Clerk

Civil Service Secretary

Xiv

Rodney C. Metz

William Rains
Diana L. Blackburn
Russel Hunlock
Kendall J. Krites
Jack R. Hayzlett
Meril W. Simpson
Donald E. Schnarre
Brent J. Hamel
Robert T. Burns
Mary A. Ruck

Wilbur Wells
Barbara Steinke

Dennis P. Faller

Stephen E. Henderson

Daniel C. Graf

Daniel Lee

Bonnie C. Wurst

James R. Neumeier
Chad Doll

Rachel Barber
Randy L. Fisher

Terry McDonald

Peter Noyes



FINANCIAL

SECTION






INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

City of Wapakoneta
Auglaize County

PO Box 269

701 Parlette Court
Wapakoneta, Ohio 45895

To the Members of Council:
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wapakoneta,
Auglaize County, Ohio (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibility fo  r the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit
standards in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those
standards require us to plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures
selected depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control
relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the extent needed to opine on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of management’'s accounting policies and the reasonableness of their
significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.

<"e— f-<'efZ Zf®facssur—&atrvrda A>-S«<' vwyvrt
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wapakoneta, Auglaize County, Ohio, as of
December 31, 2015 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2015, the City
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions and also GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. We did not modify
our opinion regarding this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to
include Management’s discussion and analysis, and schedules of net pension liabilities and pension
contributions listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. Although this
information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, consisting of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, to the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not opine or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to opine or provide any other assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted to opine on the City’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section, the financial section’s combining statements, individual fund statements and
schedules, and the statistical section information present additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The statements and schedules are management’s responsibility, and derive from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected
these statements and schedules to the auditing procedures we applied to the basic financial statements.
We also applied certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling statements and
schedules directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, these statements and schedules are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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We did not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Re quired by Gove rnment Auditi ng Standa rds

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 29,
2016, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. That report describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial reporting and
compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dave Yost
Auditor of State
Columbus, Ohio

August 29, 2016
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CITY OF WAPAKONETA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

(Unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of the City of Wapakoneta's financial performancgepram overview of
the City’s financial activities fothe year ended December 31, 2015. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the City’s financial performance as a whole.

HIGHLIGHTS
Highlights for 2015are as follows:

In total, the Citys net positiondecreased 10,904 or less thanl percent. Governmental
activities had a increase imet positionof $306,948(1 percent) antbusinessytpe activiteshad
a derease in net position 917,852 (Jercen}.

A review of the enterprise funds refleets operating incoméor the waterand refusdundsand

an operating loss for the electrigewer, and storm sewéinds. The City's dectric rates are
determined by contract witthe electric provider and these contracts typically are orbayéar

cycle. The Citys last cost of service studgompleted in 2010) determined thike rates being
charged forelectric are appropriateherefore, no rate chges arecurrently anticipated. The

sewer rates are on a scheduled increase by ordinance every year so the City can anticipate
increased costs without a rate study. Rates for all enterprise fuadsamitored by the
Administration to maintain the reveauneeded to operate these activiti®ates were increased

for the waterandsewerutilities in 205.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notessdostatements. The
statements are organized the reader can understand the City of Wapakoneta'’s financial position.

The statement afet positionand the statement of activitipsovide information about the activities of the
City as a whole, presenting both an aggregate and a lmrgeview d the City.

Fund financial statements provide a greater level of detail. For gosatahfunds, these statements tell
how services were financed in the siterm and what remains for future spending. Fund financial
statements report the City’'s mogjrificant funds individually and the City’s nonmajor funds in a single
column. The City’s major funds are the General, Street and Sewer Imprdyé&teetric, Water, Sewer,
Storm Sewer, and Refuse funds.

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The statement ofiet positionand the statement of activities reflect how @ity did financially during
2015 These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual asiswoiting similar to
that which is used by most privadector companies. Thimsis of accounting considers all of the current
year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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These statements report the City&t positionand changes in net position. This change in net pos#tion
important becausi tells the reader whether the financial position of the City as a whole lraased or
decreased from the prior year. Over time, these increases and/or decreases are aweoingivather

the financial position is improving or deteriorating. Gsufor these changes may be the result of many
factors, some financial, some not. Namancial factors can include changes in the City’s property tax
base and the condition of the City’s capital assets (buildings, streetsicelwater, sewer, and sta
sewer lines). These factors must be considered when assessing the ovénaf tigalCity.

In the statement ofet positionand the statement of activities, the City is divided into two types of
activities:

X Governmental Activities Most of theCity’'s programs and services are reported here including
security of persons and property, public health, leisure time adivit@nmunity environment,
transportation, and general government. These services are primarilg foygeoperty and
income taxes and from intergovernmental revenues, including federal andratateand other
shared revenues.

X BusinessFype Activities- These services are provided on a charge for services basis and are
intended to recover all or most of the costs of the sesvizovided. The City’s electric, water,
sewer, storm sewer, and refuse services are reported here.

REPORTING THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Cigjerriunds, the General, Street
ard Sewer Improvement, Electric, Water, Sewer, Storm Sewer, and Refhgse fWhile the City uses
many funds to account for its financial transactions, these are the moficaigni

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain com&roresources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, ltkeerostate and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finelated legal requirements. All of
the funds of theCity can be divided into three categories; governmental funds, proprietary fuwds, a
fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds The City’s governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
programs reported as governmental activities on thergaventwide financial statements. Most of the
City's basic services are reported in these funds and focus on how mmnsyrfto and out of the funds

as well as the balances available for spending at year end. These funds réeel @pdhe modified
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial thsgetan be readily
converted to cash. The governmental fund financial statementsi@m@wetailed shoterm view of the
City's general government operations and the basic services being provided.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of thaengenewvide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for gamainiunds with similar
information presented for governmal activities on the governmewide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the-teng impact of the City’s sheterm financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statenesenaks, expenditures, and
change in fund balance provide a reconciliation to help make this comparison rbgmweenmental
funds and governmental activities.
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The City maintains a multitude of individual governmental funds. Informéadipnesented sepely on
the governmental fund balance sheet and on the governmental fund stateregahoés, expenditures,
and change in fund balances for the major funds, which were identifiidr.eaData from other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentatimidulal fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining staseetsewhere in this
report.

Proprietary Funds The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterpusdsf are

used to report the same functions presented as busgypesactivities on the governmewtde financial
statements and use the accrual basis of accounting. The City usessenfernuls to account for electric,
water, sewer, storm sewendarefuse operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate internal costs among other programs and activitiemtefina service fund

used by the City accounts for engineering services that are providdetalepartments of the City or to
other governmental units. Monthly fees are paid on an hourly scale and any balaaog anheld until

used.

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of partigs outs
the City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected on the governmate financial statements because the
resources from these funds are not available to support the City’s programs. Tiussal$o use the
accrual basis of accounting.

Notes to the Financigbtatements The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided on the governméaig-and fund financial statements.

Other Information In addition to the basic financial statements and accompangies, this report also
presents combining and individual fund statements and schedules.

GOVERNMENT -WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Table 1 provides a summarf/the City’snet positiorfor 2015 and 2014.

Table 1
Net Position
Governmental Actities BusinessType Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Current and Other
Assets $6,344,285  $6,425,670 $14,369,191 $16,802,333 $20,713,476 $23,228,00:
Capital Assets, Net 22,050,99¢ 21,251,903 58,935537 56,575,517 80,986,536 77,827,42(
Total Assets 28,395,284 27,677,573 73,304,728 73,377,850 101,700,012 101,055,42:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Pension 719,484 461,347 325,108 223,469 1,044,592 684,81¢

(continued’
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Table 1
Net Position
(continued)

Governmental Activities BusinessType Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Liabilities
Current and Other

Liabilities $820,190 $344,530 $1,946,719 $2,895,281 $2,766,909 $3,239,811
Long-Term Liabilities

Pension 5,229,577 4,951,711 1,831,995 1,790,614 7,061,572 6,742,32¢
Other Amounts 548,221 655,994 27,683,812 25,862,446 28,232,033 26,518,44(
Total Liabilities 6,597988 5,952,235 31,462,526 30,548,341 38,060,514 36,500,57¢
Deferred Inflows

of Resources
Pension 16,580 0 32,184 0 48,764 0
Other Amounts 468,073 461,506 0 0 468,073 461,50€
Total Deferred Inflows

of Resources 484,653 461,506 32,184 0 516,837 461,50€
Net Position
Net Investment in

Capital Assets 22,020,40z 21,180,841 33,120,662 32,786,072 55,141,064 53,966,91:
Restricted 1,547,218 2,388,193 1,254,595 1,256,749 2,801,813 3,644,94;
Unrestricted Deficit) (1,535,493 (1,843,855 7,759,869 9,010,157 6,224,376 7,166,302
Total Net Position $22,032,127 $21,725,17¢ $42,135,126 $43,052,978 $64,167,253 $64,778,15

During 2015 the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards BdaalsB) StatementNo.

68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensionshich significantly revises accounting for
pension costs and liabilities.For reasons discussed below, end users edefinancial statemestwill
gain a cleareunderstanding of the City'actual financial condition by adding deferred inflows related to
pension and the net pension liability to the reported net position and subtracénmgdieutflows related

to pension.

GASB standards are natal standardsand apply to all government financial reports prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principlghen accounting for pension cosGASB
Statement No. 27 focused on a funding approach. This approach limited pensioon costsitiutions
annually required by law, which may or may not be sufficient to fully feadh plan’snet pension
liability. GASB Statement No. 68 takes an earnings approach to pension accountiege the nature

of Ohio’s statewide pension systerasid Sate law governing those systems requires additional
explanation in order to properly understand the information presented irsthEsaents.

Under the new standards required by GASB Statement No. 68, thensairpkability equals th€ity’s
proportionate share of each plan’'s collectipeesent value of estimated future pension benefits
attributable to active and inactive employees’ past semigwis pan assets available to pay these
benefits.
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GASB notes that pension obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are part téntpyment
exchange; that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for wageditdhemd the
promise of a future pension. GASB noted that the unfunded portion of this ppnsinise is a present
obligation of the government, part of a bargairfedbenefit to the employee, and should accordingly be
reported by the government as a liability since they received the benefit ofctteng®. However, the
City is not responsible for certain key factors efiieg the balance of this liability. In Ohio, the employee
shares the obligation of funding pension benefits with the emploath employer and employee
contribution rates are capped btag statute. A change in these caps requires action ohbbs of
the Geneal Assemblyand approval of the Governor. Benefit provisions are also determined by State
statute. The employee enters the employment exchange with the knowledge thatldlyer&sypromise

is limited not by contract but by law. The employer enters the exchang&raging that there is a
specific legal limit to its contribution to the pension system. In Cthiere is no legal means to enforce
the unfunded liability of the pension systesgainst the public employer State law operateto
mitigate/lessen the moral obligation of the public employer to theoyeplbecause all parties enter the
employment exchange with notice as to the law. The pension system is responsit@defministration

of the plan.

Most longterm liabilities have set repayment schedules or in the case of compensated absences (i.e.
vacation and sickelave) are satisfied through paid tiro# or termination payments. There is no
repayment schedule for the net pension liability. As explained above, changession benefits,
contribution rates, and return on investments affect the balance réttpension liability but are outside

the control of theCity. In the event that contributions, investment retuarsl other changes are
insufficient to keep up ith required pension paymentstate statute does not assign/identify the
responsible party for the unfunded portioDue to the unique nature of how the net pension liability is
satisfied, this liability is separately identified within the laagm liabilty section of the statement of net
position.

In accordance with GASB Statement N&8, the City’s statements prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting include an annual pension expense for their proportionate skah ¢hn’s changein net
pensionilbility not accounted for as deferrediflows/inflows.

As a result of implementing GASBtatement No. 68, th€ity is reporting a net pension liability and
deferredoutflows/inflows of resources rated to pension on the accrual basis of accountingis T
implementation also had the effect of restating net position at Decemb2011from $70,835,666 to
$64,778,157.

For governmental activities, there was an overaliease in net position df percent As a result, the
only change of notan the dove tablds the increase in current and other liabilities. This increase is due
to outstanding liabilities for contracts and retainage relatedetdMbst Auglaize Street reconstruction
project which was largely funded with a small cities grant. Also, note a decreadeicteeset position

as a result of resources spent for construction activities.
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Although the overall change in net position for busifgps activities was not significant (2 percent
decreask there wereseveral changes note. Thedecrease in current and other assets geaterally due

to adecrease in cash and cash equivalemtd primarily related to the Electric Fund. The year end
balance of cash decreased over $2 million from the prior year as the City chosertthe large cash
balance. Note the overall decrease in unrestricted net position as a result. Oveladlaasts were
further reduced with the acquisition of capital assets. The s&r@anet capital assets represents both
cash acquisitions as Weas ongoing construction financed with additional debt proceeds as evidenced by
the increase in other lorigrm liabilities. The decrease in current and other liabilities is retatéue
City's purchase of power for redistribution through its eledyistem. At the end of the prior year, the
City had a liability for two months of wholesale power whereas for 2015, theseomg@ a one month
liability for wholesale power as of year end.

Table 2 reflectstte change imet positiorfor 2015 and 2014

Table 2
Change irNetPosition

Governmental Activities BusinessType Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $911,300 $768,728 $21,444,60Z $21,274040 $22,355,902 $22,042,768
Operating Grants,
Contributions, and Interes 541,534 509,078 0 0 541,534 509,078
Capital Grants and
Contributions 1,537,762 606,014 0 246,836 1,537,762 852,850

Total Program Revenues 2,990596 1,883,820 21,444,602 21,520,876 24,435,198 23,404,696
General Revenues

Property Taxe€seneral
Purposes 369,966 362,175 0 0 369,966 362,175
Property Taxefecreation 97,698 95,171 0 0 97,698 95,171
Municipal Income Taxes 2,645,764 2,602,279 0 0 2,645,764 2,602,279
Other Local Taxes 1,081,260 722,090 0 0 1,081,260 722,090
Grants and Entitlements 256,699 254,085 0 0 256,699 254,085
Franchise Taxes 79,168 144,915 0 0 79,168 144,915
Interest 10,215 15,376 564 0 10,779 15,376
Gifts and Donations 57,483 1,040 0 0 57,483 1,040
Other 73,657 58,133 65,294 78,660 138,951 136,793
Total General Revenues 4,671,910 4,255,264 65,858 78,660 4,737,768 4,333,924
Total Revenues 7,662,506 6,139,084 21,510,460 21,599,536 29,172,966 27,738,620

(continued)
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Table 2
Change in Net Position
(continued)

Governmental Activities BusinessType Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Program Expenses
Security of Persons and

Property

Police $1,683,537 $1,613,384 $0 $0 $1,683,537 $1,613,384

Fire 1,616,058 1,514,617 0 0 1,616,058 1,514,617
Other 2,833 4,426 0 0 2,833 4,426
Pubic Health 196,477 162,403 0 0 196,477 162,403
Leisure Time Activities 431,140 484,814 0 0 431,140 484,814
Community Environment 91,948 126,153 0 0 91,948 126,153
Transportation 1,341,215 1,911,883 0 0 1,341,215 1,911,883
General Goernment 539,899 594,323 0 0 539,899 594,323
Interest and Fiscal Charges 10,379 8,219 0 0 10,379 8,219
Electric 0 0 16,353,457 15,259,517 16,353,457 15,259,517
Water 0 0 2,187,437 2,041,383 2,187,437 2,041,383
Sewer 0 0 3,976,364 1,978,245 3,976,364 1,978,245
Storm Sewer 0 0 219,091 155,091 219,091 155,091
Refuse 0 0 1,134,035 1,102,022 1,134,035 1,102,022
Total Expenses 5,913,486 6,420,222 23,870,384 20,536,258 29,783,870 26,956,480

Increase (Decreasi) Net
Position Before Transfers 1,749,020 (281,138) (2,359,924 1,063,278  (610,904) 782,140

Transfers (1,442,072) (26,000) 1,442,072 26,000 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in
Net Position 306,948 (307,138) (917,852 1,089,278 (610,904, 782,140
Net Position Beginning
of Year 21,725,179 n/a 43,052,978 n/s 64,778,157 n/a

Net Position End of Year ~ $22,032,127 $21,725,179 $42,135,12€ $43,052,97¢ $64,167,253 $64,778,157

Theinformation necessary to restate the £20&ginningbalance and the 2@8Jension expensaraunts

for the effects of the initial implementation of GASBatement No. 68 is not available. Therefore, 2014
functional expenses still include pension expenses8#816 computed under GASRatement No27.

GASB Statement No. 27 required recognizing pension expense equal to the contraetaiigdr
contributions to the planUnder GASBStatement No. 68, pension expense represents additional amounts
earned adjusted by deferrediflows/inflows. The contractuly required contribution is no longer a
component of pension expense. Under GASB Statement No. 68, 2015 statements report pensen expe
of $720,007. Consequently, in order to compare 2015 total program expenses to 20aHowlregf
adjustments are needed.

Total 2015 Program Expenses under GASB Statement No. 68 $29,783,870
Pension Expense under GASB Statement No. 68 (720,007
2015 Contractually Required Contribution 711,772

Adjusted 2015 Program Expenses 29,775,635

Total 2014 Program Expees under GASB Statement No. 27 (26,956,480

Increase in Program Expenses not Related to Pension $2,819,155
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For governmental activities, there wasiaable increase in program revenues due to grant resources
received for street reconstruction (smaties grant for the West Auglaize Street reconstruction). The
most significant change for general revenues is the increase in other losadliax® an increase in the
kilowatt tax (based on electric usage) which is required to be tappst to the @y’'s General Fund.

The change in expenses was not significant.

For businessype activities, program revenugsthe form of charges for servicexyntinue tofund the
operation of the City’s utilitiesCharges for services revenwas similar to therior year. The decrease

in capital grants and contributions was due to capital assets donated in theeprior Hhe most
significant changes for businegge activities expenses are found in the Electric Fund due to msterial
and supplies purchasescdin the Sewer Fund for depreciation.

Table 3, indicates the total cost of services and the net cost of servigesdonmental activities. The
statement of activities reflects the cost of program services and the chargesvices, grants, and
cortributions offsetting those services. The net cost of services idsntlie cost of those services
supported by tax revenues and unrestricted intergovernmental revenues.

Table 3
Governmental Activities
Total Cost of Services Net Cost ofServices
2015 2014 2015 2014

Security of Persons and Property

Police $1,683,537 $1,613,384 $1,673,907 $1,605,294

Fire 1,616,058 1,514,617 1,543,403 1,463,630

Other 2,833 4,426 2,833 4,426
Public Health 196,477 162,403 (280,229) (239,265)
Leisure Time Activities 431,140 484,814 189,408 247,256
Community Environment 91,948 126,153 79,343 117,348
Transportation 1,341,215 1,911,883 (818,449) 751,319
General Government 539,899 594,323 522,295 578,175
Interestand Fiscal Charges 10,379 8,219 10,379 8,219
Total Expenses $5,913,486 $6,420,222 $2,922,890 $4,536,402

While a substantial percentage of the revenues to provide governmentaleacsigitvices are derived
from the City’s general revenues (primarily municipal income taxes, otbak taxes, and State shared
revenues), note that several of the City’s programs were able to offsetloasigh program revenues
including thepublic health leisure time activitiesand transportatioprograms. Public health expenses
are primarily funded by EMS and ambulance charges received during the yedeisliteetime activities
program is funded from gifts and donations as well as usagefdeethe swimming pool. The
transportation program receives charges for services in the form of permissive vahicle license
monies. The transportation program also receives operating monies inrtheff&tate levied motor
vehicle license fees and gas taxes.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The City’s majorgovernmental funds are the General Fund an&tteet and Sewer Improve mexapital

projects fund.Resources in the General Fund have no limitations on their hite thve resources of the
Street and Sewer Improvement Fund are limited to infrastructure improteme
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The General Fund reflects 26 percentincreasein fund balance Revenues increased approximately
$462,000 largely due to the increase in other local taxes, as discusgraigly, and there was a very
modest decrease in expenditures. atidition, there was a decrease of approximately $177,000 in
resources transferred to other funds to subsidize activities of those funds.

Fund balance in th&treet and Sewer Improvemecdpital projects fund decreased significantly as
resources were uséar various construction and improvement projects.

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The City’s enterprise funds are the Electric, Water, Sewer, Storm SaweeRefuse fundskesources of
these funds are limited to the provision of elegtiater, sewer, storm sewer, and refuse collection
services, as applicable.

The Electric Fund hadn operating loss and a 6 percel@crease in net positionAs noted earlier, the
City is reducing the substantial balance of this fund.

TheWater Funchad an operating income andery modest increasa net position(less than 1 percent)
Revenueavere similar to the prior year and operating expenses increased slighttyestrexpense on
debt decreased over $256,000.

Although the Sewer Fund had an operating loss and decrease in net position, thesittaity taoke
even for the year.

The Storm Sewer utility provigghe City the ability to undertake storm water separation. The EPA has
mandated the separation of storm water and sanitary seieesStorm Sewer funddad avery modest
operating loss for 2015; however, there was an increase in net position dpéaboontributions.

The City's Refuse Fund continued to reflaateficit net positionas of yeaend however, the deficit was
reduced due to an operating income.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City prepares an annual budget of revenues and expenditures/expeaifsifids of the City for
use by City officials and department heads and such other budgetary documenteaquirac: oy Sate
statute, including the annual appropriations ordinance which is passed byoQitgilbefore April 1
each year. The City operates under a temporary budget for the first thréws wfogdch year.

The City’s most significant budgeted fund is the General Fural. revenues, there was little change
from the original budget to the final budget. Actual revenues exceeded budgetedsathmirtb
conservative budgeting of municipal income taxes and the increase in oth¢axesamentioned earlier.
For expendituresthere was alsbittle change from the original budget to the final budget; however, actual
expenditures were less than amounts budgef€his is primarily due to conservative budgeting as
expenditures were less than amounts budgeted fpragfams.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets The City’s investment in capital assets for governmental and busypessadivities as
of December 31, 2@&] was £2,020,402and $3,120,662respectively (net of accumulated despation
and relatedieb). Significant additions for governmental activities included street ingpnewnts andew
vehicles. Disposals were minimal.

For businesdype activities, themost significant additionsconsisted of continuing infrastructure
construction and vehicles. Disposals were minimal. For further informadgarding the City's capital
assets, refer thote 10to the basic financial statements.

Debt - At December 31, @5 the City had a number of lodgrm obligations outstanding.
Governmental activities obligations consisted of equipment loafithe businestype activites
obligations included$6,780,000in mortgage revenue bonds18468,055in OWDA loans, and
$1,211,600in landfill postclosure costs.In addition to the debt dined above, the City’s lontgerm
obligations also includa loan for energy efficiency improvements, capital leasmapensated absences
and the net pension liability=or further information regarding the Citydebt refer to Notes 7, 18 and
19 tothe basic financial statements.

CURRENT ISSUES

Phasdl of the south interceptor sewer projegts completd in 2015. The project involvd sewer line
installation from the wastewater treatment plant to the Harrison arel tegets lift station.

The City received a Community Development Block Grant for new sidewalks ardichgnramps on
Gibb Street. This project is part of an overall larger project of stewn sewers, curbs and gutters, and
paving over the next three years. This grant did not require any matchindgriimdbe City.

The City was awarded a $160,000 Safe Routes to School grant to install ksjleéMzA curb ramps, and
safety measures for safe travels to school. This was the third phase lgffarfdéd grant projedthat
will continue into 2017

The West Auglaize Street projecontinued throughouR015. Thiswas the City’'s most significant
project for the2015 The project involveé a complete reconstruction of the underground utility lines
including the gas lines and water and sewer lines, new roadbesidamalks, curbs, and gutter§rees
and some landscape wosill be completed in 2016.

Other projects the City is currently working on for 8Cdre the annual reclamite program and street
repaving.

REQUEST FOR INFORMAT ION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overviewhefQity’'s finances for all those
interested in our City’'s financial well being. Questions concerning anlyeoinformation provided in

this report or requests for additional infotioa should be directed td/ilbur Wells, Wapakoneta City
Auditor, 701 Parlette Court, P.O. Box 269, Wapakoneta, Ohio 45895.
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City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $3,329,006 $8,265,856 $11,594,8
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agents 0 1,308,582 1,308,58:
Accounts Receivable 304,749 2,880,352 3,185,1C
Due from Other Governments 631,878 16,767 648,64
Municipal Income Taxes Receivable 970,573 0 970,57¢
Other Local Taxes Receivable 6,940 59,172 66,11:
Internal Balances 37,694 (37,694) 0
Prepaid Items 34,463 81,613 116,071
Materials and Supplies Inventory 41,525 1,794,543 1,836,06
Accrued Interest Receivable 1,997 0 1,997
Property Taxes Receivable 473,680 0 473,68(
Notes Receivable 461,012 0 461,01z
Special Assessments Receivable 50,768 0 50,768
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 1,449,852 13,303,507 14,753,3¢
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 20,601,147 45,632,030 66,233,1
Total Assets 28,395,284 73,304,728 101,700,0.
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension 719,484 325,108 1,044,59
Liabilities
Accrued Wages Payable 170,942 65,322 236,26
Accounts Payable 79,455 352,143 431,59
Contracts Payable 355,509 1,050,088 1,405,5¢
Due to Other Governments 101,556 39,864 141,42
Retainage Payable 111,645 0 111,64¢
Accrued Interest Payable 1,083 185,007 186,09(
Refundable Deposits 0 254,295 254,29t
Long-Term Liabilities

Due Within One Year 200,541 993,444 1,193,98

Due in More Than One Year

Net Pension Liability 5,229,577 1,831,995 7,061,57
Other Amounts Due in More Than One Year 347,680 26,690,368 27,038,0¢

Total Liabilities 6,597,988 31,462,526 38,060,5:
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 468,073 0 468,07:
Pension 16,580 32,184 48,76¢
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 484,653 32,184 516,83
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 22,020,402 33,120,662 55,141,0t
Restricted for

Debt Service 77 0 77

Capital Projects 132,894 0 132,894

Community Environment 653,241 0 653,241

Recreation 11,136 0 11,136

Street and Highway Maintenance and Repair 701,591 0 701,591

Other Purposes 48,279 0 48,279

Revenue Bond Replacement 0 100,000 100,00(

Future Debt Service 0 1,154,595 1,154,59!
Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,535,493) 7,759,869 6,224,317
Total Net Position $22,032,127 $42,135,126 $64,167,2

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental Activities

Security of Persons and Property

Police

Fire

Other
Public Health
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Transportation
General Government
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Electric

Water

Sewer

Storm Sewer

Refuse

Total Business-Type Activities

Total

City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Program Revenues

Operating Capital

Charges Grants, Contributions, Grants and

Expenses for Services and Interest Contributions
$1,683,537 $6,820 $2,810 $
1,616,058 50,320 22,335 0
2,833 0 0 0
196,477 476,706 0 0
431,140 211,839 29,893 0
91,948 0 12,605 0
1,341,215 148,011 473,891 1,537,7
539,899 17,604 0 0
10,379 0 0 0
5,913,486 911,300 541,534 1,537,7
16,353,457 14,861,386 0 0
2,187,437 1,870,405 0 0
3,976,364 3,316,260 0 0
219,091 161,136 0 0
1,134,035 1,235,415 0 0
23,870,384 21,444,602 0 0
$29,783,870 $22,355,902 $541,534 $1,537,

General Revenues

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes Levied for Recreation
Municipal Income Taxes

Other Local Taxes - Kilowatt

Other Local Taxes - Lodging

Grants and Entitlements not Restricted to Specific Programs
Franchise Taxes

Interest

Gifts and Donations

Other

Total General Revenues

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Positic

Net Position Beginning of Year - Restated (Note 3)

Net Position End of Year

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and Change in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
($1,673,907) $0 ($1,673,907)
(1,543,403) 0 (1,543,403)
(2,833) 0 (2,833)
280,229 0 280,229
(189,408) 0 (189,408)
(79,343) 0 (79,343)
818,449 0 818,449
(522,295) 0 (522,295)
(10,379) 0 (10,379)
(2,922,890) 0 (2,922,890)
0 (1,492,071) (1,492,071)
0 (317,032) (317,032)
0 (660,104) (660,104)
0 (57,955) (57,955)
0 101,380 101,380
0 (2,425,782) (2,425,782)
(2,922,890) (2,425,782) (5,348,672)
369,966 0 369,966
97,698 0 97,698
2,645,764 0 2,645,764
1,080,171 0 1,080,171
1,089 0 1,089
256,699 0 256,699
79,168 0 79,168
10,215 564 10,779
57,483 0 57,483
73,657 65,294 138,951
4,671,910 65,858 4,737,768
(1,442,072) 1,442,072 0
3,229,838 1,507,930 4,737,768
306,948 (917,852) (610,904)
21,725,179 43,052,978 64,778,157
$22,032,127 $42,135,126 $64,167,253

17



Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Municipal Income Taxes Receivable
Other Local Taxes Receivable
Interfund Receivable
Prepaid Items
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Accrued Interest Receivable
Restricted Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Property Taxes Receivable
Notes Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accrued Wages Payable
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable

Due to Other Governments
Interfund Payable
Retainage Payable

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property Taxes
Unavailable Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balance
Nonspendable
Restricted

Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balance

City of Wapakoneta
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015

Street Total
and Sewer Other Governmente

General Improvement Governmental Funds
$1,751,812 $291,877 $1,236,525 $3,280,2
280,877 0 23,872 304,749
122,959 268,080 240,839 631,87
970,573 0 0 970,573
703 0 6,237 6,940
55,030 0 0 55,030
25,995 0 6,466 32,461
17,691 0 21,751 39,442
0 1,997 0 1,997
36,841 0 0 36,841
374,011 0 99,669 473,680
286,011 0 175,001 461,01z
0 50,768 0 50,768
$3,922,503 $612,722 $1,810,360 $6,345,%
$159,712 $0 $6,472 $166,18
69,875 525 8,340 78,74
0 350,411 5,098 355,50!
93,746 2,835 3,107 99,68
6,715 14,412 27,573 48,70
0 111,645 0 111,645
330,048 479,828 50,590 860,4¢
369,502 0 98,571 468,073
1,117,681 122,657 210,215 1,450,5
1,487,183 122,657 308,786 1,918,6
80,527 0 28,217 108,744
2,698 10,237 1,191,004 1,203,9:
765,135 0 233,152 998,287
1,256,912 0 (1,389) 1,255,523
2,105,272 10,237 1,450,984 3,566,4
$3,922,503 $612,722 $1,810,360 $6,345,%

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Wapakoneta
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance
to Net Position of Governmental Activities
December 31, 2015

Total Governmental Fund Balance $3,566,493

Amounts reported for governmental activities on the
statement of net position are different because of theviolip

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Activities 22,050,999
Internal Service Fund (40,896)
22,010,103
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as
unavailable revenue in the funds.
Accounts Receivable 261,877
Due from Other Governments 371,083
Municipal Income Taxes Receivable 759,221
Delinquent Property Taxes Receivable 5,607
Special Assessments Receivable 52,765
1,450,553
An internal balance is recorded in governmental activities
to reflect overpayments to the internal service fund by the
business-type activities. 11,945
Accrued interest on outstanding debt is not due and payable in
the current period and, therefore, is not reported in the funds;
it is reported when due. (2,083)
Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Loans Payable (129,929)
Capital Leases Payable (30,597)
Compensated Absences Payable (387,695)
Compensated Absences Payable-Internal Service Fund 12,141
(536,080)
The net pension liability is not due and payable in the current
period, therefore, the liability and related deferred
outflows/inflows are not reported in the governmental funds.
Deferred Outflows - Pension 719,484
Deferred Outflows - Pension - Internal Service Fund (24,629)
Deferred Inflows - Pension (16,580)
Deferred Inflows - Pension - Internal Service Fund 2,438
Net Pension Liability (5,229,577)
Net Pension Liability - Internal Service Fund 138,787
(4,410,077
An internal service fund is used by management to charge
the cost of engineering services to individual funds. The assets
and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in
governmental activities on the statement of net position. (59,727)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $22,032,127

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Revenues

Property Taxes
Municipal Income Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Special Assessments
Charges for Services
Fees, Licenses, and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest

Gifts and Donations
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Security of Persons and Property

Police

Fire

Other
Public Health
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Transportation
General Government

Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Street Total
and Sewer Other Governmenta

General Improvement Governmental Funds
$368,248 $0 $97,272 $465,52
2,665,795 0 0 2,665,795
1,081,260 0 76,616 1,157,87¢
0 27,686 0 27,686
696,462 0 55,077 751,539
113,940 0 0 113,940
17,997 0 2,358 20,355
295,568 1,469,870 477,214 2,242,6
11,464 2,874 22,643 36,98
58,903 0 14,125 73,028
34,246 2,905 36,506 73,65
5,343,883 1,503,335 781,811 7,629,0
1,606,999 0 1,200 1,608,199
1,557,429 0 169,550 1,726,97¢
4,504 0 0 4,504
177,468 0 0 177,468
227,546 0 135,594 363,14C
82,216 0 11,856 94,072
0 3,142,355 492,497 3,634,85
531,671 0 0 531,671
68,633 0 11,870 80,503
10,449 0 525 10,974
4,266,915 3,142,355 823,092 8,232,3
1,076,968 (1,639,020) (41,281) (603,3.
0 625,000 15,000 640,00
(640,000) 0 0 (640,000)
(640,000) 625,000 15,000 0
436,968 (1,014,020) (26,281) (603,3:
1,668,304 1,024,257 1,477,265 4,169,8
$2,105,272 $10,237 $1,450,984 $3,566,4

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Wapakoneta
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds ($603,333;

Amounts reported for governmental activities on the
statement of activities are different because of the following:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, siatéreent of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful livesessation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation inrteatcyear.

Capital Outlay 1,971,622
Depreciation (1,053,969)
Depreciation-Internal Service Fund 1,873
919,526
The cost of the capital assets is removed from the capital asset acgttlumstatement
of net position when disposed of resulting in a loss on disposal of capital assets o
the statement of activities. (118,557)
Revenues on the statement of activities that do not provide current finanmiatessare not
reported as revenues in governmental funds.
Delinquent Property Taxes 2,144
Municipal Income Taxes (20,031)
Special Assessments (23,954)
Charges for Services 56,567
Fees, Licenses, and Permits (32,281)
Intergovernmental 55,155
Interest (4,123)
33,477
Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but thmezpa
reduces long-term liabilities on the statement of net position.
Capital Loans Payable 11,870
Loans Payable 40,038
Capital Leases Payable 28,595
80,503
Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental fundaciouiésl on
outstanding debt on the statement of net position. 595
Some expenses reported on the statement of activities do not require thewsenbfinancial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmestal fun
Compensated Absences Payable-Governmental Activities 27,270
Compensated Absences Payable-Internal Service Fund (632)
26,638
(continued)
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City of Wapakoneta
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
(continued)

Except for amounts reported as deferred outflows/inflows, changes

in the net pension liability are reported as pension expense on the
statement of activities.

Pension Expense
Pension Expense - Internal Service Fund

($520,723)
15,097
(505,626)
Contractually required contributions are reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds, however, the statement of net position
reports these amounts as deferred outflows.
Contractually Required Contributions 484,414
Contractually Required Contributions - Internal Service Fund (17,224)
467,190
The internal service fund used by management to charge the cost of engiseeiites to
individual funds is not reported on the statement of activities. Governmengalditxpes and
related internal service fund revenues are eliminated. The change fomgentifunds is
reported for the year. 6,535
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $306,948
See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues
Property Taxes $350,350 $368,215 $368,248 $l
Municipal Income Taxes 2,450,000 2,459,000 2,663,083 204,0
Other Local Taxes 691,000 775,960 1,086,091 310,1:
Charges for Services 685,700 700,455 701,879 1,42
Fees, Licenses, and Permits 87,550 97,250 113,940 16,6¢
Fines and Forfeitures 11,500 13,000 17,466 4,46
Intergovernmental 245,500 279,362 296,579 17,21
Interest 17,500 7,900 11,752 3,85
Gifts and Donations 2,000 1,700 58,903 57,20
Other 23,350 33,808 54,321 20,51
Total Revenues 4,564,450 4,736,650 5,372,262 635,6
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Police 1,769,502 1,749,501 1,642,466 107,0
Fire 1,536,722 1,516,722 1,489,716 27,0
Other 7,100 7,100 4,673 2,42
Public Health 229,533 224,532 192,102 32,4
Leisure Time Activities 273,560 273,560 233,433 40,1z
Community Environment 123,094 108,094 77,697 30,3¢
General Government 720,237 952,437 852,784 99,6¢
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 40,038 40,038 40,038 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 6,962 6,962 6,306 65¢
Total Expenditures 4,706,748 4,878,946 4,539,215 339,7
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (142,298) (142,296) 833,047 975,3¢
Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out (655,000) (640,000) (640,000) 0
Change in Fund Balance (797,298) (782,296) 193,047 975,3¢
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,473,574 1,473,574 1,473,574 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 56,920 56,920 56,920 0
Fund Balance End of Year $733,196 $748,198 $1,723,541 $975,3

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Wapakoneta

Statement of Fund Net Position

Assets

Current Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agents
Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Other Local Taxes Receivable

Interfund Receivable

Prepaid Items

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agents
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accrued Wages Payable
Accounts Payable

Contracts Payable

Due to Other Governments
Interfund Payable

Accrued Interest Payable
Mortgage Revenue Bonds Payable
OWDA Loans Payable

Loans Payable

Capital Leases Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Landfill Postclosure Costs Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2015

Business-Type Activities

Storm

Electric Water Sewer Sewer
$4,445,250 $917,569 $1,371,514 $743,1
178,390 0 0 0
2,074,803 259,861 383,397 13,1(
840 0 175 0
59,172 0 0 0
168,817 1,669 443 7¢
42,911 13,984 16,496 0
1,574,172 171,550 48,821 0
8,544,355 1,364,633 1,820,846 756,3
254,295 0 461,029 0

0 0 1,130,192 0

205,559 560,664 12,209,183 0
14,972,646 15,140,252 11,912,792 2,790,k
15,432,500 15,700,916 25,713,196 2,790,k
23,976,855 17,065,549 27,534,042 3,546,¢
137,924 49,259 83,740 0
24,568 11,762 16,931 0
236,877 31,701 51,623 1,50
984,529 0 39,944 0
14,398 4,831 15,647 0
55,335 11,865 16,679 5.

0 157,858 27,149 0

0 0 485,000 0

0 167,545 0 0

0 0 105,582 0
0 0 25,578 25,578

32,239 16,490 17,655 0

0 0 0 0
1,347,946 402,052 801,788 27,1:
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Governmental

Activity
Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Refuse Funds Fund
$73,071 $7,550,532 $11,95
0 178,390 0
149,182 2,880,352 0
15,752 16,767 0
0 59,172 0
477 171,484 19,66¢
8,222 81,613 2,00z
0 1,794,543 2,083
246,704 12,732,853 35,70
0 715,324 0
0 1,130,192 0
328,101 13,303,507 0
815,796 45,632,030 40,89
1,143,897 60,781,053 40,89
1,390,601 73,513,906 76,59
54,185 325,108 24,62¢
12,061 65,322 4,75¢
30,442 352,143 71t
25,615 1,050,088 0
4,988 39,864 1,86¢
113,302 197,233 24t
0 185,007 0
0 485,000 0
0 167,545 0
0 105,582 0
26,209 77,365 0
14,026 80,410 8,04
77,542 77,542 0
304,185 2,883,101 15,63
(continued)
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Non-Current Liabilities

Refundable Deposits

Mortgage Revenue Bonds Payable
OWDA Loans Payable

Net Pension Liability

Loans Payable

Capital Leases Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Landfill Postclosure Costs Payable

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for
Revenue Bond Replacement
Future Debt Service
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position (Deficit)

City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2015

(continued)
Business-Type Activities
Storm
Electric Water Sewer Sewer

$254,295 $0 $0 $C

0 0 6,295,000 0

0 7,868,621 10,431,889 0

777,208 277,576 471,878 0

0 0 223,932 0
0 0 172,162 172,162

75,909 71,447 71,125 0

0 0 0 0
1,107,412 8,217,644 17,665,986 172,1
2,455,358 8,619,696 18,467,774 199,2

13,654 4,876 8,290 0
15,178,205 7,664,750 6,712,346 2,592.¢

0 0 100,000 0

0 0 1,154,595 0
6,467,562 825,486 1,174,777 754,77
$21,645,767 $8,490,236 $9,141,718 $3,347,!

Net position reported for business-type activities on the statement of net podiifterént because
it incudes a proportionate share of the balance of the internal service fund.

Net position of business-type activities

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental

Activity
Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Refuse Funds Fund
$0 $254,295 $0
0 6,295,000 0
0 18,300,510 0
305,333 1,831,995 138,78
0 223,932 0
145,131 489,455 0
28,932 247,413 4,09°
1,134,058 1,134,058 0
1,613,454 28,776,658 142,8¢
1,917,639 31,659,759 158,51
5,364 32,184 2,43¢
972,557 33,120,662 40,89
0 100,000 0
0 1,154,595 0
(1,450,774) 7,771,814 (100,62
($478,217) 42,147,071 ($59,72
(11,945)
$42,135,126
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City of Wapakoneta

Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Business-Type Activities

Storm

Electric Water Sewer Sewer
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $14,808,702 $1,870,405 $0 $161,1.
Charges for Services Pledged as Security on Mortgage
Revenue Bonds 0 0 3,316,260 0
Licenses and Permits 0 0 0 0
Other 37,445 1,625 0 19,560
Other Pledged as Security on Mortgage Revenue Bonds 0 0 3,748 0
Total Operating Revenues 14,846,147 1,872,030 3,320,008 180,6
Operating Expenses
Personal Services 1,013,452 482,961 714,110 0
Contractual Services 13,125,215 233,278 344,587 4,9
Materials and Supplies 1,531,482 775,011 361,935 107,2°
Depreciation 629,306 324,018 1,896,153 86,8:
Other 54,084 0 12,421 20,580
Total Operating Expenses 16,353,539 1,815,268 3,329,206 219,6
Operating Income (Loss) (1,507,392) 56,762 (9,198) (38,9<
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Other Local Taxes 52,684 0 0 0
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 0 (10,607) (13,015) 0
Interest Revenue 0 0 564 0
Interest Expense 0 (361,611) (634,846) (26¢
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 52,684 (372,218) (647,297) (26
Income (Loss) before Contributions (1,454,708) (315,456) (656,495) (39,1¢
Capital Contributions 0 361,330 592,152 488,59
Change in Net Position (1,454,708) 45,874 (64,343) 449,3¢
Net Position (Deficit) Beginning of Year - Restated (Note 3)23,100,475 8,444,362 9,206,061 2,898,1

Net Position (Deficit) End of Year $21,645,767

$8,490,236 $9,141,718 $3,347,!

The change in net position reported for business-type activities on the statbawivities is different because
it includes a proportionate share of the net income of the internal service fund.

Change in net position of business-type activities

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental

Activity
Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Refuse Funds Fund
$1,235,415 $18,075,658 $210,818
0 3,316,260 0
0 0 14,737
2,916 61,546 155
0 3,748 0
1,238,331 21,457,212 225,710
479,898 2,690,421 194,703
512,898 14,220,912 12,011
68,885 2,844,589 8,954
69,522 3,005,836 1,873
0 87,085 0
1,131,203 22,848,843 217,541
107,128 (1,391,631) 8,169
0 52,684 0
0 (23,622) 0
0 564 0
(2,832) (999,553) 0
(2,832) (969,927) 0
104,296 (2,361,558) 8,169
0 1,442,072 0
104,296 (919,486) 8,169
(582,513) (67,896)
($478,217) ($59,727)
1,634
($917,852)
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City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Business-Type Actvities

Storm

Electric Water Sewer Sewer
Increases (Decreases) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $14,921,359 $1,860,964 $3,304,500 $161,2
Cash Received from Transactions with Other Funds 0 0 0 0
Cash Received from Utility Deposits 32,120 0 0 0
Cash Received from Other Revenues 73,549 1,625 3,748 19,56
Cash Payments for Personal Services (1,046,982) (483,038) (737,352) 0
Cash Payments for Contractual Services (14,244,255) (244,790) (358,154) (3,1(
Cash Payments to Vendors (1,256,798) (736,942) (343,194) (207,0¢
Cash Payments for Transactions with Other Funds (195) (105) (1,551) (a,77¢
Cash Payments for Utility Refunds (15,993) 0 0 0
Cash Payments for Other Expenses (54,084) 0 (12,421) (21,560
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities (1,591,279) 397,714 1,855,576 47,2!
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from Other Local Taxes 52,684 0 0 0
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal Paid on Mortgage Revenue Bonds 0 0 (470,000) 0
Principal Paid on OWDA Loans 0 (159,564) (214,787) 0
Principal Paid on Capital Loans 0 0 0 (11,870)
Principal Paid on Loans 0 0 (101,541) 0
Principal Paid on Capital Leases 0 0 0 0
Interest Paid on Mortgage Revenue Bonds 0 0 (314,190) 0
Interest Paid on OWDA Loans 0 (407,209) (307,288) 0
Interest Paid on Capital Loans 0 0 0 (525)
Interest Paid on Loans 0 0 (15,993) 0
Interest Paid on Capital Leases 0 0 0 0
OWDA Loan Proceeds 0 0 2,314,831 0
Acquisition of Capital Assets (457,824) (10,800) (2,856,142) 0
Net Cash Used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities (457,824) (577,573) (1,965,110) (12,3¢
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interst Revenue 0 0 564 0
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,996,419) (179,859) (108,970) 34,8t¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year 6,874,354 1,097,428 3,071,705 708,2
Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year $4,877,935 $917,569 $2,962,735 $743,1
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Governmental

Activity
Total
Enterprise Internal
Refuse Funds Service
$1,232,345  $21,480,423 $14,737
0 0 191,154
0 32,120 0
2,036 100,518 155
(500,091) (2,767,463) (199,490)
(577,987)  (15,428,289) (12,295)
(109,117) (2,553,143) (9,360)
0 (3,630) 0
0 (15,993) 0
0 (88,065) 0
47,186 756,478 (15,099)
0 52,684 0
0 (470,000) 0
0 (374,351) 0
0 (11,870) 0
0 (101,541) 0
(29,241) (29,241) 0
0 (314,190) 0
0 (714,497) 0
0 (525) 0
0 (15,993) 0
(2,832) (2,832) 0
0 2,314,831 0
0 (3,324,766) 0
(32,073) (3,044,975) 0
0 564 0
15,113 (2,235,249) (15,099)
57,958 11,809,687 27,050
$73,071 $9,574,438 $11,951
(continued)
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City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(continued)

Business-Type Actvities

Storm
Electric Water Sewer Sewer

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net

Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) ($1,507,392) $56,762 ($9,198) ($38,9:

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net

Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Depreciation 629,306 324,018 1,896,153 86,8:
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 113,461 (8,805) (11,697) 10
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Governments (840) 0 (175) 0
Decrease in Other Local Taxes Receivable 5,427 0 0 0
(Increase) Decrease in Interfund Receivable 36,140 (636) 112 1z
Decrease in Prepaid Items (898) (555) (891) 0
(Increase) Decrease in Materials and Supplies Inventory 87,131 38,044 (12,300) 0
Increase in Accrued Wages Payable 3,181 2,274 4,378 0
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 183,423 (11,254) 15,672 (45
Increase (Decrease) in Contracts Payable (1,113,940) 0 (1,631) (340
Decrease in Due to Other Governments (14,837) (5,607) (6,496) 0
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payable (4,962) 248 1,777 52
Increase in Refundable Deposits 16,127 0 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable (10,695) 7,478 (12,897) 0
Decrease in Landfill Postclosure Costs 0 0 0 0
Decrease in Net Pension Liability (14,329) (5,116) (8,698) 0

Decrease in Deferred Outflows - Pension 8,718 3,113 5,292 0

Decrease in Deferred Inflows - Pension (6,300) (2,250) (3,825) 0

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities ($1,591,279) $397,714 $1,855,576 $47,2

Non-Cash Capital Transactions

During 2015, governmental activities contributed capital assets to the Water, Selngiormm Sewer enterprise funds,

in the amount of $361,330, $592,152, and $488,590, respectively.

During 2015, the Sewer, Storm Sewer, and Refuse enterprise funds entesedemtdease for machinery and equipment,

in the amount of $197,740, $197,740, and $200,581, respectively.

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental

Activity
Total
Enterprise Internal
Refuse Funds Service
$107,128 (%$1,391,631) $8,169
69,522 3,005,836 1,873
(7,024) 86,042 0
3,216 2,201 0
0 5,427 0
(142) 35,486 (19,664)
(39) (2,383) 1)
0 112,875 (257)
1,807 11,640 590
(4,394) 182,991 (433)
11,649 (1,104,262) 0
(6,213) (33,153) (2,618)
(37,236) (40,121) 1
0 16,127 0
(11,224) (27,338) (632)
(75,185) (75,185) 0
(5,629) (33,772) (2,560)
3,425 20,548 1,558
(2,475) (14,850) (1,125)
$47,186 $756,478 ($15,099)
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City of Wapakoneta
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
December 31, 2015

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $9,516
Liabilities

Undistributed Assets $9,516

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY OF WAPAKONETA AND THE REPORTING
ENTITY

A. The City

The City of Wapakoneta is a home rule municipal corporation established aatedpander the laws of
the State of Ohio. The City operates under a Council/Mayor fogowErnment.

The City is segmented into many different activities and smaller accousnitities. These include
police, fire, emergency medical, street maintenance, parks and recreatioegeng, electric, water,
sewer,storm sewer, refuse, and a staff to provide essential support to these seovickengr These
activities compse the primary government of the City and represent activities which are directly
responsible to City Council and the Mayor.

B. Reporting Entity

A reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, andrgtngzations that
are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleddiegorimary government of the City of
Wapakonetazonsists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally fepathte
City.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the SClityancially accountable. The
City is financially accountable for an organization if the City appoamtsoting majority of the
organizatia’s governing board and (1) the City is able to significamiijgencethe programs or services
performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the City is legatiflexhto or can otherwise access the
organization’s resources; the City is legally obligated or has otherwise exstm responsibility to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organizatiothe City is obligated for the
debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations for tiClity approves
the budget, the issuance of debt, or the levying of taa@s there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial madm the City. There were no
component units of the City #ap&onetain 2015.

The City participates inthe Ohio Plan Risk Management, an insurance poorhis organizationis
presented itNote22 to the basidinancial statements.

The City serves as a custodian of public funds and holds on deposit the monieBalfcehéuxiliary, a

non-profit organization. The City serves as fiscal agent, but the orgamizathot considered part of the
City. Accordingly, the activity of the Paolice Auxiliary is presented as amagfund.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City Wfapakonetéhave been prepared in conformity with generally
acceptediccounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The @oeeatal Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted stanskttthg body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. Following are the more significatiteoCity’s accounting policies.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A. Basis of Presdation

The City’s basic financial statements consist of govermwade financial statements, including a
statement ohet positionand a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, whictderavi
more detailed level of financial information.

Governmentide Financial Statements

The statement of net positiand the statement of activities display information about the City as a
whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary goveymxespt for fiduciary
funds. The statements distinguish between those activities of the City thahvememental in nature and
those that are considered busingg® activities. The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to
avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses.

The statement ofet positionpresents the financial condition of the governmental and budym@ss
activities of the City at year end. The statement of activities presents a compatiseanbdirect
expenses and program revenues for each program ardinrof the City’s governmental activities and
businesgype activities. Direct expenses are those that are specificallgiatesb with a service,
program, or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a partiftuiction. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by thanpragants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or lcagujtarements of a particad program,
and interest earndtiat is required to be used $apport a particular program. Revenues which are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of thetiCiggrtain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues iddmifiesent to which ea
governmental program or business activity is-8alincing or draws from the general revenues of the
City.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the City segregates transactions related to déittgifunctions or activities in separate
funds n order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Famdafin
statements are designed to present financial information of thatGhis more detailed level. The focus
of governmental andnterprisdund financial statements bn major funds. Each major fund is presented
in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single ¢blermmernal
service fund is presented in a single column on the proprietanfifartial statements. Fiduciary funds
are reported by type.

B. Fund Accounting

The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the yeaund\i§ defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity with a selfalancing set of accounts. The funds of the City are reported in three
categories; governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions oftyhare€ifinanced.

Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balancesniffiriancial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds accotlagurpose for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to thédmmavhich they will be paid. The
difference between governmental fund assets and liabgitidsdeferred inflows of resourcissreported

as fund balance. The followirage the City’s major governmental funds:

General Fund The General Fund accounts for all financial resources, except those aequie
accounted for in another fund. The General Fund balance is availaibveG@dy for any purpose
provided it is expended or transferragtarding tathe general laws of Ohio.

Street and SewdmprovementFund- The Street and Sewer Improvemé&uindaccounts for the
residents’ portion of special assessments for ¢cuybigers,and sidewalksgrant resources for
infrastructure improvementghe issuance of notes to pay for projects prior to the asses®f
property ownersand transfers from the General Fund for improvements to streets and sewers that
are not assessed to the property owners.

The other governmental funds of the City account for grants and othercesehose use is restricted
comnitted, or assignetbr a particular purpose.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, dhamgge position
financial position, and cash flows. The City reports two types of proprietads, entgrise and internal
service.

Enterprise Funds Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services. The following er@ityis major enterprise
funds.

Electric Fund- The Electric find accounts for the provision of eledtsicto residential
and commercial users within the City.

Water Fund - The Water Bnd accounts for the provision of water treatment and
distribution to residential and commercial users within the City.

SewerFund - The Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of sanitary sewer service to
residential and commercial users within the City.

Storm Sewer Fund The Storm Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of storm sewer
service to residential and commercial useitin the City.

Refuse Fund The Refuse Fund accounts for the provision of refuse collection services to
residential and commercial users within the City.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Internal Service Fund The internal service fund accounts for engineering services that are
provided to the other departments of the City or to other governmental buitsthly fees are
paid on an hourly scale and any balance on hand is held until used.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciay fund reporting focuses on net positiamd changes inet position The fiduciary fund category

is split into four classificationgpension trust funds, investment trust funds, private purpose trust funds,
and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City untdageetauent for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are aitld®e to support the City’'s own
programs. The City did not have any trust funds in180 Agency funds are custodial imature (assets
equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operatidhs. City’s agency fursl
accountfor funds deducted from employee’s payroll for dependent, ecopaly and COBRA insurance
coverage and to account fioronies belongig to thepolice auxiliary, an organization that is not part of
the City of Wapakoneta.

C. Measurement Focus

Governmentide Financial Statements

The governmentwide financial statements are prepared using a flow of economic reseasarement

focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the City atelgdtlon the statement

of net position The statement of activities presents increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g.,
expenses) in totalet position.

Fund FinanciaStatements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current finaresalrces measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities arellgenehaded on the
balance sheet. The statement eeraies, expenditures, and change in fund balance reflects the sources
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures antharnicergf uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from the manndriah whe gwernmental activities

of the governmentvide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial est$em
therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to battantify the relationship between the
governmeniwide financialstatements and the fund financial statements for governmental funds.

Like the governmentvide finarcial statements, thproprietaryfunds are accounted for using a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities assadihtéte operation of
these funds are included on the statemeifdired net position The statement of revenues, expenses, and
change in fund net positigoresents increases.§, revenues) and decreasegy( expenses) in totalet
position The statement of cash flows reflects how the City finances and meets the cash flowfiised
proprietaryactivities.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions aocedext in the financial records and reported on
the financial statements. Governmaendle financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accoymtpggetaryfunds and
fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the acaumabdified accrual basis

of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferreovsugftaldeferrednflows

of resourcesand in the presentation of expesyersus expenditures.

Revenues Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions

Revenues resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives arekressentially equal
value, araecorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes placke @odified accrual basis,
revenue is recorded in the year in which the resources are measurable and bedahie. aaailable
means the resources will be collected within the current year or are expeatecottetted soon enough
thereafter to be udeto pay liabilities of the current year. For the City, available megpesceed to be
received within thirtyone days after year end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives value without gigagthg equal value in return,
include propety taxes, income taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. On the accrual asi®, rev
from property taxes is recognized in the year for which the taxes are leviednuedvom incomeakes

is recognized in the yean which the income is earned. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and
donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements heee &atisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year whengherces are required to be
used o the year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in whadbityr must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in wigsbuioes are
provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basisgeréeen nonexchange
transactios must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources arel@@asiboth measurable and
available at year endncome taxes, charges for services, fines and forfeitures;letédd locally shared
taxes (including gasoline tax and motor vehicle licdasg, grants, and interest.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial posit@y report deferred outflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net positiopphes & a future period and
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditutghantime. For the City,
deferred outflows of resources are reported on the goveramidatand proprietaryfundsstatement of
netpositionfor pension and explained Mote X4 to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement d@ihancial position may report deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position fiietsao a future period and
will not be recognized until that time. For the City, deferred inflows ssuecesncludes propertyaxes
unavailable revenue, and pensidatoperty taxes represent amounts for which there was an enforceable
legal claim as of December 31, Z)but which were levied to finance 20&perations.This amount has
been recorded as deferred inflows of resources on both the government-teichestaf net position and
the governmental fund financial statements. Unavailable revenupode® only on the governmental
fund balance sheet and represents receivables which will not be collected hathiratlable period. For
the City, unavailable revenue lodesintergovermental revenue including grants, municipal income
taxes, accrued interestelinquent property taxespecial assessmenand othesources These amounts
are deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in the period when thdésabemame available.
For further details on unavailable revenue, refer to the reconciliatiohotai Governmental Fund
Balance to Net Position of Gesnmental Activities on padgEd. Deferred inflows ofesources related to
pension are reported on the governmeitte and proprietary fundstatement of net position and
explained inNote 14to the basic financial statements

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases imam&alf resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recogritzedgounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allmret of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

E. Budgetary Process

All funds, except agency funds, arequired to be budgeted and appropriated. The major dotsime
preparedare the certificate foestimated resourcesnd the appropriation®rdinance both of which are
prepared on the budgetary basis of accountifge certificate of estimated resourcestablishes a liih

on the amount City Council may appropriate. The appropratmndinanceis City Council’'s
authorization to spend resources and sets annual limits on expendifigreaqgumbrances at the level of
control selected by City Council. The legal level of control has been ekablyy City Council at the
fund, department, and objdevel for all funds.

The certificate of estimated resources may be amended during the year if grinjectases or decreases

in revenue are ehtified by the City Auditar The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts on
the budgetary statements reflect the amounts on the certificate of estimatedesescen the original
appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts on they budge
statements reflect the amounts on the final amended certificate of estimaburces requested by the
City prior to year end.

The appropriation®rdinanceis subject to amendment throughout the year with the restriction that
appropriations cannot exed estimated resources. The amounts reported as the original budgeted
amounts reflect the first appropriat®ordinance ér that fund that covered the entire year, including
amounts automatically carried forward from prior years. The amounts gdpartthe final budgeted
amounts represent the final appropriation amounts passed by City Council Haryeat.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F. Cash and Investments

To improve cash management, cash received by the éitgpt cashheld by a trusteeis pooled and
invested. Individual fund integrity is maintained through City recohdterest in the pool is presented as
“Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents”.

Cash and cash equivalents that are held separatelyef City by fiscal agents and not held with the City
Treasurer are recorded as “Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agents”.

During 2015, investments includedonnegotiable certificates of depogitutual funds, and STAR Ohio.
Nornegotiable certi€ates ofdeposit are reported at coshvéstments are reported at fair value, which is
based on quoted market prioecurrent share priceSTAR Ohio is an investment pool, managed by the
State Treasurer’'s Office, which allows governments within théeSb pool their funds for investment
purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, mpetatsin a
manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Invesim8ii&R Ohio

are valued at STAR l@o’s net asset value pshare, which is the price the investment could be sold for
on December 31, 2015.

Interest earnings amgenerallyallocated to City funds according to State statutes, grant requireraents
debt related restrictions. Interest&aue credited to the General Fund during5@as$11,464 which
includes $10,082 assigned from other City funds.

Investments of the cash management pool and investments with an originatyntditthiee months or
less at the time of purchase are presented on the financial statements aslivagnts Investments
with an initial maturity of more than three months that were not puedniaesm the pool are reported as
investments.

G. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will bepefiods beyond December 31 120are recorded
as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording a current asset fepén® gmount and
reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed

H. Inventory

Inventory s presentedt coston a firstin, first-out basis and is expéed/expenseavhen used Inventory
consists of expendable supplies held for consumption.

|. Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations onukeichange the natuoe normal understanding
of the availability of the asset. Such constraints are either extenmglbsed by creditors, contributors,
grantors, laws of other governments, or are imposed by law through constitutmrisioms or enabling
legislation.

Unclaimed monies that have a legal restriction on their use are reported agetestri
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted assetdsorepresent certain resources which are segregated from other resourcesitgftthe C
comply with various covenants established by bond financing agreements. These aszeteratly

held inseparate accounts of the Cityliyr a trustee. The various covenants place restrictions on the use
of these resources, require minimum balances to be maintained in certain acuiestablish annual
amounts to be accumulated for specific purposes.

Restricted assets also represetility deposits from customers that are classified as restricted because
their use is limited to the paymteof unpaid utility bills or refunding of the deposit to the customer.

J. Capital Assets

General capital assets are capital assets which are associated vgdnaradly arise from governmental
activities. They generally result from expenditures in governmentakfuigkneral capital assets are
reported in the governmental activities columntlom governmentvide statement afiet positionbut are
not reported o the fund financial statements. Capital assets used by the entkrpdsere reported in
both the businestype activities column the governmentvide statement ofet positionand in the
respective funds.Capital assets usdwy the internal service fund areported in both the governmental
activities column on the governmenide statemet of net position and in the fund.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost and updated for additions and msldctimg the year.
Donated capitahssets are recorded at their fair market value on the date donated. The Qigynsai
capitalizaion threshold of ten thousand dollarsmprovements are capitalized; the costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or mategallyaextsset’s life are
not capitalized. Interest incurred during the constructibrenterprisefund capital assets is also
capitalized.No interest was capitalized for 2015

All capital assets are depreciated, except for land and construction in prodreggvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. IlWesffibr infrastructure
were estimated based on the City’s historical records of necessary impréevameneplacementThe
City reports all infrastructure, including that acquired priot@80. Depreciation is computed usingeth
straightline method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Businesstype
Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives

Land Improvements 20-45years N/A
Buildings 10-100years 10-100years
Equipment 5-30 years 5-30 years
Vehicles 10-38years 6-25years
Streets 1560 years N/A
Electric, Water, Seweand Storm Sewdtines N/A 10-100years
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

K. InterfundAssets/Liabilities

On fund financiaktatements, receivables and payables resulting from interfund senaeiegrand used
are classified as “Interfund Receivables/Payables”. Interfund balances withinrgemtahactivities and
within businesgype activities are eliminated on the govaeantwide statement afiet position. The only
interfund balances which remain on the governamde statement ohet positionare those between
governmental and businegge activities. These amounts are reflected as “Internal Balances”.

L. Compensaid Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the empighted receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probabiky thill compensate the
employees for the benefitsrdugh paid time off or some other means. The City records a liability for
accumulated unused vacation time when earned for all employees with more thearooiesgrvice.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination methodccAual for sick leave is
made to the extent it is probable that benefits will result in terming@yments. The liability is an
estimate based on the City’s past experience of making termination payments. Acedinnolested sick
leave is paid to empjees who retire at various rates depending on departpadioy and length of
service.

M. Accrued Liabilities and Lond-erm Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and leterm obligations are reported on the governnvade financial
statements. All payables, accrued liabilities, and lotgym obligations payable from th@oprietary
funds are reported on the proprietéugd financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, onceedncane paid in &mely
manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligatitims funds. However,
compensated absencasd net pension liabilityghat are paid from governmental funds are reported as
liabilities on the fund financial statemerdaly to the extent that they are due for payment during the
current year. Longterm loansand capital leaseare recognized as liabilities on the fund financial
statements when due.

N. Net Position

Net positionrepreserg the difference betweeall other elements o the statement of financial position

Net investment in capital assewnsists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, avémant ofthose
assets.Net positionis reported as restricted wheretlk are limitations imposed on iise either through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation adopbgdthe City or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, owkor reglations of other governments. Net positiestricted for

other purposesonsists ofvariouspolice department grantand programs. Th€ity’s policy is to first

apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for whictedbotited and
unrestrictechet positioris available.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

O. Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based priynanlithe extent to which the City is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in governnmeistalThe classifications
are as follows:

Nonspendable The nonspendable classification includes amounts that cannot be spent bespase
not in spendable form or legally orrteactually required to be maintained intact. The “nagandable
form” includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash.

Restricted The restricted classification includes amounts restricted when datsiaced on the use of
resoures are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt coveneati)ys,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or is imposdanbthrough constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation (City ordinances).

Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandatenfpaym
resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforczgblement that those
resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulatbd Iadislation. Legal enforceability means
the City can be compelled by an external party such as citizens, publictigrengss, or the judiciary to
use resources created by enabling legislation only for purposes specifiedédyisghation.

Committed - The committed classification includes amounts that can be used only for thecspecifi
purposes imposed by a formal action (ordinance) of City Council. The ctmdramnounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless City Council removes or changgsettiked use by taking the same
type of action (ordinance) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In tootfasd balance

that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance magdeeloyed for other purposes
with appropriate due process. Constraints imposed on the use of committedsaare imposed by City
Council, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying reventegotbecompliance with these
constraints is not considered to be legally enforceablemn@ed fund balance also incorporates
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fuacdban specifically committed

for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned- Amounts in the assigned classification antended to be used by the City for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be claskifis restricted or committedAssigned amounts
represent intendedsas established by City Councitund balancegicy of City Council has authorized
the Drector of Public Service and Safety to assign fund balance for purchases on oviterdpsuch
amounts have been lawfully appropriated. City Council has also assigned amowtsriming pool
operationsind to cover a gap between estimated resourcespgndpriations in the 201udget

Unassigned Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fumdladds all

spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other gaveatrfomels, the unassigned
classfication is used ly to report a deficit balance.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The City first applies restricted resources when an expenditure is incarrpdrposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigmedints are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed d¢pyessand then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of sticteddund
balance classifications can be used.

P. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly frommiwy piGtivity of the
proprietaryfunds. For the City, these revenues are charges for serviceledtic, water, sewerstorm
sewer,and efuseservices and charges fogngineeringservices in the internal service funé®perating
expenses are the necessary costs incurred to provide the service thatirmahe axtivity of thefund.
All revenues and expenseet meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating.

Q. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions arise fmocontributions of capital assdt®m other funds.

R. Interfund Transactions

Transfers between governnial and businesype activities on the governmewtde financial
statements are reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Internal allocations of overhead expenses from one function to another or Wwehsarhe function are
eliminated on thestatement ofactivities. Payments for interfund services provided and used are not
eliminated.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goodsdréumd to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. imtdransfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperatigigues/expenses proprietary
funds. Repaymenfsom funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the fundstihidy

paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

S.Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of res@ird defeed inflows

of resources related to pensiopgnsion expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
pension plansand additions to/deductions from their fiduciary net positon have beemdetdron the
same basis as they are reported H®y ppension systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable aaaceowith the benefit
terms. The pension systems report investments at fair value.

T. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generadlgpéed accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amoutedsingiper financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from thosgestim
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NOTE 3 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCPLES AND RESTATEMENT OF NET
POSITION

For 2015 theCity has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensiaarsd GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition

for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurementdbatanendment of GASB Statement No.
68”". GASB Statement No. 68 established standards for measuring and rexpgeiasion liabilities,
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources, and pension expenses/expendilires
implementation of this statement had the following effect on net posi# previously reported on

December 31, 2014.

Storm Internal
Electric Water Sewer Sewer Refuse Service
Net Position at $23,765,324  $8,681,80¢ $9,609,72( $2,898,17: ($321,322 $50,827
DecembeRl, 2014
Net Pensioriability (759,654, (271,305, (461,219 0 (298,436, (135,653
Deferred Outflows
Payment Sibsequent
to Measurement Date 94,805 33,859 57,560 0 37,245 16,930
Adjusted Net Position at
December 31, 2014 $23,100,47¢ $8,444,36. $9,206,06. $2,898,17: ($582,513  ($67,896
BusinessType
Governmental Activity/Enterprise
Activities Fund
Net PositionDecember 31, 2014 $26,191,798 $44,643,868
Net Pension Liability (4,816,058) (1,790,614)
Net Pension Liability Internal Service Fund (135,653) 0
Deferred Outflows Pension 444,417 223,469
Deferred Outflows Pension Internal Servideund 16,930 0
Internal Service Fund 23,745 (23,745)
Restated Net Positidbecember 31, 2014 $21,725,179 $43,052,978

Other than employer contributions subsequent to the measurement d&li¢y thede no restatement for
deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources as the informatiodedet generate these

restatements was not available.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE

A. Accountability

At December 31, 201%he Refuse enterprise fd had a deficit net position, in the amount d78,217
due torecording landfill postclosure costs. Beé rates were increased Bil8 to help offset rising costs

and to reduce the deficit.
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE _ (continued)

The inernal service fund had a deficit net position, in the amount of $59,727, due to recbedimgt
pension liability. This amount will be paid by the pension system in future geandividuals retire.

B. Compliance

Forthe year ended December 31, 20h®, General Fund had expenditures plus encumbrances in excess
of appropriations, in the amount $#,346 for the fire department personal services account, $17 for the
miscellaneous capital outlay account, and $4,338 for the Auglaize County amaitsacvices account

The City Auditor will monitor budgetary transactions to ensure expenditueswihin amounts
appropriated.

The Waterenterprise fund haéxpersesin excess of appropriationsn the amant of $11611, for
materials and supplidsr the year ended December 31, 20THe City Auditor will monitorbudgetary
transactions to ensuexpensesare withinamounts appropriated.

The Refuse enterprise fund had final appropriations in excess iofagst revenueplus available

balances, in thenaount of 85,088 The City Auditor will review appropriations to ensure they are
within amounts available.

NOTE 5 -BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial positignresults of operationsand change irfund balanceon the basis of
geneally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis aslguidwy law is based upon
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursemeérdacumbrancesThe
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Baladce- Budget (NorRGAAP Budgetay
Basis) and Actuait for the GeneralFundis presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences betveebodget basis and the
GAAP basis ar¢hat:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed dosadyetible to
accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expendituresre recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when thy igabili
incurred (GAAP basis).

3. Outstanthg year end encumbrances are treated as expenditures (budget basis) rather than
restricted, committed, or assigned fund balance (GAAP basis).
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NOTE 5 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the yearbwdgiet basis to the GAAP
basisfor the General Funare as follows:

Change in Fund Balance

GAAP Basis $436,968
Increases (Decreases) Due To
Revenue Accruals:
Accrued 204, Receivedn Cash 2015 330,826
Accrued 205, Not YetReceived in Cas (316,970)
Expenditure Accruals:

Accrued 204, Paid in Cash 2015 (237,321)
Accrued2015Not Yet Paid in Cash 330,048
Cash Adjustments

Unrecorded Activity 204 1,034

Unrecorded Activity 208 (500)
Prepaid Iltems (1,987)
Materials and Supplies Inventory 1,572
Revolving Loans

Issued (300,000)

Payments 13,989
Encumbrances Outstanding at Year En

(Budget Basis) (64,612)
Budget Basis $193,047

NOTE 6 -DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes @&$sify monies held by the City into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the t&adumonies must
be maintained either as cash in the city treasury, in commercial accounts payatiedawaibé on
demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in moneketmadeposit
accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits the City Council has identified asquited for use within the
current five year period of designation @épositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by
certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current periedighation of depositories,

or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are tlwwsesnwhich are not needed
for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of threntyperiod of designation of
depositories. Interim deposits must be evidencednhy Gertificates of deposit maturing not more than
one year from the date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts, includinggbeaccounts.
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Protection of the City’s deposits is provided by the Federal Depwaitdnce Corporation (FDIC), by
eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as securitsefosyment, by surety company bonds
deposited with the City Treasurer by the financial institution, or by a stoyjgeral pool establigd by
the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public matepssited with the institution.

Interim monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

1. United States Treasury bills, bonds, notes, or any other obligats@curity issued by the United
States Treasury, or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal amstimigrthe United
States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligation or security issued by a@y gedernment
agency or instrumenfyy including, but not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage
Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal idam®brtgage
CorporationandGovernmehNational Mortgage Association. All federal agency securities shall
be drect issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreememtsthe securities listed above provided the market value of the
securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal Viaduagefement
by at least 2 percent and be marked to market daily and the term of the agrewrsenot
exceed thirty days;

4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio and, with certain limitabonsls and other
obligations of political subdivisianof the State of Ohjo

5. Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts including, blimitet to, passbook
accounts;

6. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations desénlvision
(1) or (2 and repurchasagreements secured by such obligations provided that investments in
securities described in this division are made only through eligible titstiy

7. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio); and

8. Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercialrpages for a period not to exceed one hundred
eighty das in an amount not to exceed @gé€rcent of the interim monies available for investment
at any one time if training requirements have been met.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligatioreverse repurchase agreements, and derivatives
are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arltiragise of leverage, and short
selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five yeans the date of purchka,
unless matched to a specific obligation or debt of the City, and must be arehidis the expectation
that it will be held to maturity.
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Paynmvedtments may
be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments taythEreaisurer or
gualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented by a certificaterageqot of confirmation of
transfer fom the custodian.

Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of balokefathe City will not be able to
recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession ofsate qarty. At year end,
$1,537,376of the City’s bank balance 06$L82,809wvas exposed to custodial credit risk because it was
uninsured and uncollateralized. Although all State statutory requiremeriteefdeposit of money had
been followed, noncompliance with federal requirementsdcpotentially subject the City to a successful
claim by the FDIC.

The City has no deposit policy for custodial credit risk beyond the requiteroé State statute. Ohio
law requires that deposits be either insured or be protected by eligible seqleitiged to and deposited
either with the City or a qualified trustee by the financial institutioneasirgty for repayment, or by a
collateral pool of eligible securities deposited with a qualifiederiand pledged to secure the repayment
of all pubic monies deposited in the financial institution whose market value at all timkk$slat least
105 percent of the deposits being secured.

Investments

At December 31, 2, the City had$1,130,1924nvested in mutual funds with an average maturit¢f
daysand $6,759,512 invested in STAR Ohio wathaverage maturity @9.4 days.

Interest rate risks the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the dhie \of an
investment The investment policy restricts the City Audifosm investing in anysecuritiesother than
thoseidentified in the Ohio Revised Code and that all investments must matune fivithyears from the
date of investment unless they are matched to a specific obligationt af dedCity.

Themutual fundscary a rating of Aady Moodys. STAR Ohio carries a rating of AAA by Standard and
Poor’'s. TheCity has no investment policy dealing withedit risk beyond the requirements of State
statute. Ohio law requires that mutual funds must be rated in the thigltegory at the time of purchase
by at least one nationally recognized standard rating sen&BAR Ohio must maintain the highest
rating provided by at least one nationally recognized standard ratingeservi
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NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at ember 31, 206, consisted of accounts (billings for user charged services, inglud
unbilled utility services); intergovernmental receivables aridiogn grants, eitlements, and shared
revenues; municipahcome taxes; other local taxes; interfuadgruednterest;property taxesnotes and
special assessmentdncome taxes andrgperty taxes, although ultimately collectible, include some
portion of delinquencies that will not be collected withne year.

Notes receivable, in themount of 870,172 will not be received within one yeaSpecial assessments
receivable, in the amount 02$,775 will not be received within one yearAt December 31, 2, the
amount of delingent special assessments BasH55.

Notes receivable represent low st loans for development projects granted to eligible City businesses
under the Federal Community Development Block Grant program. The notes have annd@rasilrate
of 2 percent t®6.25 percent and are to be repaid over periods rangindfifrerto eighteeryears.

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables fallows

Amount
Governmental Activities
Major Funds
General Fund
Homestead and Rollback $24,838
Local Government 96,328
Cigarette Taes 259
Auglaize County 1,534
Total General Fund 122,959
Street and Sewer Improvement
West Auglaize Street ODOT 265,175
Auglaize County 2,905
Total Street and Sewer Improvement 268,080
Total Major Funds 391,039
Nonmajor Funds
Street Maintenance
Gasoline Tax 109,866
Highway Distribution 56,330
Motor Vehicle License Tax 44,291
Ohio Department of Public Safety 1,020
Total Street Maintenance 211,507
State Higpway
Gasoline Tax 8,890
Highway Distribution 4,568
Motor Vehicle License Tax 3,591
Ohio Department of Public Safety 83
Total State Highway 17,132

(continued)
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NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES (continued)

Amount
Govermmental Activities
Recreation
Homestead and Rollback $5,662
Auglaize County 6,255
Total Recreation 11,917
Enforcement and Education
Auglaize County 117
Drug Law Enforcement
Auglaize County 166
Total Nonmajor Funds 240,839
Total Governmental Activities $631,878
BusinessFype Activities
Electric
Auglaize County $840
Sewer
Auglaize County 175
Refuse
Auglaize County 15,752
Total Business ype Funds $16,767

NOTE 8 - MUNICIPAL INCOME TAXES

The City levies an income tax of 1 percent on all income earnéihwvite City as well as on income of
residents earned outside the City. In the latter case, the City alloeditaof 100 percentf the tax paid

to another municipality, not to exceed the amount owed. Employers within the Cityganedeto
withhold income tax on employee earnings and remit the tax to the Citysaglesrterly. Corporations
and other individual taxpayers afds@required to pay their estimated tax at least quarterly and file a final
return annually. Income tax revenues and expenditures for collecting, adnmgisand enforcing the
tax are recorded in the General Fund.
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NOTE 9 -PROPERTY TAXES

Property xes include amounts levied against all egalpublic utility property located in the City. Real
property tax revenues received in180represent the collection of 20 taxes. Real property taxes
received in 205 were levied after October 1, P4 on he assessed values as of January 14,28e lien
date. Assessed values for real property taxes are established by State stafupertent of appraised
market value. Real property taxes are payable annually or semiannually. [If maadiygrpaymenis due
December 31; if paid semiannually, the first payment is due December 31, wigmthieder payable by
June 20. Under certain circumstances, State statute permits alternate pataeetd be established.

Public utility property tax revenuesceived in 20L5 represent the collection of 2@taxes. Public utility
real and tangible personpioperty taxes received in 2B became alien on December 31, 2018ere
levied after October 1, 2@, and are collected with real property taxes. Publigytieal property is
assessed at 35 percent of true value; public utility tangible personariyrig currently assessed at
varying percentages of true value.

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxingtfistithin the County, including
the City of Wapakoneta. The County Auditor periodically remits to the i@itportion of the taxes
collected.

Accrued property taxes receivable representsamdpublic utility property taxes which were measurable
as of December 31, 26,and for which there was an enforceable legal cldimthe governmental funds,
the portion of the receivableot levied to finance 2 operationss offset to deferred inflows of
resources property taxes.On the accrual basis, delinquent real proyptaxes have been recorded as a
receivable and revenue while on the modified accrual basis, the revenueechastorded as deferred
inflows of resources unavailable revenue.

The full tax rate for all City operations for the year ended Decembet03%, was $3.75 per $1,000 of
assessed value. The assessed values of real and yttiliticoroperty upon which 201property tax
receipts were based are as follows:

Assessed
Category Value

RealEstate

Agricultural/Residential $106,495,310

Commercialindustrial 44,517,970
Public Uility Real 65,790
Public Uility Personal 1,122,690
Total $152,201,760
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NOTE 10 -CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 35, 2¢Hs as follows:

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31
2014 Additions Reductions 2015

Governmental Activities:
Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Land $1,410,446 $0 $0 $1,410,446

Construction in Progress 214,803 1,628,979 (1,804,376) 39,406
Total Nondepreciabl€apital Assets 1,625,249 1,628,979 (1,804,376) 1,449,852
Depreciable Capital Assets

Land Improvements 3,031,111 0 0 3,031,111

Buildings 3,599,947 0 0 3,599,947

Equipment 636,902 0 0 636,902

Vehicles 2,941,124 169,550 0 3,110,674

Streets 25,999,774 1,977,469 (284,537) 27,692,706
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 36,208,858 2,147,019 (284,537) 38,071,340
Less Accumulated Depreciation for

Land Improvements (627,933 (83,606) 0 (711,540

Buildings (873,123 (53,303) 0 (926,426

Equipment (480,162 (18,259 0 (498,416

Vehicles (1,865,512 (118,772) 0 (1,984,284

Streets (12,735,473 (780,034) (165,980) (13,349,527
Total Accumulated Depreciation (16,582,20% (1,053,969) (165,980) (17,470,193
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 19,626,654 1,093,050 (118,557) 20,601,147
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, N $21,251,903 $2,722,029 (91,922,933  $22,050,999
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NOTE 10 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31
2014 Additions Reductions 2015
BusinessType Activities:
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $1,171,268 $0 $0 $1,171,268
Construction in Progress 9,262,214 2,870,025 0 12,132,239
Total Nondepreciable Capital Assets 10,433,482 2,870,025 0 13,303,507
Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings 20,247,000 0 0 20,247,000
Equipment 1,024,597 94,666 0 1,119,263
Vehicles 3,378,391 789,165 0 4,167,556
Electric, Water, Sewer, and Storm
Sewer Lines 44,476,744 1,635,622 (78,742) 46,033,624
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 69,126,732 2,519,453 (78,742) 71,567,443
Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings (2,508,52) (269,439 0 (2,777,956
Equipment (631,450) (28,087) 0 (659,537
Vehicles (1,967,685) (202,641) 0 (2,170,326
Electric, Water, Sewer, and Storm
Sewer Lines (17,877,04) (2,505,673 55,120 (20,327,594
Total Accumulated Depreciation (22,984,69Y (3,005,836) 55,120 (25,935,413
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 46,142,035 (486,383) (23,622) 45,632,030
BusinessType Activities Capital Assets, N $56,575,517 $2,383,642 ($23,622) $58,935,537
Depreciation expense walarged to governmental functions as follows:
Governmental Activities
Security of Persons and Proper®olice $43,677
Security of Persons and Properfyire 86,018
Public Health 18,827
Leisure Time Activities 70,260
Transportation 821,227
General Government 13,960
Total Depreciation Expensésovernmental Activitie: $1,053,969
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NOTE 11 -INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund balances at December 31120consisted of the following individual fund receivables and

payables:

Due to General Fund from:

Electric $55,030
Due to Electric Fund from:
General $1,999
Other Governmental 26,515
Water 11,836
Sewer 15,082
Refuse 113,235
Internal Service 150
Total Electric Fund $168,817
Due to Water Fund from:
General $35
Other Governmental 53
Electric 36
Sewer 1,525
Refuse 10
Internal Service 10
Total Water Fund $1,669
Due to Sewer Fund from:
General $77
Other Governmental 138
Electric 122
Refuse 53
Internal Service 53
Total Sewer Fund $443
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NOTE 11 - INTERFUND BALANCES (continued)

Due to Storm Sewer from:

General $4
Other Governmental 8
Electric 14
Sewer 44
Refuse 4
Internal Service 4
Total Storm Sewer Fund $78

Due to Refuse from:

General $81
Other Governmental 178
Electric 133
Water 29
Sewer 28
Internal Service 28
Total Refuse Fund $477

Due to Internal Service Fund from:

General $4,519
Street and Sewer Improvement 14,412
Other Governmental 681
Stam Sewer 52
Total Internal Service Fund $19,664

The balances due resulted from the time lag between dates that (1) intgofuchel and services are
provided, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system3)apdy(ments between funds are
made All of these amounts are expected to be received within one year.
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theftaaiage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employeses] natural disasters.

During 205, the City contracted with the Ohio Plan Risk Management, an insurance pool, for the
following coverage:

Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible

Property $66,571,704 $1,000
General Liability

Each Occurrence 7,000,000 0

Aggregate 9,000,000 0
Wrongful Acts

Each Occurrence 7,000,000 5,000

Aggregate 9,000,000 5,000
Law Enforcement Liability

Each Occurrence 7,000,000 5,000

Aggregate 9,000,000 5,000
Automobile Liability 7,000,000 250-500
Inland Marine 1,581,690 1,000
Electronic Data Processing 350,773 1,000

Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial covanaaey of the past three yeaand there has
not been any significant reduction in coverage from tiw pear.

Worker's compensation coverage is provided by the State of Ohio. iThe@dys the State Workers’

Compensation System a premium based on a rate per $100 of salaries. This rattaiecchlzsed on
accident history and administrative costs.
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NOTE 13 - SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

The City has several outstanding contracts for professional servitesfollowing amounts remain on
these contracts as of December 31,520

Contract Amount Paid Outstanling
Vendor Amount as of12/31/15 Balance
American Municipal Power $3,010,000 $0 $3,010,00
Choice One Engineering Corp 248,060 233,994 14,06¢
Choice One Engineering Corp 52,380 45,444 6,93¢
CTL Engineering, Inc. 24,721 18,059 6,66:
Helms & Sons Excavating 4,295,555 3,995,955 299,60(
PAB Construction 77,308 77,049 25¢
Peterson Construction Co. 6,216,233 6,173,040 43,19
The Shelly Company 16,800 0 16,80(

At year end, the significant encumbrances expected to be honored upon performdmeadndor in
2015are as follows:

General $64,612
Street and Sewer Improvement 592,565
Total $657,177

NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability reported on the statement of net position refgreskability toemployees for
pensions. Pensions are a component of exchange transactions, between an entpitsyengfoyees,

of salaries and benefits for employee services. Pensions are provided to an emplaydefemed
payment basis as part of the total congagion package offered by an employer for employee services
each financial period. The obligation to sacrifice resources for pensiopsdsemt obligation because it
was created as a result of employment exchanges that already have occurred.

The net pnsion liability represents the City’s proportionate share of eachopeptan’s collective
actuarial present value of projected benefit payments attributable to pastspafriservice, net of each
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability calculationpiendient on critical lorg
term variables including estimated average life expectancies, earmingweastments, cost of living
adjustments, and others. While these estimates use the best information egvailkbbwable future
events require adjusting this estimate annually.

The Ohio Revised Code limits the City’s obligation for this liabildyahnually required payments. The

City cannot control benefit terms or the manner in which pensions are finaneexijenpthe City des
receive the benefit of employees’ services in exchange for compensatiodiniggension.
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NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

GASB Statement No. 68 assumes the liability is solely the obligatiémeoémployer because (1) they
berefit from employee services, and (2) State statute requires all furaicgrte from the employers.
All contributions to date have come solely from the employer (which also irsctadts paid in the form
of withholdings from employees). State statute requires the pension plansrtizenmmfunded liabilities
within thirty years. If the amortization period exceeds thirty years, eashkign plan’s board must
propose corrective action to the State legislature. Any reguégislative change to beneafibr funding
could significantly affect the net pension liability. Resulting adjestis to the net pension liability
would be effective when the changes are legally enforceable.

The proportionate share of each plan’s unfunded benefits is presentkmhg$eam net pension liability

on the accrual basis of accounting. Any liability for the contractualpired pension contribution
outstanding at the end of the year is included as an intergovernmentalepagaboth the accrual and
modified accrual &sis of accounting.

Plan Description- Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS)

Plan Description City employees, other than fuime police and firefighters, participate in the Ohio
Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS admirnfstegsseparate pension plans. The
traditional pension plan is a cesttaring multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan. The member
directed plan is a defined contribution plan and the combined plan is-aheoistg multipleemployer
defined benefipension plan with defined contribution features. While members (eyge@ployees)
may elect the membaelirected plan and the combined plan, substantially all employee membens are
OPERS'’ traditional plan; therefore, the following disclosure focasdabe traditional pension plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefdsararual cost of living adjustments
to members of the traditional plan. Authority to establish and amend kdsedibvided by Chapter 145
of the Oho Revised Code. OPERS issues a st@nde financial report that includes financial
statements, required supplementary information, and detailed informatioh @B&IRS’ fiduciary net
position that may be obtained by visitihtips://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shiiy writing to the
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohie183216r by
calling 800-222-7377.

Senate Bill (SB) 343 was enacted itav with an effective date of January 7, 2013. In the legislation,
members were categorized into three groups with varying provisions @virepblicable to each group.
The following table provides age and service requirements for retireameinthe rérement formula
applied to final average salary (FAS) for the three member groups undeadhii®nal plan as per the
reduced benefits adopted by SB 343 (see OPERS’ CAFR referenced abovetimnalddformation).
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Group A Group B Group C
Eligible to retire prior to 20 years of service credit prior to Members not in otherrgups
January 7, 2013, or five years January 7, 2013, or eligible to retire and members hired on or after
after January 7, 2013 ten years after January 7, 2013 January 7, 2013
State and Local State and Local State and Local
Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements:

Age 60 with 60 months of service crec  Age 60 with 60 months of service crec  Age 57 with 25 years of service credi
or Age 55 with 25 years of service cre  or Age 55 with 25 years of service cre  or Age 62 with 5 years of service cred
Formula: Formula: Formula:

2.2% of FAS multiplied by yaa of 2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of 2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 30 years and 2.5%  service for the first 30 years and 2.5% service for the fist 35 years and 2.5%
for service years in excess of 30 yea for service years in excess of 30 yea for service years in excess of 35 yeal

Public Safety Public Safety Public Safety
Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements:

Age 48 with 25 years of service cred Age 48 with 25 years of service cred Age 52 with 25 years of service credi
or Age 52with 15 years of service crec  or Age 52 with 15 years of service cre  or Age 56 with 15 years of service cre:

Law Enforcement Law Enforcement Law Enforcement
Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements:

Age 52 with 15 years of service cred Age 48 with 25 years of service cred Age 48 with 25 years of service cred
or Age 52 with 15 years of service cre  or Age 56 with 15 years of service cre

Public Safety and Law Enforcement Public Safety and Law Enforcement Public Safety and Law Enforcement
Formula: Formula: Formula:
2.5% of FAS multiplied by years of 2.5% of FAS multiplied by years of 2.5% of FAS multiplied by years of

service for the first 25 years and 2.1%  service for the first 25 years and 2.1%  service for the first 25 years and 2.1%
for service years in excess of 25 yea for service years in excess of 25 yea for service years in exss of 25 years

Final average salary (FAS) represents the average of the three highest years g§ eaenia member’s
career for Groups A and B. Group C is based on the averdlge fife highest years of earnings over a
member’s career.

Members whoretire before meeting the age and years of service credit requirement for unreduced

benefits receive a percentage reduction in the benefit amount.

When a benefit recipient has received benefits for twelve months, an annual gestgoddjustment
(COLA) is provided. This COLA is calculated on the base retirement benefit at thef datieeonent and
is not compounded. For those retiring prior to January 7, 2013, the COLA will cotdibeea 3 percent
simple annual COLA. For those retiring subsequent to January 7, 2013, beginralenac year 2019,
the COLA will be based on the average percentage increase in the Consumémdesiceapped at 3
percent.
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Funding Policy- The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) provides statutory authority for member and employe
contributions as follows.

State Public Law
and Local Safety Enforcement

2015 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates
Employer 14.0% 18.1% 18.1%
Employee 10.0 % * *x
2015 Actual Contribution Rates
Employer

Pension 12.0 % 16.1 % 16.1 %

Postemployment Health Care Benefits 2.0 2.0 2.0
Total Employer 14.0% 18.1% 18.1%
Total Employee 10.0 % 12.0% 13.0%

* This rateis determined by OPERS’ Board and has no maximum rate established byGhe Ol

** This rate is also determined by OPERS’ Board but is limited by the ORC toaret m
than 2 percent greater than the public safety rate.

Employer contribution rates amctuarially determined and are expressed as a percentage of covered
payroll. The City’s contractually required contribution w844483for 2015. Of this amount, 9$805is
reported as an intergovernmental payable.

Plan Description - Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OPF)

Plan Descriptiorr Full-time police and firefighters participate in the Ohio Police and Fireiétefsind
(OPF), a cossharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan administered by OPF. OPF
provides retirement and disability pension benefits, annualofdising adjustments, and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by theabhibeSislature and

are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code. OPF issues aypabiitable financial report
that includes financial information, required supplementary informatiwh,datailed information about
OPF’s fiduciary net position that may be obtained by visiting the ORfsiteeatwww.op-f.org or by
writing to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund, 140 East Town Street, Cojudiiogl3215-5164.

Upon attaining a qualifying age with sufficient years of service, an OPF menalyeretire and receive a
lifetime monthly pension. OPF offerfour types of service retirement; normal, service commuted,
age/service commuted, and actuarially reduced. Each type hasndiéigebility guidelines and is
calculated using the member’'s average annual salary. The followingsilisco$ the pensioformula
relates to normal service retirement.
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For members hired after July 1, 2013, the minimum retirement age igwidtyfor normal service
retirement with at least twenfive years of service créd For members hired on or before July 1, 2013,
the minimum retirement age is forgyght for normal service retirement with at least twdivy years of
service credit.

The annual pension benefit for normal service retirement is equal to a percentagallmiwable average
annual salary. The percentage equals 2.5 percent for each of the first teamstyol/service credit, 2
percent for each of the next five years of service credit, anpetcgnt for each year of service credit in
excess of twety-five years. The maximum pension of 72 percent of the allowable average amayal sa
is paid after thirtythree years of service credit.

Under normal service retirement, retired members who are at leadiviiftyears old and have been
receiving OF benefits for at least one year may be eligible for a cost of living allowancenaeljist
The age fiftyfive provision for receiving a COLA does not apply to those who are regeivpermanent
and total disability benefit and statutory survivors.

Members retiring under normal service retirement, with less than fifteen years akesenlit on July 1,
2013, will receive a COLA equal to either 3 percent or the percent increase, iif &#my Consumer Price
Index over the twelve month period ending on September 30 of the immediately mpgeyedr,
whichever is less. The COLA amount for members with at |efteserfi years of service credit as of July
1, 2013, is equal to 3 percent of their base pension or disability benefit.

Funding Policy- The Oho Revised Code (ORC) provides statutory authority for member and employer
contributions as follows.

Police Firefighters

2015 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates
Employer 19.50% 24.00%
Employee

January 1, 2015, through July 1, 2015 11.50 % 11.50 %

July 2, 2015, through December 31, 2015 12.25% 12.25 %
2015 Actual Contribution Rates
Employer

Pension 19.00 % 23.50 %

Postemployment Health Care Benefits .50 .50
Total Employer 19.50 % 24.00 %
Employee

January 1, 2015, through July 1, 2015 11.50 % 11.50 %

July 2, 2015, through December 31, 2015 12.25% 12.25 %
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Employer contribution rates are expressed as a pegeenfacovered payroll. The City’s contractually
required contribution was 367,289 for 2015. Of this amount, 68,319 is reported as an
intergovernmental payable.

Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferredflénvs of
Resources Related to Pension

The net pension liability for OPERS was measured as of December 31, 2014, aothltipertsion
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by arriatugduation as of that date.
OPF’s total pasion liability was measured as of December 31, 2014, and was determined by rolling
forward the total pension liability as of January 1, 2014, to December 31, 2014. Thef@iportion of

the net pension liability was based on the City's share ofibatitns to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating entities. Following is infation related to the proportionate share and
pension expense.

OPERS OPF Total
Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability $2,775,746 $4,285,826 $7,061,572
Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability 0.02301400%  0.08273130%
Pension Expense $301,945 $418,062 $720,007

At December 31, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deféoresl dfifresources
relaed to pension from the following sources.

OPERS OPF Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $148,105 $184,715 $332,820
City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 344,483 367,289 711,772
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $492,588 $552,004 $1,044,592
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Difference between expected and actual
experience $48,764 $0 $48,764

$711,772reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting fiypeo@tributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reductiometdf glasion liability in the
year ending December 31, 2016. Other amounts reporidefersed outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized as pension experikewss fo
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OPERS OPF Total
Year Ending December 31
2016 $14,527 $46,179 $60,706
2017 14,526 46,179 60,705
2018 33,262 46,179 79,441
2019 37,026 46,178 83,204
Total $99,341 $184,715 $284,056

Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the values of eeépamounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events fartlimofuture. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and cost trends. Adyudastrmined amounts are
subject to continual review or modificati as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on thansivbsplan (the plan as
understood by the employers and plan members)rahate the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014, actuduiaioa was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included im¢asurement.

Wage Inflation 3.75 percent

Future Salary Increases, including inflatiol 4.25 to 10.05 percent, including wage inflat
COLA or Ad Hoc COLA 3 percent simple

Investment Rate of Return 8 percent

Actuarial Cost Method individual entry age

Mortality rates were based on the-RB00 Mortality Table projected twenty years using Projection Scale
AA. For males, 105 percent of the combined healthy male mortality rates were fsetémales, 100
percent of the combined healthy female mortality rates wsed. The mortality rates used in evaluating
disability allowances were based on theZ®P0 Mortality Table with no projections. For males, 120
percent of the disabled female mortality rates were used set forward two yeafsmé&les, 100 percent

of the disabled female mortality rates were used.

The most recent experience study was completed for the five year period exudecber 31, 2010.

The longterm rate of return on defined benefit investment assets was determingé Usiitding block
methal in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of redudevatoped for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce thtedongxpected real rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return bytahget asset allocation percentage adjusted for
inflation.
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OPERS manages investments in four investment portfolios: the Defewefi® portfolio, the Health
Care portfolio, the 115 Health Care Trust portfolio, and the Defined ContributidolimoriThe Defined
Benefits portfolio includes the investment assets of the traditiograsign plan, the defined benefit
component of the combined plan, the annuitized accounts of the mdirdmted planand the VEBA
Trust. Within the Defined Benefits portfolio, contributions into the plaresall recorded at the same
time and benefit payments all occur on the first of the month. Accordingly,dheyweighted rate of
return is considered to be theveafor all plans within the portfolio. The monresighted rate of return,
net of investment expenses, for the Defined Benefits portfolio was 6.95 fpkrc2al14.

The allocation of investment assets with the Defined Benefits poriflapproved by thé&oard of
Trustees as outlined in the annual investment plan. Plan assets are manageal ostartobasis with a
longterm objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for thefiteprovided through
the defined benefit pension plan. The table below displays the board apprateallasation policy for
2014 and the lonterm expected real rates of return.

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Target Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Arithmetic)
Fixed Income 2300 % 2.31%
Domestic Equities 19.90 5.84
Real Estate 10.00 4.25
Private Equity 10.00 9.25
International Equities 19.10 7.40
Other Investments 18.00 4.59
Total 100.00 % 5.28 %

Discount Rae - The discaint rate usedto measue the total pensionliability was 8 percent. The
projection ofcashflows usedto determine the discourateassimedthatcontributions from plan members
and those of the contributing employers are made at the statuenmijred rates. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected t@itabla to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Theraloedpngterm expectedrate of return on
pensionplan invesmentswas appliedto all peiods of projectedbenefit paymens to detemine the
total pensionliability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabili@henges in the Discount Rate
- The following table presents the City’s proportionate share oféh@ension liability calculated using
the current period discount rate assumption of 8 percent as well as whiyh@rGportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discatetthat is one percentage point
lower (7 percent) or one percentage point higher (9 percent) than the cateent
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Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7%) (8%) (9%)
City’s Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Lidlky $5,106,576 $2,775,746 $812,624

Actuarial Assumptions - OPF

OPF’s total pension liability as of December 31, 2014, is based on the results of aialaclsation
date of January 1, 2014, and rolled forward using generally accepted aqioacidures. The total
pension liability is determined by OPF’s actuaries in accaelavith GASB Statement No. 67 as part of
their annual valuation. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve @ssr&reported amounts and
assumptions about probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Esamglde assumptions
about future employment, mortality, salary increases, disabilitiegiemeints, and employment
terminations. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continualraue potential modifications
as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are méue fahamet

Key methods and assumptions used in calculating the total pension liabilthe latest actuarial
valuation prepared as ofnlaary 1, 2014, are presented below.

Valuation Date January 1, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method entry age normal
Investment Rate of Return 8.25 percent
Projected Salary Increases 4.25 percent to 11 percent
Payroll Increases 3.75 percent
Inflation Assumptions 3.25 percent

Cost of Living Adjustments 2.6 percent and 3 percent

Mortality rates are based on the-RB00 Combined Table, age adjusted as follows. For active members,
set back six years. For disability retirements, set forward five yearpofite and three years for
firefighters. For service retirements, set back zero years for police angetw® for firefighters. For
beneficiaries, set back zero years. The rates are applied on a fully generais)alith a base year of
2009, usig mortality improvement Scale AA.

The most recent experience study was completed January 1, 2012.

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined usidmg blaick
approach and assumes a time horizon as defindx iStatement of Investment Policy. A forecasted rate
of inflation serves as the baseline for the return expectation. Variouseteal premiums over the
baseline inflation rate have been established for each asset class. THeerfoagpected nomihaate of
return has been determined by calculating a weighted average of the expectetineglremiums for
each asset class, adding the projected inflation rate, and adding the expectettamtusbalancing
uncorrelated asset classes. Best estisnaf the longerm expected geometric real rates of return for
each major asset class included in OPF's target asset allocation as of Decerb&#d 3dre summarized
below.
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Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Cash and Cash Equivalents - % (0.25) %
Domestic Equities 16.00 4.47
Non-U.S. Equities 16.00 4.47
Core Fixed Income* 20.00 1.62
Global Inflation Protected* 20.00 1.33
High Yield 15.00 3.39
Real Estate 12.00 3.93
Private Markets 8.00 6.98
Timber 5.00 4.92
Master Limited Partnerships 8.00 7.03
Total 120.00 %

* levered 2x

OPF’s Board of Trustees has incorporated the “risk parity” concept intés @B$et liabity valuation
with the goal of reducing equity risk exposure, which reduces overall totablportfsk without
sacrificing return and creating a more risk balanced portfolio basettie relationship between asset
classes and economic environments. Ftbennotional portfolio perspective above, the total portfolio
may be levered up to 1.2 times due to the application of leverage in certaimmidome asset classes.

Discount Rate The total pension liability was calculated using the discount rate of 8.25 peftkat
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed titleugons from employers
and from the members would be computed based on contribution requirements as stipuftizte by
statute. Projected inflows from invesint earnings were calculated using the loitgan assumed
investment rate of return of 8.25 percent. Based on those assumptionsnthdighlaiary net position
was projected to be available to make all future benefit payméotgrent plan membersTherefore, a
longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all pémpodeaed
benefits to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension LabiliChange# the Discount Rate

- Net pension liability is sensitive to changes in the discount ratetailtlistrate the potential impact,
the following table presents the net pension liability calculated usangdiscount rate of 8.25 percent as
well as what lhe net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discouattiat is one
percentage point lower (7.25 percent) or one percentage point higher (9 @%t)kkran the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7.25%) (8.25%) (9.25%)
City’s Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability $5,927,94€ $4,285,82€ $2,895,45C
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A. Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

Plan Descriptionr The Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) administers threstesepar
pension plans: the traditional plan, a esisaring multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan; the
memberdirected plan, a defined contribution plan; and the combined plan, @haogstg multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined laemefdefined
contribution plan.

OPERS maintains two cesharing multipleemployer defined benefit postemployment health care trusts
which fund multiple health care plans including matlmoverage, prescription drug coverage, deposits to
a health reimbursement arrangement, and Medicare Part B premium reimbusdenogsadifying benefit
recipients of both the traditional pension and combined plans. Membirs wiembedirected plan do

not qualify for ancillary benefits including OPERS sponsored health careageve

In order to qualify for postemployment health care coverage, age and servezsnender the traditional
pension and combined plans must have twenty or more yearmlifiyipg Ohio service credit. Health
care coverage for disability benefit recipients and qualified survivor begeiitignts is available. The
health care coverage provided by OPERS meets the definition of an other glogteemt benefit
(OPEB) as desibed in Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. d&. S
OPERS’ CAFR referenced below for additional information.

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not require, OPERS to providechealtt its eligible benefit
recipients. Authority to establish and amend health care coverage is providedBoard in Chapter 145
of the Ohio Revised Code.

Disclosures for the health care plan are presented separately in the OPERS fiepordialhich may be
obtained by visiting https://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shiniby writing to the Ohio Public
Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio4&2,5%or by calling 800
222-73717.

Funding Policy- The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring publicogenglto
fund postemployment health care through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of eachegsploy
contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of postemploymett lcaad.

Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of the earnable salawgy wieatbers. In
2015, state and local employers contributed 14 percent of earnable salans thi@isiaximum employer
contribution rate permitted by the Ohio Revised Code. Active member contribdbomst fund health
care.

OPERS maintains three health care trusts. The twesbasing multipleemployer trusts, the 401(h)
Health Care Trust and the 115 Health Care Trust, work together to prowidedaee funding to eligible
retirees and the traditional pension and combined plans. Thetthst is a Voluntary Employee’s
Beneficiary Association (VEBA) that provides funding for a retiree nadiccount for membstlirected
plan members.
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Each year, the OPERS Board of Trustees determines the portion of gleyencontribution rate that

will be set aside to fund the health care plans. The portion of the employabutiort allocated to
health care fomembers in both the traditional pension and combined plans was 2 percent for 2015. As
recommended by the OPERS actuary, the portion of the employer contribubicaiedl to health care
beginning January 1, 2016, remained at 2 percent for both plans.Bdard is also authorized to
establish rules for the retiree or their surviving benafies to pay a portion of the health care provided.
Payment amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents and the coveiedje Béec
employer contribition as a percentage of covered payroll deposited into the VEBA for pantisiin the
memberdirected plan was 4.5 percent for 2015.

Substantially all of the City’s contribution allocated to fund postemploymenthheadé benefits relates

to the cossharing multipleemployer trusts. The corresponding contribution for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 wa3,414 $6,432 and $27,039, respectively. For 2015, 97
percent has been contributed with the balance being reported as an intergowrpayaile. The full
amount has been contributed for 2014 and 2013.

B. Police and Fire Pension Fund

Plan Description The City contributes to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OPF) sponsored health
care program, a caesharing multipleemployer defined postemployment health care plan administered by
OPF. OPF provides health care benefits including coverage for medicatjpires drug, dental, vision,
Medicare Part B Premium, and leteym care to retirees, qualifying benefit recijige and their eligible
dependents.

OPF provides access to postretirement health care coverage for any person who retelaghie to
receive a monthly service, disability, or statutory survivor benefiis a spouse or eligible dependent
child of such person. The health care coverage provided by OPF meets the definition tbéran o
postemployment benefit (OPEB) as described in Government Accounting Standards(BA&B)
Statement No. 45.

The Ohio Revised Code allows, but does not mandate, OPF to provide OPEB benefitsityAathhie
OPF Board of Trustees to provide health care coverage to eligible patscipahto establish and amend
benefits is codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code.

OPF issues a publicly available financigport that includes financial information and required
supplementary information for the plan. The report may be obtained by widtitng Ohio Police and
Fire Pension Fund, 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio &b or by visiting the OPF websie

www.op-f.org.

Funding Policy- The Ohio Revised Code provides for contribution requirements of the ijpatitig
employers and of plan members to the OPF defined benefit pension plaitipdary employers are
required to contribute to the pension plan at rates expressed as a percentageagfahhefpactive
pension plan members, currently 19.5 percent and 24 percent of covered payrollider gnul
firefighters, respectively. Active members do not make dautions to the OPEB Plan.
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OPF maintains funds for health care in two separate accounts. One for healibreits under an IRS
Code Section 115 trust and one for Medicare Part B premium reimbursedemnsstered as an Internal
Revenue Code 401(h) account, both of which are within the defined benefit pension plarthender
authority granted by the Ohio Revised Code to the OPF Board of Trustees.

The Board of Trustees is authorized to allocate a portion of the total emptoyebution made to the
pension plan to the Section 115 trust and the Section 401(h) account as the engpitimrtion for
retiree health care benefits. For 2015, the employer contribution allocdtesl iealth care plan was
percent of covered payroll. The amount of the employer contribution allocated teealth care plan
each year is subject to the Trustees’ primary responsibility toetsat pension benefits are adequately
funded and is limited by the provisions of Sections 115 and 401(h).

The OPF Board of Trustees is also authorized to establish requirementmfidbutions to the health
care plan by retirees and their eligible dependents or their surviving bemediciBayment amounts vary
depending on theumber of covered dependents and the coverage selected.

The City’s contribution to OPF for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 20%37w8%1,
$354,318 and 888,780 respectively, of which&582 $8,093 and $5,356was allocated to thbeath
care plan. For 2015, 83ercent has been contributed for both police and firefighters withalace
being reported as an intergovernmental payable. The full amount hasdrgebuted for 2014 and
2013.

NOTE 16 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The critera for determining vacation and sick leave benefitssderived from negotiated agreements and
State laws.

City employees earn vacation at varying rates depending upon length of sexviseandard work week.
Current policy permits two weeks of vacation to be carried forward tmllbiing year. Employees are
paid for 100 percent of earned unused vacation leave upon termination.

Sick leave is earned at various rates as defined by City policy and union contratisnidvoemployees

earn sick leaw at a rate of four and stenths hours for every eighty hours worked. Current policy
permits sick leave to be accumulated without limit. Eachuroon employeeor utility worker hired

prior to January 1, 1988, with ten or more years of service witlCity or other political subdivision
within the State of Ohio, is paid for ohalf of their earned unused sick leave upon retirement. Each
non-union employeer utility worker hired after January 1, 1988, at the time of retirement from active
service wih the City, is paid 25 percent of their earned unused sick leave up to a maximum of one
hundred twenty accrued sick days (thirty days total maximum payment).

All bargainingunit employees except firefightersearn sick leave at a rate of foand sixty-two
hundredthf an hourfor everyhourworked. Firefighters earn sick leave at a rate of five and seventy
five hundredths of an hour for every hour workeZurrent policy permits sick leave to be accumulated
without limit. Each bargainingnit employe, at the time of retirement from active service with the City,
is paid for onehalf of their earned unused sick leave up to a maximum of 1,040 dcinkehours (one
hundred thirty days total maximum payment), except for firefiglieesl after January, 1988.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 16 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES (continued)

Firefightersare paid for ondnalf of their earned unused sick leave up to a maximum of six hundred sixty
accrued sick hoursighty two and ondalf days total maximum paymeni)ith fifteen or more yars of
service Firefighters will less than fifteen years of service are paid forfomeh of their earned unused
sick leave up to a maximum of four hundred eighty accrued sick hourg ¢&iys total maximum

payment).

NOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The City’s longterm obligations activity for the year ended Decendigr2015 was as follows:

Restated
Balance Balance
December 31, December 31, Due Within
2014 Additions  Reductions 2015 One Year
Governmental Activities
Othe LongTerm Obligations
Net Pension Liability
Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System $922,437 $21,314 $0 $943,751 $0
Ohio Police and Fire 4,029,274 256,552 0 4,285,826 0
Total Net Pensn Liability 4,951,711 277,866 0 5,229,577 0
Capital Loans Payable 11,870 0 11,870 0 0
Loans Payable 169,967 0 40,038 129,929 41,631
Capital Leases Payable 59,192 0 28,595 30,597 30,597
Compensated Absences Paya 414,965 0 27,270 387,695 128,313

Total Governmental Activities $5,607,705 $277,866  $107,773  $5,777,798 $200,541

Restated
Balance Balance
Interest December 31, December 31, Due Within
Rate 2014 Additions  Reductions 2015 One Year
BusinessType Activities
Mortgage Revenue Bonds
1998 Sewer System Bonds 3.30- 4.95% $1,170,000 $0 $270,000 $900,00C  $285,000
2006 Sewer System Bonds 4-4.25 6,080,000 0 200,000 5,880,00C 200,000
Total Mortgage Reenue Bonds 7,250,000 0 470,000 6,780,00C 485,000
Other LongTerm Obligations
OWDA Loans
Water 8,195,730 0 159,564 8,036,16€ 167,545
Sewer 8,331,845 2,314,831 214,787 10,431,88¢ 0

(continued)
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Restated
Balance Balance
Interest December 31, December 31, Due Within
Rate 2014 Additions  Reductions 2015 One Year
BusinessType Activities(continued)
Other LongTerm bligations(continued)
Net Pension Liability
Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System $1,790,614 $41,381 $0 $1,831,99¢ $0
Capital Loans Payable 11,870 0 11,870 0 0
Loans Payable 431,055 0 101,541 329,514 105,582
Capital Leases Payable 0 596,061 29,241 566,820 77,365
Compensated Absences Paya 355,161 13,643 40,981 327,823 80,410
Landfill Postclosure Costs 1,286,785 0 75,185 1,211,60C 77,542
Total Other Log-Term
Obligations 20,403,060 2,965,916 633,169 22,735,807 508,444
Total BusinessSType Activities $27,653,060 $2,965,916 $1,103,169 $29,515,807 $993,444

Net Pension Liability- The City pays obligations related to employee compensation from the fund
benefitting from their service. For additional information related to theemsion liability, see Notk4
to the basic financial statements

Capital Loans PayablelLoanswere entered into with local banks for the purchase of equipment. The
City paid theloansin equal yearly payments ovthe five yearlife of the loans. The loansere fully

retired during 201%rom resources of the Street Maintenance special revenue fund, and the Sewer, Storm
Sewer, and Refuse enterprise funds.

Loans Payable In 2009, the City obtained a loan from Energy Systems Group, in the amount of
$1,303,630, for energgfficiency upgrades$368,662 at the fire station and $934,968 awtastewater
treatment plant. The loans were obtained for a tenpeyasd with final maturity during 2018. The loans
are being retired through the General Fund and the Sewer enterprise fund. Gdltkeatoamount,
$129,929%nd $829,514was not capitalizetbr governmental activities and in tisewer enterprise fund,
respectively

Capital Leases Payabl&€Capital lease obligations will be paid from the fund that maintains custdbg of
related asset.

Compensated Absenc@ayable- The compensated absences liability will be paid from the fund from
which the employe® salaries are paid. These funds include the General Fund, Street Maintenance
special revenue fund, Electric, Water, Sewer, and Refuse enterprise fundse &mbineering internal
service fund.
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City of Wapakoneta
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Mortgage Reenue Bonds Mortgage revenue bonds are special obligations of the City secured by a lien
upon the assets of the respective system. These bonds are payable solely from thesgress otthe
respective system after provisions for reasonable operatntlg maintenance expenses. The bond
indentures have certain restrictive covenants and principally require that feserve funds be
maintained and charges for services to customers be in sufficient amounts totsatidflygations under

the indenture agements. In addition, special provisions exist regarding covenant vislation
redemptions of principal, and maintenance of properties.

1998 Sewer System Bond©n November 30, 1998, the City issued $4,190,000 in sewer system
bonds to advance refund990 sewer systemobds and pay the costs of certain other
improvements to the sewer system. The refunding bonds include serial and term bbads
bonds were issued for a twenty year period, with final maturity during 2018. The bonbse will
paid from he Sewer enterprise fund.

The term bonds maturing on December 1, 2018, are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption, in part by lot, pursuant to the terms of the mandatory sinking fdathpgon
requirements of the City. The mandatory redemptido igccur on December 1, in each of the
years 2010 through 2017 (with the balance of $315,000 to be paid at stated maturity ,iat2918)
redemption priced equal to 100 percent of the principal amount redeemed plus accrasttinte

the redemption dateccording to the following schedule:

Year Amount
2010 $210,000
2011 25,000
2012 235,000
2013 245,000
2014 255,000
2015 270,000
2016 285,000
2017 300,000

The bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2009, are subject to optional redepniotr to
maturity, commencingon December 1, 209 either in whole or in part, in inverse order of
maturity and by lot within any maturity, at the redemption prices ésged as percentages of the
principal amount redeemed) plascrued interest to the redemptutateas set forth below:

Redemption Dates

(Dates Inclusive) Redemption Prices
December 1, 2008, through November 30, 2( 101%
December 1, 2009, through November 30, 2( 100.5
December 1, 2010, and thereafter 100
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Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

In conjunction with the issuance of the sewer system bonds, the City entered timist a
agreement with a commercial bank. This trust agreement, along with thendentlire, requires
thatthe City establish various funds for the repayment of debt. The restgsets in the Sewer
enterprise fund segregate funds held by the City from funds held by the inusteerdance with
the trust agreement. Restricted assets relating to the sggtem bondbeld by the trusteat
December 31, 2B, were 858,110.

2006 Sewer System Bond©n June 1, 2006, the City issued $7,425,008eiver system bonds
for improvements to the wastewater collection and sewer system. The bonds wereoisaued f
twenty year periodwith final maturity during 2026 The bonds will begaid from the Sewer
enterprise fund.

The bonds maturing on or after December 1, 2017, are subject to optional redemptida pri
maturity, commencingpon December 1, 2016, eithen whole or in part, in inverse order of
maturity and by lot within any maturity, at 100 percent of the principal amodetmeed plus
accrued interest to the redemptitate

In conjunction with the issuance of the sewer system bonds, the City entyed frust
agreement with a commercial bank. This trust agreement, along with thendentlire, requires
that the City establish various funds for the repayment of debt. Thietessaissets in the Sewer
enterprise fund segregate funds held by the City from funds held by the inusteerdance with
the trust agreement. Restricted assets relating to the sewer systenimdldniols the trusteat
December 31, 201%vere $72,082.

The mortgage revenue bonds will be paid from the gross revenues $éwer enterprise fund after
provisions for reasonable operating and maintenance expenses. Annual principagrast patyments
on the bonds are expected to require less than 100 percent of these net iaviemuesyears. Principal
and interest pai@dn the bonds from the Sewer enterprise fund during 204$ $784,190. Total net
revenues for the Sewer enterprise fuate$1,886,955.

OWDA Loans- OWDA loans consist of money owed to the Ohio Water Development Authority for
newwatertreatmentlant, a wellfield and raw water line improvementslongterm control plan design
and south inceptor improvemen®WDA loans will be paid from th#&/ater andsewerenterprise funsl

The OWDA loans will be paid from the groesvenues of the Water arf@kewer enterprise funds after
provisions for reasonable operating and maintenance expenses. Annual principatrast patymest
on theloansare expected to require less than 100 percent of these net revenues inefartsirBryncipal
and nterest paid o the loangduring 2015was $566,773from the Water enterprise furahd $522,075
from the Sewer enterprise fundTotal netrevenues for th&Vater andSewer enterprise fusdwvere
$380,780 and $1,886,958spectively The OWDA loans argayable through 2040 from the afér
enterprisedind. The loans related to thevier enterprise fund afer projects not yet completezhda
repayment schedule has not yet been established.

Due toAMP-Ohio - The City of Wapakoneta is a member of American Municipal Pow&iR) and a
participant in the American Municipal Power Generating StatiofeBrdAMPGS). This project was
intended to develop a pulverized coal power plant in Meigs County, Ohio. The $iye of the project
was 5,000 kW of a total capacity of 77812kW, giving the City a .65 percent share of the project.
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NOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The AMPGS project required participants to sign “take or paytraots with AMP. As such, the
participants are obligated to pay any costs incurredhfmproject. In November 2009, the participants
voted to terminate the AMPGS project due to projected escalating cbsese costs wer¢herefore,
deemed impaired and participants were obligated to pay cosashaireurred. As a result of a March
31, 2014, legal ruling, the AMP Board of Trustees on April 15, 2014, and the AMPGS particmant
April 16, 2014, approved the collection of the impaired costs and providegaitticipants with an
estimate of their liability.

The City’s estimated shard the impired costs at March 31, 281was $860980. The City received a
credit of $283,700 related to its participation in the AMP Fremont EnergyeCOREEC) projectand
another credit of $226,124 related to the AMPGS costs deemed to havebiemefe for the project
participants leaving a net impaired cost estimate of $351,156. The Cityepaded a liability of
$541,378 for its estimated share of the impaired costs at Dec&hb2012, which the City paid during
2013. As a result of the paymén excess of the final impaired cost estimate, the City is repdzash
and GashEquivalentswith Fiscal Agent on the statement of net positiothe Electric enterprise furfdr
the amount still being held on account with AMP. This amount was $178Icember B 2015.

Any additional costs or amounts received related to the project may reauitture liability to the City.
These amounts will be recorded as they become estimable.

The City's legal debt margin wad.%$,895,572 at December 31, 2015.
Thelong-term control plan desigand south inceptor improvemeprojects funded by OWDA loans have
not been completed. An amortization schedule for the repayment loftewill not be available until

the projects are completed and, therefare nat included in the following schedule.

Principal and interest requirements to retiowgynmenthactivitieslongterm obligations outstanding at
December 31, 201%vere as follows:

Loans
Year Principal Interest
2016 $41,631 $4,713
2017 43,288 3,057
2018 45,010 1,334
$129,929 $9,104
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NOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Principal and interest requirements to retire g obligationsoutstanding at December 31,13)

from the enterprise funds were as follows:

Mortgage Revenue

Bonds OWDA Loans
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $485,000 $292,825 $167,54¢ $315,825
2017 525,000 270,717 175,93: 309,140
2018 540,000 246,868 184,745 302,119
2019 565,000 222275 194007 294,746
2020 585,000 198,262 203,74C 287,001
2021 to0 2025 3,325,000 596,275 1,182,97¢ 1,304,468
2026to 20 755,000 32,088 1,512,61( 1,043,056
2031 to 2035 0 0 1,935,66: 708,401
2036to 2040 0 0 2,478,94¢ 279,658
Total $6,780,000 $1,859,31C $8,036,16¢ $4,844,414
Loans
Year Principal Interest
2016 $105,582 $11,953
2017 109,782 7,752
2018 114,150 3,384
$329,514 $23,089

NOTE 18- CAPITAL LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE

The City has entered intmpitalized leassfor vehiclesand equipment. Principal payments in 2015 were
$28,595for governmental activities an@$,241in the Refuse enterprise fund.

Equipment

Vehicles

Less Accumulate®epreciation

Total

Governmental BusinessFype
Activities Activities

$0 $71,170

91,929 524,891

(18,384) (34,332)

$73,545 $561,729
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NOTE 18- CAPITAL LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE (continued)

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease paymeqtsred under the capital leasend
the present value of the minimum leg@sgments as of December 31, 2015.

Governmental Activities BusinessFype Activities

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $30,597 $2,141 $77,365 $18,892
2017 0 0 79,945 16,312
2018 0 0 82,614 13,643
2019 0 0 85,371 10,886
2020 0 0 88,222 8,035
2021-2022 0 0 153,303 7,138
Total $30,597 $2,141 $566,820 $74,906

NOTE 19 -LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to perforninceraintenance and monitoring
functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. The Ciyptd accepting waste at its landfill

in 1994. The Ohio EPA approved the final closure and postclosure plan in July 1998, ZhE580
reported as landfill postclosure costs at December 315, 2@presents the costs of maintenance and
monitoring through 2028. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, os change
in regulations. A fee of $3 and $1.50 per month was imposedramercial and residential refuse users,
respectively, to finance the postclosure costs, which generates appebxBist,000 annually.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to providerassuithat financial
resources will be available to provide for fmbssure care and remediation or containment of
environmental hazards at the landfill. The City has passed the finacctalndability test proving the
ability to selffund these future costs.

NOTE 20 -INTERFUND TRANSFERS

During 2015, the General Fdmade transfers to the Street and Sewer Improvement capital projects fund,
in the amount of &5,000 as debt payments came due. The General Fund also made transfers to other
governmental funds, in the amount dB5$000to subsidize activities in otheurids.
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NOTE 21 - FUND BALANCE

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigiied,uaassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraipissad upon the use of the
resources in goverrental funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental
funds and all other governmental funds are presented below:

Street
and Sewer Other
Fund Balance General Improvement Governmental Total

Nonspendable for:

Materials and Supplies $17,691 $0 $21,751 $39,442

Prepaid Items 25,995 0 6,466 32,461

Unclaimed Monies 36,841 0 0 36,841
Total Nonspendable 80,527 0 28,217 108,744
Restricted for:

Debt Retirement 0 0 1,160 1,160

Economic Development 0 0 653,241 653,241

Police Operations 2,698 0 11,438 14,136

Recreation 0 0 1,802 1,802

Street Construction and

Maintenance 0 10,237 523,363 533,600
Total Restricted 2,698 10,237 1,191,004 1,203,939
Assigned for:

Debt Retirement 0 0 233,152 233,152

Swimming Pool Operations 24,056 0 0 24,056

Projected Budget Shortage 706,620 0 0 706,620

Purchases on Order 34,459 0 0 34,459
Total Assigned 765,135 0 233,152 998287
UnassignedDeficit) 1,256,912 0 (1,389) 1,255,523
Total Fund Balance $2,105,272 $10,237 $1,450,984 $3,566,493

NOTE 22 -INSURANCE POOL

The City participates in the OhRlanRisk Management (Plan), an insurance purchasing pool cogsistin
of various entities in the State of Ohio. The intent of the Plan is tev&ckhe benefit of a reduced
premium for the City by virtue of its grouping and representation with qhsdicipants in the Plan.
Each participant enters into ardividual ageement with the Plan for insurance coverage and pays annual
premiums to the plan based on the types and limits of coverage and deductitited seje the
participant. Membership in the Plan is by written application subject to the approval Bfghd/anager.
Financial information may be obtained from the ORian Risk Management, 1505 Jefferson Avenue,
Toledo, Ohio 43603.
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NOTE 23 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A. Litigation

The City of Wapakoneta is a party to legal proceeslsegking damagesr injundive relief generdly
incidental to its operations and pending projeds. of the date of these financial statements, the City
management is unable to determine if the disposition of such claims and egsgdings will have a
material effect on the financial condition of the City.

A complaint with jury demand was filed with the United States District outhe Northern District of

Ohio, Western Division on January 9, 2014, alleging unfair termin&tiom employment. The case has
proceeded to mediation and offers and counteroffers have been presentediemddr by all parties;

however, a resolution has yet to be accepted and approved by the parties. Manageevesst dreli
agreement and offer acceptance will be completed prior to the year &wtiamber 31, 2016.

B. Federal and State Grants

For the period January 2015,to December 31, 2%, the City received statand federalgrants for
specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the graetwiesor their designees. Such
audits could lead to a request for reimbursement to the grageorcy for expenditures disallowed under
the terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, the City believes suahwdisabs, if any, would be
immaterial.
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City of Wapakoneta

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional
Last Two Years (1)

City's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability

City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability

City's Covered Employee Payroll

City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Employee Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension

Liability

(1) Information prior to 2013 is not available.

Amounts presented as of the City's

measurement date which is the prior year end.
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2014

2013

0.02301400%

$2,775,746

$2,821,592

98.38%

86.45%

0.02301400%

$2,713,051

$2,703,873

100.34%

86.36%



City of Wapakoneta
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund
Last Two Years (1)

2014 2013
City's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability 0.08273130% 0.08273130%
City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability $4,285,826 $4,029,274
City's Covered Employee Payroll $1,618,630 $1,779,275
City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll 264.78% 226.46%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension
Liability 72.20% 73.00%

(1) Information prior to 2013 is not available.

Amounts presented as of the City's
measurement date which is the prior year end.
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City of Wapakoneta

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the City's Contributions
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional Plan

Last Three Years

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
City Covered Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Employee Payroll

(1) Information prior to 2013 is not available.
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2015 2014 2013
$344,483 $338,591 $351,504
(344,483) (338,591) (351,504)

$0 $0 $0
$2,870,603  $2,821,592 $2,703,873
12.00% 12.00% 13.00%



City of Wapakoneta

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the City's Contributions
Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

Last Ten Years

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
City Covered Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Employee Payroll

2015 2014 2013 2012
$367,289 $346,225 $323,424 $281,890
(367,289) (346,225) (323,424) (281,890)

$0 $0 $0 $0
$1,716,519 $1,618,630  $1,779,275  $1,888,878
21.40% 21.39% 18.18% 14.92%
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2011

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$274,662 $228,561 $265,667 $255,384 $251,103 $191,408
(274,662) (228,561) (265,667) (255,384) (251,103) (191,408)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$1,844,755  $1,510,792  $1,774,143  $1,704,421  $1,678,139  $1,361,447
14.89% 15.13% 14.97% 14.98% 14.96% 14.06%
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City of Wapakoneta
Combining Statements - Nonmajor GovernmeFRtaids

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of seefiae sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes, other than for debt serviepital projects.
Following is a description of the City’s nonroajspecial revenue funds:

Street Maintenance Fund
To account for 92.5 percent of the state gasaiime@nd motor vehicle registration feesstricted
for street maintenance arepair.

State Highway Fund
To account for 7.5 percent of the state gasdkxeand motor vehicle registration feesstricted
for maintenance and repair of state highways within in the City.

Motor Vehicle Permissive Tax Fund
To account for additional motor vehicle registration femged by the City and restricted for
street matenance and repair

Community Block Grant Fund
To account fogrants receivednder the Community Development Block Grant Program as well
as the revolving loan programstricted for the revolving loan prograamd other community
development expenditeis

Recreation Fund
To account forproperty taxes, grantglonations,and other resources restrictém recreation
activities.

Law Enforcement Fund
To account for fineandforfeitures restricted for law enforcement purposes

Enforcement and Education Fund
To account for fines and forfeitures charged for driving under tHeeime arrests. These
resources are restrictéal enforcement and education programs to prevent occurrences of driving
under the influence.

Drug Law Enforcement Fund
To account dr the sale of confiscated propentgstrictedfor use on drug law enforcement
activities.

Rudd Park Trust Fund

To account fomoniesfrom the Wapakoneta Area Community Foundatiestricted for usen
Rudd Park.

(continued)

91



City of Wapakoneta
Combining Statements - Nonmajor GovernmeFRtaids
(continued)

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

Debt service funds are used to account for resources that are restricted,tedmonitassigned to
expenditure for debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Debt Service Fund
To account for transfers from the Street and Sewer Improvefuenlrestricted for the payment
of principal,interest and fiscal charges

Downtown Debt Fund
To account for transfers from ti@eneral Fund assigned for the paymenpiificipal,interest
and fiscal charges

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for resources that areéa@stacnmitted, or assigned for the
acquisition or construction ohajor capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those finayced
the enterprise funds.)

Capital Fire Truck Fund
To account for transfers from the General Fund assigned for the purchepeioof fire trucks.
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City of Wapakoneta
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015

Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Total

Special Debt Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Service Projects Governmenta

Funds Funds Funds Funds

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,002,213 $44,316 $189,996 $1,236,5
Accounts Receivable 23,872 0 0 23,872
Due from Other Governments 240,839 0 0 240,839
Other Local Taxes Receivable 6,237 0 0 6,237
Prepaid Items 6,466 0 0 6,466
Materials and Supplies Inventory 21,751 0 0 21,751
Property Taxes Receivable 99,669 0 0 99,669
Notes Receivable 175,001 0 0 175,001
Total Assets $1,576,048 $44,316 $189,996 $1,810,3
Liabilities
Accrued Wages Payable $6,472 $0 $0 $6,47:
Accounts Payable 8,340 0 0 8,340
Contracts Payable 5,098 0 0 5,098
Due to Other Governments 3,107 0 0 3,107
Interfund Payable 27,573 0 0 27,573
Total Liabilities 50,590 0 0 50,590
Deferred Inflows of Resouces
Property Taxes 98,571 0 0 98,571
Unavailable Revenue 210,215 0 0 210,215
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 308,786 0 0 308,786
Fund Balance
Nonspendable 28,217 0 0 28,217
Restricted 1,189,844 1,160 0 1,191,004
Assigned 0 43,156 189,996 233,15
Unassigned (Deficit) (1,389) 0 0 (1,389)
Total Fund Balance 1,216,672 44,316 189,996 1,450,9i
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balance $1,576,048 $44,316 $189,996 $1,810,3
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City of Wapakoneta
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

December 31, 2015

Motor
Street State Vehicle Community

Maintenance Highway Permissive Tax Block Grant
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $133,622 $277,654 $74,898 $480,8'
Accounts Receivable 23,872 0 0 0
Due from Other Governments 211,507 17,132 0 0
Other Local Taxes Receivable 0 0 6,237 0
Prepaid Items 5,604 0 0 0
Materials and Supplies Inventory 18,650 0 0 0
Property Taxes Receivable 0 0 0 0
Notes Receivable 0 0 0 175,001
Total Assets $393,255 $294,786 $81,135 $655,8'
Liabilities
Accrued Wages Payable $5,485 $0 $0 $0
Accounts Payable 5,089 0 0 2,652
Contracts Payable 0 0 5,098 0
Due to Other Governments 1,831 0 0 0
Interfund Payable 601 0 0 0
Total Liabilities 13,006 0 5,098 2,652
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 0 0 0 0
Unavailable Revenue 189,156 14,299 0 0
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 189,156 14,299 0 0
Fund Balance
Nonspendable 24,254 0 0 0
Restricted 166,839 280,487 76,037 653,2¢
Unassigned (Deficit) 0 0 0 0
Total Fund Balance 191,093 280,487 76,037 653,2¢
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balance $393,255 $294,786 $81,135 $655,8'
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Enforcement Drug
Law and Law Rudd Park
Recreation Enforcement Education Enforcement Trust Total
$22,190 $2,486 $3,938 $4,731 $1,802 $1,002,213
0 0 0 0 0 23,872
11,917 0 117 166 0 240,839
0 0 0 0 0 6,237
862 0 0 0 0 6,466
3,101 0 0 0 0 21,751
99,669 0 0 0 0 99,669
0 0 0 0 0 175,001
$137,739 $2,486 $4,055 $4,897 $1,802 $1,576,048
$987 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,472
599 0 0 0 0 8,340
0 0 0 0 0 5,098
1,276 0 0 0 0 3,107
26,972 0 0 0 0 27,573
29,834 0 0 0 0 50,590
98,571 0 0 0 0 98,571
6,760 0 0 0 0 210,215
105,331 0 0 0 0 308,786
3,963 0 0 0 0 28,217
0 2,486 4,055 4,897 1,802 1,189,844
(1,389) 0 0 0 0 (1,389)
2,574 2,486 4,055 4,897 1,802 1,216,672
$137,739 $2,486 $4,055 $4,897 $1,802 $1,576,048
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City of Wapakoneta
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
December 31, 2015

Debt Downtown
Service Debt Total

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,160 $43,156 $44,31
Fund Balance

Restricted $1,160 $0 $1,16C
Assigned 0 43,156 43,156
Total Fund Balance $1,160 $43,156 $44,31
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City of Wapakoneta
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmenta
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Revenues
Property Taxes $97,272 $0 $0 $97,27.
Other Local Taxes 76,616 0 0 76,616
Charges for Services 55,077 0 0 55,077
Fines and Forfeitures 2,358 0 0 2,358
Intergovernmental 477,214 0 0 477,214
Interest 22,643 0 0 22,643
Gifts and Donations 14,125 0 0 14,125
Other 36,506 0 0 36,506
Total Revenues 781,811 0 0 781,811
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Police 1,200 0 0 1,200
Fire 0 0 169,550 169,55C
Leisure Time Activities 135,594 0 0 135,594
Community Environment 11,856 0 0 11,856
Transportation 492,497 0 0 492,497
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 11,870 0 0 11,870
Interest and Fiscal Charges 525 0 0 525
Total Expenditures 653,542 0 169,550 823,092

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures 128,269 0 (169,550) (41,281
Other Financing Sources

Transfers In 15,000 0 0 15,000
Change in Fund Balance 143,269 0 (169,550) (26,281
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,073,403 44,316 359,546 1,477,2
Fund Balance End of Year $1,216,672 $44,316 $189,996 $1,450,9
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City of Wapakoneta

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Change in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Motor
Street State Vehicle Community
Maintenance Highway Permissive Tax Block Grant
Revenues
Property Taxes $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Local Taxes 0 0 76,616 0
Charges for Services 55,077 0 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 430,813 34,932 0 0
Interest 495 3,404 2,251 12,60!
Gifts and Donations 0 0 0 0
Other 29,521 0 0 0
Total Revenues 515,906 38,336 78,867 12,6C
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Police 0 0 0 0
Leisure Time Activities 0 0 0 0
Community Environment 0 0 0 11,856
Transportation 347,654 0 144,843 0
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 11,870 0 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 525 0 0 0
Total Expenditures 360,049 0 144,843 11,856

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures 155,857 38,336 (65,976) 74
Other Financing Sources

Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Change in Fund Balance 155,857 38,336 (65,976) 74
Fund Balance (Deficit) Beginning of Year 35,236 242,151 142,013 652,4¢
Fund Balance End of Year $191,093 $280,487 $76,037 $653,2.
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Enforcement Drug
Law and Law Rudd Park
Recreation Enforcement Education Enforcement Trust Total
$97,272 $0 $0 $0 $0 $97,272

0 0 0 0 0 76,616

0 0 0 0 0 55,077

0 32 684 1,642 0 2,358

11,469 0 0 0 0 477,214

3,888 0 0 0 0 22,643

14,125 0 0 0 0 14,125

6,940 45 0 0 0 36,506

133,694 77 684 1,642 0 781,811

0 0 1,200 0 0 1,200

135,594 0 0 0 0 135,594

0 0 0 0 0 11,856

0 0 0 0 0 492,497

0 0 0 0 0 11,870

0 0 0 0 0 525

135,594 0 1,200 0 0 653,542

(1,900) 77 (516) 1,642 0 128,269

15,000 0 0 0 0 15,000

13,100 77 (516) 1,642 0 143,269
(10,526) 2,409 4,571 3,255 1,802 1,073,403
$2,574 $2,486 $4,055 $4,897 $1,802 $1,216,672

99



City of Wapakoneta

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

Revenues

Expenditures

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

and Change in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Debt Downtown
Service Debt Total
$0 $0 $0
0 0 0
0 0 0
1,160 43,156 44,31¢
$1,160 $43,156 $44,31
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City of Wapakoneta
Combining Statements - Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held byitiienCa trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.

Agency Funds
Dependent Coverage Fund

To account for funds deducted from employees’ payroll for dependent, capayme COBRA
insurance coverage.

Police Auxiliary Fund
To account for monies belonging to the police auxiliary, an organizatioisthat a part of the
City of Wapakoneta.
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City of Wapakoneta

Combining Statement of Change in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Dependent Coverage
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Liabilities
Undistributed Assets

Police Auxiliary
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Liabilities
Undistributed Assets

Total - All Funds
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Liabilities
Undistributed Assets

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31
2014 Additions Reductions 2015
$1,531 $1,174 $0 $2,70!
$1,531 $1,174 $0 $2,70!
$2,916 $3,895 $0 $6,81.
$2,916 $3,895 $0 $6,81.
$4,447 $5,069 $0 $9,51
$4,447 $5,069 $0 $9,51
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INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES,
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALAN CE

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

10c



City of Wapakoneta
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Original Revised Over
Budget Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Property Taxes $350,350 $368,215 $368,248 $l
Municipal Income Taxes 2,450,000 2,459,000 2,663,083 204,0
Other Local Taxes 691,000 775,960 1,086,091 310,1:
Charges for Services 685,700 700,455 701,879 1,42
Fees, Licenses, and Permits 87,550 97,250 113,940 16,6¢
Fines and Forfeitures 11,500 13,000 17,466 4,46
Intergovernmental 245,500 279,362 296,579 17,21
Interest 17,500 7,900 11,752 3,85
Gifts and Donations 2,000 1,700 58,903 57,20
Other 23,350 33,808 54,321 20,51
Total Revenues 4,564,450 4,736,650 5,372,262 635,6
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Police Department
Personal Services 1,483,519 1,483,519 1,449,113 34,4
Contractual Services 176,306 160,305 133,040 27,2¢
Materials and Supplies 37,559 33,559 22,638 10,92
Capital Outlay 72,118 72,118 37,675 34,44
Total Police Department 1,769,502 1,749,501 1,642,466 107,0
Fire Department
Personal Services 1,343,000 1,343,000 1,347,346 4,3
Contractual Services 98,014 85,814 67,999 17,81
Materials and Supplies 48,121 40,321 31,485 8,83
Capital Outlay 47,587 47,587 42,886 4,70
Total Fire Department 1,536,722 1,516,722 1,489,716 27,0
Safety Director
Personal Services 5,500 5,500 4,673 82
Materials and Supplies 1,600 1,600 0 1,600
Total Safety Director 7,100 7,100 4,673 2,42
Total Security of Persons
and Property 3,313,324 3,273,323 3,136,855 136,4
Public Health
Emergency Medical
Personal Services 76,336 76,335 74,695 1,64
Contractual Services 86,870 78,770 64,961 13,80
Materials and Supplies 16,527 16,627 13,217 3,41
Capital Outlay 17,500 32,500 29,220 3,28
Other 4,100 4,100 1,274 2,82
Total Emergency Medical 201,333 208,332 183,367 24,9¢
(continued]
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Miscellaneous
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay

Total Miscellaneous
Total Public Health

Leisure Time Activites
Recreation
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay

Total Leisure Time Activities

Community Environment
Boards and Commissions
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay

Total Community Environment

General Government
Council
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies

Total Council

Clerk of Council
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies

Total Clerk of Council

Administrative
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay

Total Administrative

City of Wapakoneta
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(continued)

Variance
Original Revised Over
Budget Budget Actual (Under)

$20,000 $8,000 $518 $7,48
8,200 8,200 8,217 (13
28,200 16,200 8,735 7,46
229,533 224,532 192,102 32,4¢
140,900 140,900 112,531 28,3¢€
34,171 28,777 28,737 4
68,250 73,644 73,609 3!
30,239 30,239 18,556 11,68
273,560 273,560 233,433 40,17
77,568 77,568 62,926 14,64
30,526 30,526 14,771 15,75

15,000 0 0 0
123,094 108,094 77,697 30,3¢
43,300 45,800 45,700 10
10,000 7,500 4,179 3,32
53,300 53,300 49,879 3,42

3,900 4,000 4,000 0
4,754 4,754 4,324 43(

100 0 0 0
8,754 8,754 8,324 43(
86,000 90,500 87,521 2,97
50,035 346,295 346,196 9
89,959 73,899 56,876 17,02
7,000 7,000 4,562 2,43i
232,994 517,694 495,155 22,57
(continued]
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Finance
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies

Total Finance

Income Tax
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Income Tax

Law Director
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies

Total Law Director

Civil Service
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies

Total Civil Service

Elections
Contractual Services

Auglaize County
Contractual Services

Administrative Support
Other

Total General Government

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

City of Wapakoneta
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(continued)

Variance
Original Revised Over
Budget Budget Actual (Under)

$34,500 $35,000 $35,000 $
62,000 61,500 53,481 8,01
2,500 2,500 256 2,24
99,000 99,000 88,737 10,26
72,900 80,400 74,381 6,01
9,377 9,377 6,560 2,81
19,371 19,371 8,992 10,37
2,000 2,000 666 1,33¢
70,200 70,200 69,556 64
173,848 181,348 160,155 21,1¢

26,000 26,000 26,000 0

1,000 1,000 0 1,000
1,000 1,000 806 19¢
28,000 28,000 26,806 1,19
1,200 1,200 1,000 20(
8,000 8,000 525 7,47!
9,200 9,200 1,525 7,67
7,500 1,400 1,165 23!
14,400 10,500 14,838 (4,33
93,241 43,241 6,200 37,04
720,237 952,437 852,784 99,6t

40,038 40,038 40,038 0
6,962 6,962 6,306 65¢
47,000 47,000 46,344 65
4,706,748 4,878,946 4,539,215 339,7
(142,298) (142,296) 833,047 975,3¢
(continued]
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City of Wapakoneta
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
(continued)

Variance

Original Revised Over

Budget Budget Actual (Under)
Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out ($655,000) ($640,000) ($640,000) g
Change in Fund Balance (797,298) (782,296) 193,047 975,3¢
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,473,574 1,473,574 1,473,574 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 56,920 56,920 56,920 0
Fund Balance End of Year $733,196 $748,198 $1,723,541 $975,3
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City of Wapakoneta
Street and Sewer Improvement Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Special Assessments $43,950 $27,686 ($16,26
Intergovernmental 3,024,050 1,300,688 (1,723,3¢
Interest 0 2,874 2,874
Total Revenues 3,068,000 1,331,248 (1,736,7¢
Expenditures
Current:
Transportation
Street and Sewer Improvement

Contractual Services 179,239 161,437 17,80

Materials and Supplies 4,000 3,942 58

Capital Outlay 4,177,052 3,142,902 1,034,1¢

Other 23,500 0 23,500
Total Expenditures 4,383,791 3,308,281 1,075,51
Excess of Revenues
Under Expenditures (1,315,791) (1,977,033) (661,24
Other Financing Sources
Transfers In 625,000 625,000 0
Change in Fund Balance (690,791) (1,352,033) (661,24
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 851,054 851,054 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 200,291 200,291 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) End of Year $360,554 ($300,688) ($661,24
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City of Wapakoneta
Electric Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Charges for Services $17,909,851 $14,921,359 ($2,988,4
Other Local Taxes 55,000 52,684 (2,31¢
Utility Deposits 60,000 32,120 (27,88(
Other 75,361 73,549 (1,812
Total Revenues 18,100,212 15,079,712 (3,020,5(
Expenses
Personal Services 1,172,900 1,090,227 82,67
Contractual Services 17,105,154 15,286,789 1,818,3¢
Materials and Supplies 1,403,503 753,158 650,34
Capital Outlay 2,461,891 2,406,842 55,04
Utility Refunds 60,000 18,820 41,18(
Other 2,622,134 54,213 2,567,92
Total Expenses 24,825,582 19,610,049 5,215,5:
Excess of Revenues
Under Expenses (6,725,370) (4,530,337) 2,195,0:
Transfers In 1,268,378 0 (1,268,378
Transfers Out (1,000,000) 0 1,000,000
Change in Fund Balance (6,456,992) (4,530,337) 1,926,6¢
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 4,176,107 4,176,107 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 2,519,581 2,519,581 0
Fund Balance End of Year $238,696 $2,165,351 $1,926,6¢
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Balance

City of Wapakoneta

Water Enterprise Fund

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Revenues
Charges for Services
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses
Personal Services

Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Other
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest Expense

Total Expenses

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance
Over

Budget Actual (Under)
$1,837,650 $1,860,964 $23,31
1,740 1,625 (115
1,839,390 1,862,589 23,19
483,300 483,038 26:
289,097 265,652 23,44!
497,497 509,108 (11,61
329,944 319,931 10,01
722,400 0 722,400
160,000 159,564 43¢
411,000 407,209 3,79:
2,893,238 2,144,502 748,73
(1,053,848) (281,913) 771,93
977,889 977,889 0
119,539 119,539 0
$43,580 $815,515 $771,93
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City of Wapakoneta
Sewer Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)

Revenues
Charges for Services $3,474,543 $3,304,500 ($170,0¢
OWDA Loan Proceeds 4,119,825 2,314,831 (1,804,9¢
Interest 366 564 198
Other 3,748 3,748 0
Total Revenues 7,598,482 5,623,643 (1,974,8¢
Expenses
Personal Services 795,550 737,352 58,19
Contractual Services 833,284 631,597 201,68
Materials and Supplies 355,157 255,725 99,43
Capital Outlay 4,658,989 3,720,016 938,97
Other 240,795 12,421 228,37
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 788,828 786,328 2,501

Interest Expense 646,272 637,471 8,80:
Total Expenses 8,318,875 6,780,910 1,537,9¢
Change in Fund Balance (720,393) (1,157,267) (436,87
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 2,972,170 2,972,170 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 99,535 99,535 0
Fund Balance End of Year $2,351,312 $1,914,438 ($436,8%
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City of Wapakoneta
Storm Sewer Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over

Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Charges for Services $161,255 $161,255 $(
Other 19,560 19,560 0
Total Revenues 180,815 180,815 0
Expenses
Contractual Services 28,500 4,882 23,61¢
Materials and Supplies 13,000 10,399 2,60!
Capital Outlay 624,585 134,106 490,47
Other 26,980 21,560 5,42(
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 11,940 11,870 7C
Interest Expense 525 525 0
Total Expenses 705,530 183,342 522,18
Change in Fund Balance (524,715) (2,527) 522,18t
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 669,132 669,132 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 39,110 39,110 0
Fund Balance End of Year $183,527 $705,715 $522,18
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City of Wapakoneta
Refuse Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over

Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Charges for Services $1,307,324 $1,232,345 ($74,97
Other 470 2,036 1,566
Total Revenues 1,307,794 1,234,381 (73,41
Expenses
Personal Services 517,800 500,091 17,70
Contractual Services 715,589 633,830 81,75
Materials and Supplies 80,750 70,264 10,48¢
Capital Outlay 86,701 72,941 13,76(
Total Expenses 1,400,840 1,277,126 123,71
Change in Fund Balance (93,046) (42,745) 50,30:
Fund Balance (Deficit) Beginning of Year (3,129) (3,129) 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 61,087 61,087 0
Fund Balance (Deficit) End of Year ($35,088) $15,213 $50,30
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City of Wapakoneta
Street Maintenance Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Change in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Revenues

Charges for Services
Intergovernmental
Interest

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Transportation
Street Maintenance
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Total Transportation
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures
Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance (Deficit) Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)

$41,505 $53,937 $12,43
417,000 431,784 14,78

495 495 0
7,000 19,525 12,52¢
466,000 505,741 39,74
267,575 200,406 67,16
84,552 76,833 7,71¢
91,166 79,520 11,64¢
17,983 17,832 151
461,276 374,591 86,68!

11,875 11,870 5

525 525 0

12,400 12,395 5
473,676 386,986 86,69
(7,676) 118,755 126,43.

(6,944) (6,944) 0

14,836 14,836 0
$216 $126,647 $126,43
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City of Wapakoneta
State Highway Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $34,000 $35,010 $1,01i
Interest 1,000 3,404 2,404
Total Revenues 35,000 38,414 3,41«
Expenditures
Current:
Transportation
State Highway
Capital Outlay 274,000 0 274,000
Total Expenditures 274,000 0 274,000
Change in Fund Balance (239,000) 38,414 277,41
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 239,240 239,240 0
Fund Balance End of Year $240 $277,654 $277,41.
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City of Wapakoneta
Motor Vehicle Permissive Tax Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Other Local Taxes $75,000 $76,271 $1,27
Intergovernmental 50,000 0 (50,000)
Interest 2,500 2,251 (249
Total Revenues 127,500 78,522 (48,97
Expenditures
Current:
Transportation
Motor Vehicle Permissive Tax
Contractual Services 30,000 0 30,000
Capital Outlay 150,000 144,843 5,15
Other 83,500 0 83,500
Total Expenditures 263,500 144,843 118,65
Change in Fund Balance (136,000) (66,321) 69,67
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 136,121 136,121 0
Fund Balance End of Year $121 $69,800 $69,67¢
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City of Wapakoneta
Community Block Grant Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Interest $1,250 $6,336 $5,08t¢
Revolving Loan Payments 41,350 46,321 4,97
Total Revenues 42,600 52,657 10,05
Expenditures
Current:
Community Environment
Community Block Grant
Contractual Services 480,000 9,204 470,79
Change in Fund Balance (437,400) 43,453 480,85:
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 437,439 437,439 0
Fund Balance End of Year $39 $480,892 $480,85:
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City of Wapakoneta
Recreation Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Property Taxes $96,550 $97,272 $72:
Intergovernmental 11,450 11,469 1¢
Interest 8,000 3,888 (4,112
Gifts and Donations 15,000 14,125 (87t
Other 4,500 685 (3,815
Total Revenues 135,500 127,439 (8,06:
Expenditures
Current:
Leisure Time Activities
Recreation

Personal Services 85,500 83,590 1,91(

Contractual Services 37,549 33,954 3,59¢

Materials and Supplies 20,172 17,318 2,85¢

Capital Outlay 9,769 8,161 1,60¢
Total Expenditures 152,990 143,023 9,96
Excess of Revenues
Under Expenditures (17,490) (15,584) 1,90¢
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 30,000 15,000 (15,00(
Transfers Out (12,500) 0 12,500
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 17,500 15,000 (2,50(
Change in Fund Balance 10 (584) (594
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 14,594 14,594 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 7,290 7,290 0
Fund Balance End of Year $21,894 $21,300 ($59:
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City of Wapakoneta
Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $105 $32 ($73
Other $45 $45 $0
Total Revenues $150 $77 (73
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Law Enforcement
Personal Services 1,250 0 1,250
Materials and Supplies 1,250 0 1,250
Total Expenditures 2,500 0 2,500
Change in Fund Balance (2,350) 77 2,427
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 2,409 2,409 0
Fund Balance End of Year $59 $2,486 $2,427
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City of Wapakoneta
Enforcement and Education Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $1,000 $669 ($331
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Enforcement and Education
Materials and Supplies 4,000 1,200 2,80C
Capital Outlay 1,250 0 1,250
Total Expenditures 5,250 1,200 4,05C
Change in Fund Balance (4,250) (531) 3,719
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 4,469 4,469 0
Fund Balance End of Year $219 $3,938 $3,71¢
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City of Wapakoneta
Drug Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $600 $1,583 $98¢
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Drug Law Enforcement
Materials and Supplies 2,500 0 2,500
Capital Outlay 1,000 0 1,000
Total Expenditures 3,500 0 3,500
Change in Fund Balance (2,900) 1,583 4,48¢
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 3,148 3,148 0
Fund Balance End of Year $248 $4,731 $4,48¢
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City of Wapakoneta

Rudd Park Trust Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Revenues
Gifts and Donations

Expenditures
Current:

Leisure Time Activities
Rudd Park
Materials and Supplies
Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)

$0 $0 $0

1,000 0 1,000

(1,000) 0 1,000

1,802 1,802 0
$802 $1,802 $1,00(¢
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City of Wapakoneta
Debt Service Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues $0 $0 $0
Expenditures 0 0 0
Change in Fund Balance 0 0 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,160 1,160 0
Fund Balance End of Year $1,160 $1,160 $C
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City of Wapakoneta
Downtown Debt Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues $0 $0 $0
Expenditures 0 0 0
Change in Fund Balance 0 0 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 43,156 43,156 0
Fund Balance End of Year $43,156 $43,156 $(C
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City of Wapakoneta
Capital Fire Truck Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Revenues $0 $0 $0
Expenditures
Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Fire Department
Capital Outlay 654,500 169,550 484,95
Excess of Revenues
Under Expenditures (654,500) (169,550) 484,95
Other Financing Sources
Transfers In 295,000 0 (295,000)
Change in Fund Balance (359,500) (169,550) 189,95
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 189,546 189,546 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 170,000 170,000 0
Fund Balance End of Year $46 $189,996 $189,95!
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenses,
and Change in Fund Balance

City of Wapakoneta
Engineering Internal Service Fund

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Revenues

Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses
Personal Services

Contractual Services

Materials and Supplies

Capital Outlay

Total Expenses

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)

$197,245 $191,154 ($6,09
15,710 14,737 (97:
145 155 10
213,100 206,046 (7,05:
212,550 199,490 13,06!
14,938 12,696 2,24;
11,214 9,815 1,39¢

1,000 0 1,000
239,702 222,001 17,70
(26,602) (15,955) 10,64°

25,848 25,848 0

1,202 1,202 0
$448 $11,095 $10,64
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City of Wapakoneta
Statistical Section

This part of the City’'s comprehensive annual financial report presentsedeit#ibrmation as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, natostdiees, and required
supplementary information says about the City'sralvdinancial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader undehsta the City’s
financial performance and wedeing have changed over time.

REVENUE CBBCITY ... . ettt e et e e e et e et e et e e e e e e te e nenens S-12

These schedules contain information to help the reader asses$ythanOst significant
local revenue souree

DT CAPACITY . .. ..ttt e et e e e e S-32

Theseschedule present information to helfhe reader assess the affordability of the
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability toeissiditional debt in
the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedulesffer demographic and ecomic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activitike place.

Operating INfOrMALION ... ... e e e e en s S-44

These schedules contain service data to help the reader understand hdoritinetion

in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides andtiiiies it
performs.

Source: Unless otherwise noted the information in theschedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Wapakoneta
Net Position
Last Ten Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2015 2014 2013 2012
Governmental Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets $22,020,402 $21,180,841 $21,411,432 $20,891,
Restricted for
Debt Service 77 0 0 0
Capital Projects 132,894 1,103,853 1,175,919 2,039,4
Other Purposes 1,414,247 1,284,340 1,427,570 1,369,7
Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,535,493) (1,843,855) 2,484,015 2,885,6
Total Governmental Activities Net Position 22,032,127 21,725,179 26,498,936 27,186,:
Business-Type Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets 33,120,662 32,786,072 32,464,606 30,836t
Restricted 1,254,595 1,256,749 1,258,937 1,259,6
Unrestricted 7,759,869 9,010,157 9,831,047 9,353,3
Total Business-Type Activities Net Position 42,135,126 43,052,978 43,554,590 41,449¢
Primary Government
Net Investment in Capital Assets 55,141,064 53,966,913 53,876,038 51,728,:
Restricted 2,801,813 3,644,942 3,862,426 4,668,8
Unrestricted 6,224,376 7,166,302 12,315,062 12,239,(
Total Primary Government Net Position $64,167,253 $64,778,157 $70,053,526 $68,636,

Note: The City reported the impact of GASB Statement No. 68 beginning in 2014
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$20,767,868 $21,307,484 $19,716,391 $19,192,324 $16,550,369 $15,550,482
0 461,278 533,350 609,944 534,616 440,193
2,166,097 2,630,138 2,684,217 2,534,599 4,691,427 1,020,043
1,375,679 1,433,040 1,660,223 1,904,101 1,651,443 3,001,698
3,266,843 2,788,840 3,115,472 4,051,240 3,718,111 3,002,012
27,576,487 28,620,780 27,709,653 28,292,208 27,145,966 23,014,428
29,921,959 27,291,889 21,792,361 18,991,836 18,277,471 18,054,990
1,114,899 1,108,811 1,141,228 1,170,970 1,236,810 1,164,741
9,881,292 11,761,858 14,886,023 15,898,729 15,364,398 15,117,904
40,918,150 40,162,558 37,819,612 36,061,535 34,878,679 34,337,635
50,689,827 48,599,373 41,508,752 38,184,160 34,827,840 33,605,472
4,656,675 5,633,267 6,019,018 6,219,614 8,114,296 5,626,675
13,148,135 14,550,698 18,001,495 19,949,969 19,082,509 18,119,916
$68,494,637 $68,783,338 $65,529,265 $64,353,743 $62,024,645 $57,352,063
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Expenses
Governmental Activities

Security of Persons and Property
Police
Fire
Other
Public Health
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Transportation
General Government
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Governmental Activities Expenses

Business-Type Activities
Electric
Water
Sewer
Storm Sewer
Refuse

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses

Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities

Charges for Services
Security of Persons and Property
Police
Fire
Public Health
Leisure Time Activities
Transportation
General Government
Total Charges for Services

Operating Grants, Contributions, and Interest

Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-Type Activities
Charges for Services
Electric
Water
Sewer
Storm Sewer
Refuse
Total Charges for Services
Operating Grants, Contributions, and Interest
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Business-Type Activities Program Reven

Total Primary Government Program Revenues

City of Wapakoneta
Change in Net Position
Last Ten Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2015 2014 2013 2012
$1,683,537 $1,613,384 $1,516,675 $1,545.¢
1,616,058 1,514,617 1,503,565 1,494,5
2,833 4,426 5,004 4,55
196,477 162,403 180,131 172,1¢
431,140 484,814 463,263 433,67
91,948 126,153 86,893 84,14
1,341,215 1,911,883 2,317,993 2,049,3
539,899 594,323 515,084 510,0%
10,379 8,219 17,988 38,65
5,913,486 6,420,222 6,606,596 6,332,6
16,353,457 15,259,517 15,277,737 13,550,
2,187,437 2,041,383 1,813,945 1,758,9
3,976,364 1,978,245 2,161,928 2,241,6
219,091 155,091 142,646 271,4:
1,134,035 1,102,022 1,089,290 1,113,5
23,870,384 20,536,258 20,485,546 18,936,
29,783,870 26,956,480 27,092,142 25,268,¢
6,820 5117 7,004 6,94
50,320 48,522 50,380 53,96
476,706 398,918 523,208 504,7¢
211,839 195,415 203,119 259,5¢
148,011 104,608 158,633 83,7t
17,604 16,148 33,287 11,97
911,300 768,728 975,631 920,9¢
541,534 509,078 635,984 524,9¢
1,537,762 606,014 1,923,549 837,6:
2,990,596 1,883,820 3,535,164 2,283,6
14,861,386 14,818,934 14,383,981 13,443¢
1,870,405 1,825,871 1,724,995 1,607,6
3,316,260 3,258,877 3,127,622 2,716,3
161,136 155,904 155,599 154,6¢
1,235,415 1,214,454 1,108,914 1,106,2
21,444,602 21,274,040 20,501,111 19,028,¢

0 0 0 0
0 246,836 0 0

ues 21,444,602 21,520,876 20,501,111 19,028,¢
24,435,198 23,404,696 24,036,275 21,312¢
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$1,584,868 $1,443,241 $1,468,762 $1,353,354 $1,283,549 $1,266,253
1,353,865 1,429,639 1,617,800 1,287,195 1,189,033 1,153,285
8,492 15,744 15,744 27,849 14,584 11,066
177,297 198,272 194,857 231,505 231,311 215,334
492,736 452,815 412,328 304,089 217,175 196,271
116,039 88,867 137,689 109,785 87,005 98,537
2,236,189 1,366,298 1,366,920 1,312,919 1,212,316 1,029,441
512,540 559,760 705,023 496,979 568,638 550,479
49,942 63,692 87,500 70,941 82,806 93,647
6,531,968 5,618,328 6,006,623 5,194,616 4,886,417 4,614,313
14,371,849 13,905,809 13,411,381 14,456,015 15,018,241 14,306,107
1,843,734 921,970 827,854 1,084,075 1,022,962 1,013,762
2,171,320 2,235,926 2,927,271 2,231,009 2,095,884 2,077,733
114,124 91,075 85,127 83,831 71,239 120,408
1,053,317 1,080,264 1,005,233 1,022,632 1,413,105 1,033,454
19,554,344 18,235,044 18,256,866 18,877,562 19,621,431 18,551,464
26,086,312 23,853,372 24,263,489 24,072,178 24,507,848 23,165,777
8,473 7,786 9,456 8,911 10,723 9,996
50,157 45,091 43,616 41,361 42,190 49,611
413,758 287,206 380,940 302,651 371,603 296,934
228,629 249,666 197,945 121,592 250 0
94,715 250,147 223,294 231,173 156,627 207,116
23,581 20,145 39,969 36,549 33,621 26,362
819,313 860,041 895,220 742,237 615,014 590,019
582,636 632,254 608,906 863,897 739,172 871,074
572,510 1,493,506 426,237 285,219 2,150,030 161,197
1,974,459 2,985,801 1,930,363 1,891,353 3,504,216 1,622,290
14,410,686 14,824,354 14,731,146 14,705,519 14,907,663 12,848,899
1,560,401 1,619,474 1,651,348 1,609,240 1,544,797 1,404,361
2,415,413 1,983,565 1,789,863 1,845,275 1,888,360 1,856,922
154,095 155,831 158,771 156,374 155,588 156,184
1,114,270 1,070,336 1,085,472 1,112,113 1,085,587 921,989
19,654,865 19,653,560 19,416,600 19,428,521 19,581,995 17,188,355
0 0 0 0 0 13,000
0 247,321 0 0 0 0
19,654,865 19,900,881 19,416,600 19,428,521 19,581,995 17,201,355
21,629,324 22,886,682 21,346,963 21,319,874 23,086,211 18,823,645
S-5 (continued)



City of Wapakoneta
Change in Net Position
Last Ten Years
(continued)

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2015 2014 2013 2012
Net (Expense) Revenue
Governmental Activities ($2,922,890) ($4,536,402) ($3,071,432) ($4,048,¢
Business-Type Activities (2,425,782) 984,618 15,565 92,61
Total Primary Government Net Expense (5,348,672) (3,551,784) (3,055,867) (3,956,3
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes 369,966 362,175 356,365 373,44
Property Taxes Levied for Recreation 97,698 95,171 92,535 88,62
Municipal Income Taxes 2,645,764 2,602,279 2,590,749 2,280,1
Other Local Taxes 1,081,260 722,090 686,875 651,9¢
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted to Specific Prog 256,699 254,085 249,320 454,5¢
Franchise Taxes 79,168 144,915 83,156 86,28
Interest 10,215 15,376 13,721 32,57
Gifts and Donations 57,483 1,040 2,639 1,77.
Other 73,657 58,133 80,453 87,24
Gain on Sale of Investment 0 0 0 0
Transfers (1,442,072) (26,000) (1,771,837) (397,7:
Total Governmental Activities 3,229,838 4,229,264 2,383,976 3,658,8
Business-Type Activities
Interest 564 0 0 29
Other 65,294 78,660 317,550 41,11
Transfers 1,442,072 26,000 1,771,837 397,7:
Total Business-Type Activities 1,507,930 104,660 2,089,387 438,8
Total Primary Government 4,737,768 4,333,924 4,473,363 4,097,7
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities 306,948 (307,138) (687,456) (390,0¢
Business-Type Activities (917,852) 1,089,278 2,104,952 531,4:
Total Primary Government Change in Net Position ($610,904) $782,140 $1,417,496 $141,3

Note: Expenses are first impacted by the implementation of GASB Statemes& hNeginning in 2015.

S-6



2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
($4,557,509)  ($2,632,527)  ($4,076,260)  ($3,303,263)  ($1,382,201)  ($2,992,023)
100,521 1,665,837 1,159,734 550,959 (39,436) (1,350,109)
(4,456,988) (966,690) (2,916,526) (2,752,304) (1,421,637) (4,342,132)
369,263 376,810 365,898 376,258 382,346 390,020
92,756 95,200 92,532 100,267 103,445 106,334
2,271,225 2,244,992 2,163,600 2,419,511 2,286,433 2,290,400
642,164 645,090 604,597 666,801 702,847 678,614
550,652 585,145 571,917 736,776 699,524 530,856
83,736 85,710 70,776 67,136 50,369 45,289
35,706 75,658 123,591 522,389 919,480 892,006
1,374 5,663 9,671 59,095 8,352 13,142
48,596 76,118 48,787 47,323 30,384 153,570
0 0 0 0 758,441 0
(582,256) (646,732) (557,664) (546,051) (427,882) (266,589)
3,513,216 3,543,654 3,493,705 4,449,505 5,513,739 4,833,642
7 1 2 19,753 59,555 36,694
72,808 30,376 40,677 66,093 93,043 45,061
582,256 646,732 557,664 546,051 427,882 266,589
655,071 677,109 598,343 631,897 580,480 348,344
4,168,287 4,220,763 4,092,048 5,081,402 6,094,219 5,181,986
(1,044,293) 911,127 (582,555) 1,146,242 4,131,538 1,841,619
755,592 2,342,946 1,758,077 1,182,856 541,044 (1,001,765)
($288,701)  $3,254,073 $1,175,522 $2,329,098 $4,672,582 $839,854
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General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, Reported in
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total All Other Governmental Funds

Total Governmental Funds

City of Wapakoneta
Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2015

2014 2013 2012

$0 $0 $0 $0

0 0 0 0
80,527 86,112 87,798 85,29
2,698 10,154 10,154 18,51
765,135 709,905 71,374 237,7:
1,256,912 862,133 1,671,656 1,603,9
2,105,272 1,668,304 1,840,982 1,945,4

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

28,217 30,778 29,308 30,12
1,201,241 2,084,349 1,920,873 2,700,1
233,152 402,702 277,702 723,0(
(1,389) (16,307) (126,225) (456,25
1,461,221 2,501,522 2,101,658 2,997,0
$3,566,493 $4,169,826 $3,942,640 $4,942 ¢

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54 in 2011.
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2011

2010

2009 2008 2007 2006
$0 $122,631 $138,697 $159,606 $204,428 $82,397
0 2,077,148 2,546,481 3,169,890 2,838,888 2,303,358
48,027 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
18,457 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
244,541 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2,035,875 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2,346,900 2,199,779 2,685,178 3,329,496 3,043,316 2,385,755
0 811,189 330,711 465,171 1,859,426 485,067
0 1,081,987 1,265,764 1,392,222 1,078,936 2,444,533
0 467,448 539,473 609,729 520,071 413,201
0 1,539,432 2,177,385 1,617,466 1,384,703 688,783
31,950 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2,954,653 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
698,244 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
0 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
3,684,847 3,900,056 4,313,333 4,084,588 4,843,136 4,031,584
$6,031,747 $6,099,835 $6,998,511 $7,414,084 $7,886,452 $6,417,339
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City of Wapakoneta
Change in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
Last TenYears

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Revenues

Property Taxes
Municipal Income Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Special Assessments
Charges for Services
Fees, Licenses, and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest

Gifts and Donations
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Security of Persons and Property
Police
Fire
Other
Public Health
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Transportation
General Government
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets

Loans Issued

Inception of Capital Lease

Gain on Sale of Investments
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Change in Fund Balance

Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital
Expenditures

2015 2014 2013 2012
$465,520 $458,036 $453,266 $459,8
2,665,795 2,594,506 2,415,109 2,262,3
1,157,876 797,205 780,110 705,3(
27,686 39,784 52,670 57,95
751,539 750,578 711,028 774,3¢
113,940 134,013 103,076 87,5:
20,355 15,086 18,785 13,41
2,242,652 1,169,747 3,247,382 1,272,2
36,981 25,239 36,097 50,03
73,028 19,171 10,508 16,22
73,657 58,133 72,016 87,24
7,629,029 6,061,498 7,900,047 5,786,5
1,608,199 1,714,844 1,507,378 1,550,7
1,726,979 1,481,619 1,927,319 1,461,3
4,504 4,792 4,685 4,59;
177,468 149,970 159,821 143,5¢
363,140 410,517 389,085 357,7(
94,072 126,163 93,366 81,34
3,634,852 1,341,304 3,916,917 2,396,0
531,671 579,587 498,250 491,1(
80,503 82,656 273,007 261,1€
10,974 8,789 19,251 28,93
8,232,362 5,900,241 8,789,079 6,776,4
(603,333) 161,257 (889,032) (989, 8¢

0 0 26,760 0

0 0 0 0

0 91,929 0 0

0 0 0 0
640,000 791,225 747,893 1,044,1!
(640,000) (817,225) (885,500) (1,143,5(
0 65,929 (110,847) (99,34
($603,333) $227,186 ($999,879)  ($1,089,2
1.46% 1.64% 4.02% 5.05¢
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$467,205 $472,312 $454,699 $475,488 $485,855 $494,322
2,230,352 2,171,986 2,138,100 2,343,504 2,330,159 2,186,885

707,507 718,141 744,078 739,543 775,349 750,786
49,364 108,280 79,745 113,600 99,838 127,830
686,888 673,656 624,096 534,173 383,477 394,449
90,097 82,112 98,226 84,803 58,235 49,667
21,706 21,292 21,495 26,414 28,153 26,397
2,111,174 2,385,316 1,985,445 2,352,860 1,429,731 1,112,975

78,486 101,299 167,697 638,987 1,385,496 1,123,113
4,794 30,264 51,756 306,596 29,040 39,358
48,596 76,348 48,557 47,323 29,805 153,570
6,496,169 6,841,006 6,413,894 7,663,291 7,035,138 6,459,352
1,569,832 1,423,412 1,498,398 1,335,039 1,275,070 1,261,097
1,283,633 1,406,482 1,771,274 1,228,768 1,157,457 1,468,411
8,166 15,472 14,842 27,847 14,333 13,040
147,474 172,208 171,546 270,897 218,356 191,798
452,069 389,487 425,862 1,874,381 283,512 209,160
111,158 82,067 136,721 105,721 75,643 113,779
1,635,535 3,037,581 1,651,528 1,790,505 1,128,899 741,257
489,958 536,168 679,793 474,176 1,129,757 533,235
376,099 365,342 358,346 449,624 454,074 448,553
41,045 52,045 74,109 61,042 73,146 84,149
6,114,969 7,480,264 6,782,419 7,618,000 5,810,247 5,064,479
381,200 (639,258) (368,525) 45,291 1,224,891 1,394,873
0 3,100 1,531 0 4,201 816
0 54,955 368,662 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 758,441 0
1,052,712 919,852 907,759 1,147,341 1,751,741 967,411
(1,502,000) (1,237,325) (1,325,000) (1,665,000) (2,270,161) (1,234,000)
(449,288) (259,418) (47,048) (517,659) 244,222 (265,773)
($68,088) ($898,676) ($415,573) ($472,368)  $1,469,113 $1,129,100
7.81% 7.56% 7.68% 10.18% 11.15% 12.11%
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City of Wapakoneta
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Years

Public Utility
Real Property Personal Property
Assessed Value Total
Residential/ Commercial/ Public Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated
Year Agricultural Industrial Utility Value Actual Value Value Actual Value
2015 $106,495,310  $44,517,970 $65,790  $151,079,070  $431,654,486 $1,122,690 $1,:
2014 105,469,010 45,237,190 64,720 150,770,920 430,774,057 1,120,460 1,2
2013 104,962,290 46,822,260 62,380 151,846,930 433,848,371 1,055,660 1,1
2012 104,390,450 47,087,190 74,990 151,552,630 433,007,514 426,650 4¢
2011 108,463,200 45,560,200 66,570 154,089,970 440,257,057 412,220 4¢
2010 107,696,140 45,716,950 61,680 153,474,770 438,499,343 401,430 4t
2009 108,578,130 47,073,300 87,780 155,739,210 444,969,171 577,790 6!
2008 99,932,540 43,264,780 46,920 143,244,240 409,269,257 584,380 6¢€
2007 98,356,360 41,575,210 43,590 139,975,160 399,929,029 3,300,180 3,7
2006 96,797,980 39,755,360 77,760 136,631,100 390,374,571 3,745,680 4,2!

Source: Auglaize County Auditor

(1) Since each type of property has its own direct rate, a weighted avetga@barate rates is presented.
See S-14 for the direct rate by property type.

Note: Real property is reappraised every six years with a State mandatedlaipie current

market value in the third year following each reappraisal.

The assessed value of real property (including public utility real proise3ty percent of

estimated actual value. Personal property tax was assessednyibédd! peersonal property used

in business in Ohio. The assessed value of public utility personaitpmgmges from 25 percent

of actual value for railroad property to 88 percent for electric transmissidistitlition

property. General business tangible personal property was&gsgssgious years at 25 percent of actual value
for machinery and equipment and 23 percent for inventory. The generasbtesiggble

personal property tax was phased out. The assessment percasthgdbwwercent

for 2007, 6.25 percent for 2008, and zero for 2009. Beginning in 2007, House Bill 6édtetephone companies
from being public utilites to general business taxpayers and begaryadophase out on the tangible personal
property tax on local and inter-exchange telephone companiesagitbetpersonal property taxes have been
levied or collected from general business taxpayers since 2@0&pbone companies since 2010.

The tangible personal property values associated with each yeanataabehat, when

multiplied by the applicable rates, generated the property tax revégtinlihat year.

For real property, the amounts generated by multiplying the asgakses by the applicable

rates would be reduced by the 10 percent, 2 1/2 percent, and homesteddrexbefpte

being billed. Beginning in the 2006 collection year, the 10 perceraalofitr commercial/industrial
property was eliminated.
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Tangible

Personal Property Total
Weighted
Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Average
Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Tax Rate (1)
$0 $0  $152,201,760  $432,930,270 $3.46
0 0 151,891,380 432,047,307 3.46
0 0 152,902,590 435,047,985 3.46
0 0 151,979,280 433,492,344 3.44
0 0 154,502,190 440,725,489 3.43
434,390 434,390 154,310,590 439,389,903 3.43
868,780 868,780 157,185,780 446,494,531 3.43
4,227,152 67,634,432 148,055,772 477,567,757 3.45
8,454,304 67,634,432 151,729,644 471,313,666 3.47
10,846,559 57,848,315 151,223,339 452,479,341 3.48
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Property Tax Rates - Direct and All Overlapping Governments

Collection Year
Voted Millage
Recreation
Effective Millage Rates
Residential/Agriculture
Commericial/Industrial
Tangible/Public Utility Personal
Unvoted Millage
General
Fire Pension
Police Pension

Total Unvoted Millage

Total Millage (Total Direct Rate)

Total Effective Millage by Type of Property

Residential/Agriculture
Commericial/Industrial
Tangible/Public Utility Personal
Total Weighted Average Tax Rate
Auglaize County
Wapakoneta City School District
Apollo Career Center

Duchouquet Township

Source: Auglaize County Auditor

City of Wapakoneta

Per $1,000 of Assessed Values

Last Ten Years

2015 2014 2013 2012
$0.6236 $0.6246 $0.6274 $0.62¢
0.9010 0.9011 0.8902 0.843
1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.000
2.1500 2.1500 2.1500 2.150
0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.300
0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.300
2.7500 2.7500 2.7500 2.750
3.3736 3.3746 3.3774 3.376
3.6510 3.6511 3.6402 3.593
3.7500 3.7500 3.7500 3.750
3.4584 3.4606 3.4606 3.444
12.7500 12.7500 11.7500 11.75(
30.6000 31.3000 31.3000 31.30(
3.3400 3.4400 3.4400 2.200
0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 0.200

Note: The rates presented for a particular calendar year are the rates that,phbénathe assessed values presented
in the Assessed Value Table, generated the property tax reiienlie that year. The basic property tax rate

can only be increased by a majority vote of the City's residents.

Real property tax rates are reduced so that inflationary increases idovabiggenerate additional taxes. Real
property is reappraised every six years and property values arel updagethird year following each reappraisal.

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments thabgmplgerty owners within the City of

Wapakoneta. Property tax rates for all overlapping governmentsaceupon the original voted levy.
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$0.5995 $0.5995 $0.5989 $0.5989 $0.6299 $0.6316
0.8555 0.8555 0.8441 0.8693 0.8607 0.8528
1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
2.1500 2.1500 2.1500 2.1500 2.1500 2.1500
0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000
0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000
2.7500 2.7500 2.7500 2.7500 2.7500 2.7500
3.3495 3.3495 3.3489 3.3489 3.3799 3.3816
3.6055 3.6055 3.5941 3.6193 3.6107 3.6028
3.7500 3.7500 3.7500 3.7500 3.7500 3.7500
3.4262 3.4276 3.4262 3.4477 3.4719 3.4754
11.7500 11.7500 11.7500 11.7500 11.7500 11.2500
31.3000 31.3000 31.3000 31.3000 31.3000 29.6000
2.2000 2.2000 2.2000 2.2000 2.2000 2.2000
0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 0.2000 0.2000
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City of Wapakoneta
Real Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

Percentage
of Current Tax
Collections
Current Delinquent Total Current Tax to Current
Year Tax Levy (1) Tax Levy (2) Tax Levy Collections Tax Levy
2015 $522,607 $14,503 $537,110 $514,134 98.38%
2014 521,688 138,065 659,753 504,208 95.11
2013 523,622 19,687 543,309 501,674 95.19
2012 519,540 16,967 725,851 504,972 95.96
2011 591,313 19,618 727,166 514,116 94.32
2010 599,891 33,657 724,910 505,905 95.52
2009 610,363 19,274 750,158 493,080 95.14
2008 568,164 37,145 740,663 480,038 97.05
2007 569,746 22,694 592,440 461,866 96.42
2006 548,783 15,931 564,714 446,901 96.42

Source: Auglaize County Auditor

(1) State reimbursement of rollback and homestead exemptions are included

(2) Amounts listed include penalties and interest.

Note: The County's current reporting system does not track delinquencyi¢atiams by tax year.
Outstanding delinquencies are tracked in total by the date the parcetéstffied delinquent.
Penalties and interest are applied to the total outstanding delinquecg.balan
The presentation will be updated as new information becomes a\
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Percentage Percentage
of Total Tax of Outstanding
Delinquent Collections Outstanding Delinquent
Tax Total Tax to Total Delinquent Taxes to Total
Collections Collections Tax Levy Taxes (2) Tax Levy
$11,040 $525,174 97.78% $3,463 0.64%
13,355 517,563 91.35 4,490 8.30
10,832 512,506 92.00 8,855 7.03
10,329 515,301 93.61 6,638 6.07
13,130 527,246 72.51 6,489 6.78
21,859 527,764 72.80 11,798 6.08
11,207 504,287 67.22 8,067 5.68
30,116 510,154 68.88 7,030 4.82
15,257 477,123 80.54 7,437 4.55
10,926 457,827 81.07 15,931 4.55
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City of Wapakoneta
Principal Real Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2015
Real Percentage
Property of Total
Assessed Assessec
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Rank Valuation
Wal-Mart Stores East LP Retail Business $2,376,500 1 1.57%
Lowes Home Centers, Inc. Retail Business 1,726,530 2 1.14
Schlenker Enterprises Land Developments and Apartments 1,437,440 3 0.95
Ametek, Inc. Plastic Compounds 1,322,190 4 0.88
Koneta, Inc. Rubber Truck Accessories Manufacturing 1,232,880 5 0.82
Quaker Run Farms Warehousing and Distribution 1,154,580 6 0.76
GAMCO Components Group LLC  Automotive Suspension Manufacturing 1,137,500 7 0.75
DW 28 Wapakoneta LLC Retail Business 1,080,390 8 0.72
Normandy Ridge Limited Residential Apartments 866,920 9 0.57
Miller's Textile Services, Inc. Uniform Rentals 827,590 10 0.5!
LRV Acquisition Hotel Properties
Quaker Run Residential Apartments
Dr.L.Y. Soo Individual Property Owner
Total 13,162,520 8.7.
All Other Taxpayers 137,916,550 91.2
Total Assessed Valuation

Source: Auglaize County Auditor
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2006

$136,631,100

Real Percentage
Property of Total
Assessed Assessed

Valuation Rank Valuation
$1,161,450 6 0.85%
1,181,020 4 0.87
1,164,360 5 0.85
1,268,870 2 0.93
1,092,510 7 0.80
1,248,060 3 0.91
1,081,660 8 0.79
987,150 9 0.72
735,550 10 0.54
9,920,630 7.25
126,710,470 92.74

100.00%
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City of Wapakoneta
Income Tax Revenue Base and Collections

Last Ten Years

Percentage
Percentage Percentage Taxes of Taxes
of Taxes of Taxes from from
Tax Tax Total Tax  Taxes from from Taxes from from Individual Individual
Year Rate Collected  Withholding Withholding Net Profits ~ Net Profits Payments Payments
2015 1.00% $2,645,764 $2,219,838 83.90% $226,223 8.55% $199,703
2014 1.00 2,602,279 2,459,828 94.53 129,418 4.97 13,033
2013 1.00 2,590,749 2,015,566 77.80 295,940 11.42 279,243
2012 1.00 2,280,139 1,986,930 87.14 144,118 6.32 149,091
2011 1.00 2,271,225 1,693,982 74.59 232,213 10.22 345,030
2010 1.00 2,244,992 1,831,471 81.58 143,612 6.40 269,909
2009 1.00 2,163,600 1,706,006 78.85 119,471 5.52 338,123
2008 1.00 2,419,511 1,843,971 76.21 228,064 9.43 347,476
2007 1.00 2,286,433 1,794,095 78.47 169,089 7.40 323,249
2006 1.00 2,290,400 1,689,748 73.78 309,030 13.49 291,622

Source: City Recorc
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Kilowatt Hours Purchased from:
American Electric Power

AMP-Ohio
Solar Planet

Total Kilowatt Hours Purchased

Payments for Purchased Power to:
American Electric Power

AMP-Ohio
Solar Planet

City of Wapakoneta
Electric Utility Statistics

Last Ten Years

Total Payments for Purchased Power $12,379,952

Kilowatt Hours Sold to Users

Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Total Kilowatt Hours Sold to Users

Charges for Kilowatt Hours Sold

to Users
Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Total Dollar Amount of Kilowatt Hours

Sold to Users

Rate

Residential

Service Charge (base)
Energy Charge:

0 - 750 kwh

751 - 9,999,999 kwh

Commercial

Service Charge (base)

Demand:
First 5 kwh

6 - 9,999,999 kwh
Energy Charge:

First 1,000 kwh

1,001 - 9,999,999 kwh

Industrial (Large Power)
Service Charge (base)

Demand

Energy Charge

Source: City Records

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
0 0 0 0 0
199,918,896 202,219,618 195,926,166 186,176,513 180,95¢
3,755,014 3,759,567 1,396,868 0 0
203,673,910 205,979,185 197,323,034 186,176,513 180,95¢
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0
12,101,040 12,388,027 12,125,226 11,076,435 11,968
278,912 268,363 97,781 0 0
$12,656,390 $12,223,007 $11,076,435 $11,96¢
49,280,300 49,954,412 48,670,513 49,046,019 50,710
53,645,140 54,550,253 55,505,734 51,663,059 53,536
91,507,360 90,524,080 81,355,860 74,799,100 68,122
194,432,800 195,028,745 185,532,107 175,508,178 172,37(
$4,465,330 $4,405,323 $4,247,295 $4,207,297 $4,730
5,233,331 5,175,088 5,239,272 4,837,440 5,390,
6,061,489 5,836,043 5,513,562 5,080,856 5,223,
$15,760,150 $15,416,454 $15,000,129 $14,125,593 $15,34¢
$2.50 per month
$0.092 per kwh
$0.084 per kwh
$10.00 per month
No Charge
$6.00 per kwh
$0.1085 per kwh
$0.0785 per kwh
$100.00 per month
$18.00 per kwh
$0.0340 per kwh

Note: Charges for kilowatt hours sold are based on collection cycles williciffer from billing cycles as reflected on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Fund Net Position.
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
0 0 0 197,661,771 187,474,222
182,091,811 170,099,880 191,475,666 4,149,000 4,122,000
0 0 0 0 0
182,091,811 170,099,880 191,475,666 201,810,771 191,596,222
$0 $0 $11,197 $13,344,311 $12,570,995
12,224,095 11,750,318 12,608,416 146,348 136,101
0 0 0 0 0
$12,224,095 $11,750,318 $12,619,613 $13,490,659 $12,707,096
51,220,653 48,207,823 49,579,753 50,710,462 48,981,563
54,671,941 51,504,966 54,894,606 59,434,626 62,709,278
67,158,540 60,748,180 73,796,880 78,444,120 70,704,980
173,051,134 160,460,969 178,271,239 188,589,208 182,395,821
$4,816,497 $4,619,968 $4,420,838 $4,324,976 $3,691,525
5,566,648 5,364,868 5,355,024 5,510,541 4,938,547
5,201,984 5,013,166 5,503,887 5,511,166 4,587,937
$15,585,129 $14,998,002 $15,279,749 $15,346,683 $13,218,009

S-23



City of Wapakoneta
Water Utility Statistics
Last Ten Years

Type of

Customer 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Residential $1,168,845 $1,120,415 $1,090,272 $1,037,648 $1,012
Industrial 348,555 354,636 313,989 273,445 270,2
Commercial 315,901 302,352 286,194 262,502 263,6
Total Billed $1,833,301 $1,777,403 $1,690,455 $1,573,595 $1,546

Billed in Cubic Feet

Rate in Cubic Feet:
All Customers

0-200 $9.87 $9.40 $8.95 $8.52 $7.7
201 - 1,300 4.15 3.95 3.76 3.58 3.2!
1,301 - 6,100 3.46 3.30 3.14 2.99 2.7
6,101 - 22,800 2.81 2.68 2.55 2.43 2.2
22,801 and up 2.55 2.43 2.31 2.19 1.9¢
Multi Residential
0-200 $9.87 $9.40 $8.95 $8.52 $7.7
Each Additional 100 4.02 3.83 3.65 3.48 3.1

Outside Rates add 200%
Source: City Records

Note: Charges are based on collection cycles which will differ from billingss reflected on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Fund Net Position.
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$1,029,780 $1,048,899 $977,828 $931,953 $845,137
291,804 274,435 312,965 310,036 263,913
277,948 280,266 270,467 271,697 264,331
$1,599,532 $1,603,600 $1,561,260 $1,513,686 $1,373,381
$7.72 $7.72 $7.72 $7.14 $6.61
3.25 3.25 3.25 3.01 2.79
271 271 271 2.51 2.32
2.20 2.20 2.20 2.04 1.89
1.99 1.99 1.99 1.84 1.70
$7.72 $7.72 $7.72 $7.14 $6.61
3.15 3.15 3.15 291 2.69
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City of Wapakoneta
Sewer Utility Statistics
Last Ten Years

Type of

Customer 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Residential $1,214,430 $1,184,334 $1,167,565 $1,158,891 $1,123
Commercial 338,763 326,180 328,079 308,411 318,1
Industrial 515,794 536,659 420,142 347,512 370,4
Total Billed $2,068,987 $2,047,173 $1,915,786 $1,814,814 $1,812

Billed in Cubic Feet

Base Rate for First 200 Cubic Feet:

Residential $12.83 $12.45 $12.10 $11.74 $11.

Commercial 12.83 12.45 12.10 11.74 11.4

Industrial 12.83 12.45 12.10 11.74 11.4
Additional per 100 Cubic Feet:

Residential $3.74 $3.64 $3.53 $3.43 $3.3

Commercial 4.03 3.91 3.80 3.69 3.5¢

Industrial 3.74 3.64 3.53 3.43 3.3

Outside Rates add 115%
Source: City Records

Note: Charges are based on collection cycles which will differ from billinigs s reflected on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Fund Net Position.
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$1,081,696 $1,051,463 $1,035,296 $1,045,093 $1,013,454

307,324 291,326 300,312 318,508 348,872

393,287 400,621 473,693 512,977 471,939
$1,782,307 $1,743,410 $1,809,301 $1,876,578 $1,834,265

$11.07 $10.20 $10.05 $9.90 $9.75

11.07 10.20 10.05 9.90 9.75

11.07 10.20 10.05 9.90 9.75

$3.23 $2.98 $2.93 $2.89 $2.85

3.48 3.21 3.16 3.11 3.06

3.23 2.98 2.93 2.89 2.85
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City of Wapakoneta
Storm Sewer Utility Statistics
Last Ten Years

Type of
Customer 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Residential $99,408 $89,856 $89,256 $88,846 $87,9
Commercial/Industrial 55,353 64,905 64,883 64,942 65,3!
Total Billed $154,761 $154,761 $154,139 $153,788 $153,:
Rates:
Residential: $2 per month

Commercial/Industrial:

Area of Property
(square feet)

Monthly
Fee

1to 10,000
10,001 to 25,000
25,001 to 50,000
50,001 to 100,000
100,000 and over

Source: City Records

$4

10
20
40

Note: Charges are based on collection cycles which will differ from billingss reflected on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Fund Net Position.
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$87,960 $87,722 $87,772 $87,348 $86,742
68,249 68,133 66,802 67,425 67,411
$156,209 $155,855 $154,574 $154,773 $154,153
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City of Wapakoneta
Refuse Utility Statistics
Last Ten Years

Type of
Customer 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Residential $466,974 $440,092 $416,494 $414,011 $414,.
Commercial/lndustrial 190,931 185,454 186,212 182,251 182,8
Bag Sales (all customers) 331,875 334,125 288,750 288,738 271,4
Total $989,780 $959,671 $891,456 $885,000 $868,:
Amount Paid by City to
Waste Management $266,651 $251,869 $235,714 $227,332 $239,
Amount per Ton Paid to
Waste Management $68.22 $68.22 $66.63 $65.09 $65.(
Monthly Base Rate:
Residential Inside $9.00 $9.00 $8.50 $8.50 $8.5
Residential Outside 13.00 13.00 12.50 12.50 12.5
Commercial/Industrial (dumpsters) $5 per cubic yard, plus $5 stop charge

In addition to a flat fee, customers must also purchase trash bags from theh@itysell for $1.00 or $1.50 each. Customers
are also charged a monthly fee for landfill monitoring that varies for type of custohsize of commercial dumpster.

Source: City Records

Note: Charges are based on collection cycles which will differ from billinigs s reflected on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Fund Net Position.
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$411,384 $386,024 $366,097 $342,334 $294,849
190,085 194,305 207,471 203,805 136,612
267,688 254,313 287,938 267,579 236,150
$869,157 $834,642 $861,506 $813,718 $667,611
$223,051 $206,999 $215,993 $220,755 $219,332
$61.99 $59.15 $55.09 $53.55 $51.00

$8.50 $8 $7 $7 $6

12.50 12 11 11 10
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City of Wapakoneta
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Years

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

General General Mortgage Due to

Obligation Capital Capital Obligation Revenue Auglaize
Year Bonds Loans Loans Leases Bonds Bonds County
2015 $0 $0 $129,929 $30,597 $0 $6,780,000
2014 0 11,870 169,967 59,192 0 7,250,000 0
2013 0 23,283 208,473 0 0 7,705,000 0
2012 225,000 34,257 245,506 0 0 8,130,000 1,25C
2011 440,000 44,809 281,121 0 0 8,540,000 3,75C
2010 750,428 54,955 315,374 0 23,300 8,940,000 6,25I
2009 1,071,228 0 348,316 0 45,900 9,315,000 8,75!
2008 1,397,951 0 0 0 67,900 9,655,196 11,25
2007 1,805,581 31,024 0 0 89,300 9,986,450 13,75
2006 2,218,912 61,098 0 0 110,300 10,308,232 16,25

Source: City Records

(1) See S-41 for population and personal income. These ratios are cdloslagepopulation and personal income for the pi
calendar year.
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Business-Type Activities

Percentage
OWDA Capital Capital Total Per of Personal
Loans Loans Loans Leases Debt Capita (1) Income (1)
$18,468,055 $0 $329,514 $566,820  $26,304,915 $2,666 12.64%
16,527,575 11,870 431,055 0 24,461,529 2,481 9.06
12,393,522 71,842 528,711 34,925 20,965,756 2,133 7.79
8,919,074 129,624 622,630 68,563 18,375,904 1,867 7.54
8,833,359 185,295 712,955 100,962 19,142,251 1,940 7.84
8,743,063 266,866 799,824 0 19,900,060 2,103 11.08
4,853,063 280,568 883,369 0 16,806,194 1,781 9.39
1,007 80,256 0 0 11,213,560 1,189 6.27
0 126,906 0 0 12,053,011 1,258 6.63
0 57,749 0 0 12,772,541 1,330 7.01
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City of Wapakoneta

Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Estimated Actual Value

and Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Years

Ratio of
Estimated Gross Bonded Debt Bonded
Actual Bonded to Estimated Debt Per
Year Population Value Debt Actual Value Capita
2015 9,867 $432,930,270 $0 0.00% $0.
2014 9,861 432,047,307 0 0.00 0.00
2013 9,830 435,047,985 0 0.00 0.00
2012 9,843 433,492,344 225,000 0.05 22,
2011 9,867 440,725,489 440,000 0.10 44,
2010 9,464 439,389,903 773,728 0.18 81.
2009 9,438 446,494,531 1,117,128 0.25 118
2008 9,432 477,567,757 1,465,851 0.31 155
2007 9,579 471,313,666 1,894,881 0.40 197
2006 9,602 452,479,341 2,329,212 0.51 242
Source: City Records

Auglaize County Auditor
U.S. Census Bureau
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City of Wapakoneta
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt for Governmental Activities
December 31, 2015

Outstanding Percentage Applicable Amount Applicable
Jurisdiction Debt to City of Wapakoneta (1) to City of Wapakoneta
City of Wapakoneta

Loans $129,929 100.00% $129,929
Capital Leases 30,597 30,597
160,526 160,526
Wapakoneta City School District 22,354,894 39.12 8,745,23
Total $22,515,420 $8,905,761

Source: City Records
Ohio Municipal Advisory Council

(1) The percentage of gross indebtedness of the City's overlapping pslitidivisions was determined by dividing
each overlapping subdivision's assessed valuation within the City bglisssessed valuation.
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Total Assessed Valuation

City of Wapakoneta

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Years

Overall Debt Limitation - 10.5 Percent of Assessed Valuation15,981,185

Gross Indebtedness

Less Debt Outside Limitation
Bond Anticipation Notes
General Obligation Bonds
Mortgage Revenue Bonds
OWDA Loans
Capital Loans
Loans Payable

Net Indebtedness
Less Fund Balance in Debt Service Fund

Net Debt Within 10.5 Percent Limitation

Legal Debt Margin Within 10.5 Percent Limitation

Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage of the

Overall Debt Limiation

Unvoted Debt Limitation - 5.5 Percent of Assessed Valuation$8,371,097

Gross Indebtedness

Less Debt Outside Limitation
Bond Anticipation Notes
General Obligation Bonds
Mortgage Revenue Bonds
OWDA Loans
Capital Loans
Loans Payable

Net Indebtedness
Less Fund Balance in Debt Service Fund

Net Debt Within 5.5 Percent Limitation

Legal Debt Margin Within 5.5 Percent Limitation

Unvoted Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage of the

Unvoted Debt Limitation

Source: City Records

2015 2014 2013 2012

$152,201,760 $151,891,380 $152,902,590 $151,979
15,948,595 16,054,772 15,957,¢

25,707,498 24,402,337 20,930,831 18,306,(
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
6,780,000 7,250,000 7,705,000 8,130,0
18,468,055 16,527,575 12,393,522 8,919,(
0 11,870 71,842 129,62:
329,514 431,055 528,711 622,6:
129,929 181,837 231,756 504,7¢
44,316 44,316 44,316 144,97
85,613 137,521 187,440 359,7¢
$15,895,572  $15,811,074  $15,867,332  $15,598,
99.46% 99.14% 98.83% 97.75
$8,354,026 $8,409,642 $8,358,¢

25,707,498 24,402,337 20,930,831 18,306,(
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
6,780,000 7,250,000 7,705,000 8,130,0
18,468,055 16,527,575 12,393,522 8,919,(
0 11,870 71,842 129,62:
329,514 431,055 528,711 622,6:
129,929 181,837 231,756 504,7¢
44,316 44,316 44,316 144,97
85,613 137,521 187,440 359,7¢
$8,285,484 $8,216,505 $8,222,202 $7,999,(
98.98% 98.35% 97.77% 95.70
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2011 2010

2009 2008

2007

2006

$154,502,190 $154,310,590

$157,185,780 $148,055,772

$151,729,644

$151,223,339

16,222,730 16,202,612 16,504,507 15,545,856 15,931,613 15,878,451
19,037,539 19,915,082 17,130,316 11,861,263 13,112,930 14,313,847
0 0 300,000 600,000 990,000 1,450,000
0 23,300 45,900 67,900 89,300 110,300
8,540,000 8,940,000 9,315,000 9,670,000 10,015,000 10,350,000
8,833,359 8,743,063 4,853,063 1,007 0 0
185,295 266,866 280,568 80,256 157,930 118,847
712,955 799,824 883,369 0 0 0
765,930 1,142,029 1,452,416 1,442,100 1,860,700 2,284,700
245,212 467,448 539,473 609,729 520,071 413,201
520,718 674,581 912,943 832,371 1,340,629 1,871,499
$15,702,012  $15,528,031  $15,591,564  $14,713,485 $14,590,984  $14,006,952
96.79% 95.84% 94.47% 94.65% 91.59% 88.21%
$8,497,620 $8,487,082 $8,645,218 $8,143,067 $8,345,130 $8,317,284
19,037,539 19,915,082 17,130,316 11,861,263 13,112,930 14,313,847
0 0 300,000 600,000 990,000 1,450,000
0 23,300 45,900 67,900 89,300 110,300
8,540,000 8,940,000 9,315,000 9,670,000 10,015,000 10,350,000
8,833,359 8,743,063 4,853,063 1,007 0 0
185,295 266,866 280,568 80,256 157,930 118,847
712,955 799,824 883,369 0 0 0
765,930 1,142,029 1,452,416 1,442,100 1,860,700 2,284,700
245,212 467,448 539,473 609,729 520,071 413,201
520,718 674,581 912,943 832,371 1,340,629 1,871,499
$7,976,902 $7,812,501 $7,732,275 $7,310,696 $7,004,501 $6,445,785
93.87% 92.05% 89.44% 89.78% 83.94% 77.50%
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City of Wapakoneta

Pledged Revenue
Water Fund

Last Seven Years

Net Revenue

Gross Operating  Available for Debt Service Requirements (3)

Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2015 $1,872,030 $1,491,250 $380,780 $159,564 $407,209 $566,773

2014 1,833,207 1,099,767 733,440 107,093 414,804 521,897

2013 1,734,258 1,086,316 647,942 183,042 398,689 581,731

2012 1,613,831 1,010,596 603,235 136,798 431,735 568,533

2011 1,563,522 1,093,005 470,517 138,950 455,981 594,931

2010 1,621,188 720,759 900,429 0 1,188 1,188 757.9¢
2009 1,653,594 615,127 1,038,467 0 578 578 1,796.6€

Source: City Records

(1) Includes operating revenues and interest.
(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation.
(3) Includes mortgage revenue bonds and OWDA loans.

Note: There was no debt for which there was pledged revenue prior to 2009.
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City of Wapakoneta
Pledged Revenue
Sewer Fund
Last Ten Years

Net Revenue

Gross Operating  Available for Debt Service Requirements (3)

Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

2015 $3,320,572 $1,433,053 $1,887,519 $684,787 $621,478 $1,306,265 1.
2014 3,266,033 1,217,489 2,048,544 455,000 334,812 789,812 2.5
2013 3,138,652 1,371,493 1,767,159 447,787 354,140 801,927 2.2
2012 2,718,422 1,174,231 1,544,191 432,900 372,773 805,673 1.9
2011 2,418,291 1,315,509 1,102,782 422,900 390,909 813,809 1.3
2010 1,987,702 1,305,730 681,972 375,000 407,905 782,905 0.8
2009 1,803,106 1,936,809 (133,703) 355,000 423,123 778,123 (0.1
2008 1,879,320 1,324,362 554,958 345,000 437,210 782,210 0.7
2007 1,961,301 1,176,047 785,254 335,000 450,788 785,788 1.C
2006 1,901,842 1,192,376 709,466 180,000 291,933 471,933 1.kt

Source: City Records

(1) Includes operating revenues and interest.

(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation.
(3) Includes mortgage revenue bonds and OWDA loans.
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City of Wapakoneta
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Total Personal Per Capita School Unemployment Rat
Year Population (1) Income (2) Personal Income (3) Enroliment (4) Auglaize County
2015 9,867 $208,134,498 $21,094 3,062 3.60%
2014 9,861 270,122,373 27,393 3,144 3.50
2013 9,830 269,273,190 27,393 3,133 4.60
2012 9,843 243,673,308 24,756 3,062 4.80
2011 9,867 244,267,452 24,756 3,065 6.20
2010 9,464 179,588,864 18,976 3,036 8.20
2009 9,438 179,095,488 18,976 3,025 10.60
2008 9,432 178,981,632 18,976 3,025 6.80
2007 9,579 181,771,104 18,976 3,043 4.70
2006 9,602 182,207,552 18,976 3,023 4.20

Source: (1) Chamber of Commerce and U.S. Census Bureau
(2) U.S. Census Bureau - Computation of per capita personal inctiipkedhiy population.
(3) U.S. Census Bureau
(4) Wapakoneta City School District
(5) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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Employer

City of Wapakoneta
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Type of Business

2015

Number of

Percentag
of Total

Employees Rank Employmer

Auglaize County

General Aluminum Manufacturing Company

Wapakoneta City School District
Wal-Mart Stores East LP
American Trim Limited
Miller's Textile Services, Inc.
Trupointe

GA Wintzer & Son Company
City of Wapakoneta

Koneta, Inc.

Auglaize Provico

Ametek, Inc.

Frost & Company

Total
Total Employment Within the City

Source: City Records

Government
Aluminum Manufacturing
Government
Retail Business
Metal Stamping
Uniform Rentals
Agricultural Commodities Supplier
Manufacturing
Government
Rubber Truck Accessories Manufacturing
Agricultural Commodities Supplier
Plastic Compounds

Contractor

S-42

454

316

289

240

168

155

119

119

81

75

2,016

4,987

1

2

10

9.10%

6.34

5.80

4.81

3.37

3.11

2.39

2.39

1.62

1.50

40.43%



2006

Percentage
Number of of Total
Employees Rank Employment

516 1 10.88%

130 7 2.74
324 2 6.84
233 3 4.92
115 9 2.43
132 6 2.79
202 4 4.26
165 5 3.48
116 8 2.45
100 10 2.11
2,033 42.90%

4,739
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City of Wapakoneta

Full Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Program/Department

Last Ten Years

Function/Program 2015 2014 2013 2012
General Government
Mayor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Council 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.0C
Clerk of Council 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.5C
Auditor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Treasurer 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Income Tax Administrator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Income Tax Clerk 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Law Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Administrative Assistant 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Security of Persons and Property
Police 14.00 13.00 14.00 14.01
Police - Dispatchers 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.0C
Police - Auxiliary 9.00 10.00 12.00 15.0(
Fire 13.00 13.00 14.00 14.01
Fire - Auxiliary 8.00 10.00 10.00 12.0(
Safety Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Public Health
Emergency Medical Services 2.00 6.00 6.00 6.0C
Leisure Time Activities
Recreation Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0C
Transportation
Public Works 9.00 9.00 10.00 10.0(
Basic Utility Services
Engineering 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.0C
Utility Clerks 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.0C
Electric 10.00 10.00 11.00 11.01
Water 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.0C
Sewer 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.0C
Refuse 4.00 6.00 6.00 6.0C
Total 108.50 116.50 122.50 127.5

Using 1.0 for each full-time employee and 0.50 for each part-time employéBeasember 31.

Source: City Payroll Records
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 13.00 14.00
5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
17.00 16.00 14.00 15.00 14.00 15.00
14.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 14.00 14.00
12.00 11.00 13.00 11.00 11.00 11.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 9.00 14.00 14.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.50 0.50
10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
11.00 11.00 11.00 12.00 13.00 11.00
6.00 6.00 6.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
4.00 5.00 5.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
6.00 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00 7.00
128.50 129.50 129.50 129.50 131.00 132.00
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City of Wapakoneta

Operating Indicators by Program/Department
Last Ten Years

Function/Program 2015 2014 2013 2012
Security of Persons and Property-Police
Vehicle Mileage 115,612 113,720 118,841 116,1¢
Number of Traffic Citations and Arrests 1,187 1,023 1,143 79’
Number of Parking Tickets Issued 444 291 435 369
Dollar Amount Collected for Tickets $4,100 $2,990 $4,390 $3,69
Security of Persons and Property-Fire
Number of EMS Calls 1,159 1,283 1,260 1,24
Number of Fire Calls 300 39 21 17
Miscellaneous Calls 240 232 219 214
Transportation
Number of Gallons of R-S-2 Used to Fill Potholes 2,655 0 0 0
Number of Pounds of Crack Sealer Used 0 0 0 0
General Government
Income Tax
Number of Individual Accounts 5,198 4,765 5,435 4,991
Number of Business Accounts 803 773 828 862
Number of Business Withholding Accounts 923 880 963 947
Total Receipts Collected $2,645,764 $2,602,279 $2,590,749 $2,280,.
Amount of Interest and Penalties Charged $13,813 $31,323 $26,254 $26,9:
Amount of Interest and Penalties Collected $4,668 $15,910 $26,293 $8,5(C
City Commission
Number of Ordinances Passed 41 37 33 54
Number of Resolutions Passed 12 4 5 11
Electric Department
Kilowatt Hours Used 203,673,910 205,979,185 197,323,034 186,176,
City Cost of Power $12,379,952 $12,656,390 $12,223,007 $11,076,
Water Department
Number of Wells Operating 6 7 7 7
Millions of Gallons of Finished Water 524.00 543.00 503.00 519.0
Chlorine Used (gallons) 16,556 17,649 15,275 14,69
Phosphate Used (gallons) 2,268 2,138 1,887 2,03!
Salt in Tons (regenerates softening units) 2,056 1,861 1,693 1,57
Number of Gallons of Water Able to be
Pumped a Day Combined 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,500,0
Daily Average Consumption (gallons) 1,437,000 1,450,000 1,400,000 1,350,0
Maximum Daily Capacity of Treatment Plant (gallons) 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,0
Sewer Department
Number of Gallons of Sewage Treated (in millions) 1,068 1,063 1,101 1,01
Average Daily Flow (millions of gallons per day) 2.92 291 3.02 2.7¢€
Maximum Daily Capacity of Treatment Plant (gallons) 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,0
Number of Tons of N-Viro Produced (fertilizer) 4,091 3,013 3,273 4,77!
Refuse Department
Number of Tons of Refuse Collected 3,832 3,692 3,621 3,68l
Number of Trash Bags Sold (in cases of 250 bags) 988 1,080 1,018 93¢
Number of Tons of Recycling Collected 713 n/a n/a 831
Number of Gallons of Used Motor Oil
Collected and Recycled 1,700 3,000 4,600 2,901
Engineering
Number of Registered Contractors 178 192 232 225
Number of Building Permits Issued 252 235 317 254

Source: City Records
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
107,529 118,129 104,347 100,909 105,005 102,691
961 1,092 1,008 1,239 1,316 1,070
340 489 478 474 457 429
$3,400 $4,630 $4,390 $4,650 $4,410 $3,870
1,074 1,016 928 1,009 966 995
38 41 41 41 34 40
229 240 201 246 186 198
0 2,200 5,250 5,320 2,750 2,760
0 2,000 4,000 4,730 4,928 8,928
4,740 4,713 4,837 4,805 4,697 4,709
827 804 820 805 790 823
925 879 907 856 854 817
$2,271,225 $2,244,992 $2,163,600 $2,419,511 $2,286,433 $2,290,400
$35,654 $29,401 $22,951 $19,780 $6,119 $4,901
$25,571 $11,130 $14,998 $6,604 $9,392 $446
62 46 45 53 63 62
11 9 13 6 7 8
180,959,049 182,091,811 170,099,880 191,475,666 201,810,771 191,596,222
$11,968,304 $12,224,095 $11,750,318 $12,619,613 $13,490,659 $12,707,096
10 7 7 7 7 7
537.00 532.00 523.52 576.70 559.13 530.86
15,799 14,362 13,667 17,424 14,497 13,074
1,755 2,961 2,190 2,649 3,154 2,606
1,296 1,448 1,420 2,150 2,253 1,929
2,700,000 2,700,000 2,700,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
1,470,000 1,579,000 1,576,000 1,576,000 1,530,000 1,540,000
2,560,000 2,722,000 2,722,000 2,722,000 2,722,000 2,722,000
1,332 911 822 1,281 1,242 1,141
3.66 2.49 2.25 3.50 3.40 3.13
6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
3,830 3,152 3,762 4,460 4,242 3,460
3,680 4,119 3,575 3,849 4,169 4,326
962 757 855 966 903 998
816 1,077 1,017 1,305 1,376 1,338
2,900 2,900 5,300 5,600 4,800 4,200
240 239 253 287 245 245
233 213 194 264 223 206
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City of Wapakoneta

Capital Assets by Program/Department

Last Ten Years

Function/Program 2015 2014 2013 2012

Security of Persons and Property-Police

Stations 1 1 1 1

Vehicles 12 12 9 11
Security of Persons and Property-Fire

Stations 1 1 1 1

Fire Trucks 7 7 7 7

Trailer 1 1 1 1

Vehicles 4 3 3 2
Public Health

Vehicles 3 3 3 3
Transportation

Streets (miles) 46.37 46.37 46.20 46.2

Vehicles 22 22 22 22
General Government

Vehicles 1 1 1 1
Electric

Electric Lines (miles) 103.37 103.37 103.37 103.3

Number of Substations 8 8 8 8

Vehicles 14 11 11 10
Water

Water Lines (miles) 61.28 61.28 61.00 61.01

Number of Treatment Plants 2 2 2 2

Vehicles 9 9 9 8
Sewer

Sanitary Sewer Lines (miles) 48.39 48.39 48.20 48.2

Storm Sewer Lines (miles) 28.19 28.19 27.93 27.9:

Number of Treatment Plants 1 1 1 1

Vehicles 5 4 4 4
Refuse

Vehicles 6 5 4 4
Recycling

Vehicles 5 5 5 5
Engineering

Vehicles 3 3 3 3

Source: City Records
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

1 1 1 1 1 1

11 10 8 8 8 7

1 1 1 1 1 1

7 5 6 6 6 6

1 1 1 1 1 1

2 2 2 2 2 2

3 3 3 3 3 3
46.16 46.16 46.16 46.16 46.15 46.15

22 19 19 19 19 18

1 1 1 1 1 1
103.37 103.37 102.88 106.37 106.37 106.37

8 8 8 8 8 8

9 9 9 15 15 12
61.00 61.00 59.91 59.91 59.73 59.73

2 1 1 1 1 1

8 5 4 4 4 5
48.20 48.20 48.20 48.20 47.93 47.93
27.93 27.93 27.93 27.93 27.80 27.80

1 1 1 1 1 1

4 4 4 4 4 4

4 4 4 4 4 5

5 4 4 4 3 3

3 3 3 3 3 3

S-49



This page is intentionally left blank.

S-50



CITY OF WAPAKONETA

AUGLAIZE COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the

Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revi  sed Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
OCTOBER 11, 2016
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